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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 27 OCTOBER 2020  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Kennedy,  good  

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Good morn ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  we ready?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We are  ready Cha i r  to  seek your  

leave to  ca l l  the  next  w i tness in  the  Dene l  s t ream o f  i ssues 

and tha t  i s  Ms Ce l ia  Pau l ina  Mamohla la  Malah le la .   She is  

in  the  w i tness box and ready to  g ive  her  ev idence once she  

has been sworn  i n .   Thank you.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay p lease admin is te r  the  oa th  o r  

a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Ce l ia  Pau l ina  Mamohla la  Malah le la .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MS MALAHLELA:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  

your  consc ience?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes I  do .  20 

REGISTRAR:   Do  you swear  tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  g ive  

w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  e l se  bu t  the 

t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and say,  so  he lp  

me God.  

MS MALAHLELA:   So  he lp  me God .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you;  you may be seated Ms 

Malah le la .    

MS MALAHLELA:   Thank you –  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes you may p roceed Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am sor ry  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You may proceed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Good morn ing  Ms 

Malah le la .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Good morn ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you fo r  coming  to  g ive 10 

ev idence before  the  Cha i r.   You based overseas cur ren t ly  

i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes I  am.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Where  are  you cur ren t ly  work ing  or  

l i v ing?  

MS MALAHLELA:   In  Europe.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In  Europe.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   May I  jus t  ask  i t  w i l l  be  eas ie r  fo r  the  

Cha i r  to  hear  and the  record ing  to  p ick  up  your  vo ice .   I f  20 

ra the r  than look ing  a t  me even though I  am g iv ing  you the  

quest ions.  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  look… 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   P lease look  a t  –  in  the  d i rec t ion  o f  

the  Cha i r  w i th  the  m icrophone in  f ron t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   A l l  w i tnesses do  not  want  to  look  a t  me.   

Okay a l r i gh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr  Malah le la  i s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  you 

have coopera ted  w i th  the  commiss ion ’s  o f f i c ia l s  and have 

produced an a f f idav i t  a t  our  reques t?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes I  have.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You jus t  want  to  p lace  on record  fo r  the 

t ranscr ip t  Mr  Kennedy.   Do you want  to  p lace  on record  fo r  

the  reco rd  –  fo r  the  t ranscr ip t  tha t  we a re  s t i l l  us ing  Dene l  

Bund le  01  today.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Yes I  do  Cha i r  and i t  i s  Exh ib i t  

W10.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  s ta r ts  f rom page 127  o f  th is  

bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   On mine i t  s ta r ts  a t  page 131.   I  th ink  i t  

i s  the  index tha t  s ta r ts  maybe ear l ie r.   The ac tua l  a f f idav i t  

seems to  s ta r t  –  s ta r t  a t  131.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   131 yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes I  have  tha t  thank you.   I  was  

look ing  a t  the  t i t le .   May I  jus t  have a  moment?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Ms Malah le la  i f  I  can  take  you  p lease  

to  page 164.   I t  seems tha t  th is  was s imp ly  a  s ta tement  
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s igned by  you no t  be fore  a  Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MS MALAHLELA:   164.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   164 p lease look a t  the  top  le f t  o f  each  

page when you look a t  the  page  numbers .   Do you see  

Dene l  -01-164?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes I  see tha t .   I  d id  s ign  in  f ron t  o f  the  

Commiss ioner  o f  Oath  so  I  am jus t  surp r ised why tha t  does 

not  appear  a t  the  bo t tom.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes tha t  ve rs ion  may not  have found  10 

i t s  way in  the  f i le  bu t  can we remedy tha t  by  ask ing  you  

p lease to  conf i rm –  you have a l ready been –  you have  

a l ready taken the  oa th  be fore  the  –  th is  commiss ion .   Can 

you conf i rm tha t  th is  i s  your  s ta tement?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes i t  i s .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And have you been th rough i t  

care fu l l y?  

MS MALAHLELA:   I  be l ieve  so .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And are  you fami l ia r  w i th  every th ing  

tha t  i t  says?  20 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And do you agree w i th  eve ry th ing  tha t  

i t  says?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And do you conf i rm tha t  i t  se ts  ou t  the  
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t rue  fac ts  fu l l y  and accura te l y?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t  thank you.   Now Ms Malah le la  I  

wou ld  l i ke  to  s ta r t  by  ge t t ing  a  b i t  about  your  background  

fo r  the  record .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you ask  me to  admi t  i t  as  an  Exh ib i t  

Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  beg your  pardon fo r  omi t t ing  tha t  

fo rmal i t y.   We ask tha t  th is  be  admi t ted  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   The s ta tement  by  Ms Ce l ia  Pau l ina  10 

Mamohla la  Malah le la  i s  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  W10.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Ms Malah le la  i f  I  can  take  you to  page  

132 you se t  ou t  your  p ro fess iona l  background.   I  am go ing  

to  p ick  up  jus t  a  few po in ts  there .   You have an LLB 

Degree?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And 2 .1   and then 2 .4  dea ls  w i th  your  

work  employment  background p r io r  to  jo in ing  Dene l ,  i s  tha t  20 

r igh t?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes i t  does.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You were  a t  Eskom Hold ings as  a  

Governance and  Lega l  Off i cer  February  2006 un t i l  Ju ly  

2007?  
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MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You were  a t  De Beers  Conso l ida ted 

Mines as  a  Sen ior  Supp ly  Cha in  Off i cer  August  2007 unt i l  

2010 and then you jo ined Katanga Min ing  as  a  Cont rac ts  

Adv isor  and then you had the  ro le  added o f  Company 

Secre tary  f rom November  2010 un t i l  you  le f t  them in  May 

2012?  

MS MALAHLELA:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Then i f  we go back to  pa rag raph 2 .2  

you then moved to  Dene l  and jo ined Dene l  Land Sys tems in  10 

May 2012 as  a  Cont rac ts  Manager  in  the  Supp ly  Cha in  

Depar tment ,  co r rec t?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And 2 .6  on  page 133 re fe rs  to  your  

repor t ing  to  the  Ch ie f  Opera t ions  Off i cer  Mr  Thebus whom 

you ment ion  a  number  o f  t imes e l sewhere  in  your  

s ta tement .   So he was the  o f f i c ia l  to  whom you repor ted?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And to  whom d id  Mr  Thebus repor t?  

MS MALAHLELA:   To  the  CEO Mr  S tephan Burger.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   S tephan Burger  and you re fer  a lso  in  

your  s ta tement  la te r  a  number  o f  t imes to  Mr  Burger?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We wi l l  come back to  tha t .   Now 2 .7  you  

se t  ou t  you r  va r ious respons ib i l i t i es  as  Execut ive  Manager  
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Supp ly  Cha in  as  inc lud ing  what  i s  se t  ou t  in  2 .7 .1  to  2 .7 .5 .   

Was i t  pa r t  o f  your  respons ib i l i t y  to  ensure  tha t  there  was  

compl iance w i th  p roper  p rocurement  p rocess?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes i t  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And was i t  par t  o f  your  respons ib i l i t y  

i f  any th ing  was be ing  done tha t  d id  no t  comply  w i th  those 

processes to  ra ise  the  issue?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes i t  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And who wou ld  you ra ise  tha t  i ssue  

w i th  a t  leas t  in  a  f i rs t  ins tance?  10 

MS MALAHLELA:  To  my super io r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr  Thebus.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   Then you re fer  to  a  de legat ion  

o f  au thor i t y  in  pa rag raph 2 .9  and you have a t tached fo r  us  

as  an  annexure  to  your  a f f idav i t  the  de legat ion .   I s  i t  

cor rec t  tha t  tha t  –  i f  you  can jus t  tu rn  fo r  a  moment  to  page 

30 –  I  beg your  pardon page 167  is  the  marke r  page and  

then f rom 168 is  tha t  the  Company Po l icy?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Which  has as  par t  o f  i t s  annexures a  

l i s t  o f  de legat ions?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes i t  i s .  So th is  i s  the  one tha t  app l ied  

f rom November  2012.   I t  was amended f rom t ime to  t ime.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t  thank you.   And tha t  tab le 
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se t t ing  ou t  the  de legat ion  runs f rom page 177,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MS MALAHLELA:   I  jus t  need to  conf i rm.   That  i s  cor rec t  

S i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .  So th is  se ts  ou t  the  leve ls  o f  

au thor i t y.   May I  take  you p lease to  –  to  page 182.    

MS MALAHLELA:   I  have found i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Paragraph or  i tem 5  is  headed 

Procurement .   And 5 .1  re fers  to  leve l s  o f  p rocu rement ,  

s tandard  p rocurement  o f  p roducts  and se rv i ces  o ther  than 10 

i tems spec i f ied  in  5 .2  and 5 .3  less  than R50  mi l l ion .   

Whose approva l  was requ i red  the re?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Less than R50  mi l l ion  approva l  was the  

CEO.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   By  the  CEO.   I s  tha t  in  the  co lumn C 

under  GCE? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t  and in  be tween R50 mi l l ion  and  

R200 mi l l ion .  

MS MALAHLELA:   I t  was the  Group CE.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t  and then anyth ing  above  

R200mi l l ion .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Dene l  board .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Dene l  board .   You ment ion  th is  

de legat ion  spec i f i ca l l y  in  a  la te r  sec t ion  o f  you r  a f f idav i t .   
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I s  th is  the  one tha t  app l ies  to  the  re levant  t ransact i ons? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes i t  i s  the  one .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  I  jus t  want  to  unders tand what  

you have a t  page  182.   What  i s  SH on tha t  f i rs t  co lumn tha t  

i s  ver t i ca l?   What  does i t  s tand fo r?  

MS MALAHLELA:   I t  i s  shareho lde r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Shareho lder?  

MS MALAHLELA :   Yes.   I  th ink  there  is  a lso  a  l i s t  o f  

acronyms i f  I  can  jus t  go  to  i t  on  page 177 the  f i rs t  10 

acronym is  SH wh ich  is  shareho lder  DPE.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  qu ick ly  run  th rough these ones he re .   

DBD.  

MS MALAHLELA:   DBD is  Dene l  Board  o f  D i rec tors .   GC.  

CHAIRPERSON:   GC is  Group CEO.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And GEX? 

MS MALAHLELA:   I s  Dene l  EXCO.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Dene l  –  GEX is  Dene l  EXCO.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  i t  l i ke  Group Execut ive .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Commi t tee?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh and then  CO wi l l  be  CO o f  the  
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par t i cu la r  subs id ia ry  o r  d iv i s ion?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   Thank you Mr  Kennedy.  

MS MALAHLELA:   And i f  I  may add Cha i r  so  tha t  means  

the  CEO of  the  Group is  the  GCEO – GCE.  

CHAIRPERSON:   GCE is  Group CEO.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   CEO is  CEO of  a  d iv is ion  or  subs id ia ry  o f  

Dene l .  

MS MALAHLELA:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.   Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   And then i f  we s t i l l  

l ook  a t  tha t  key  o f  –  o f  acronyms o r  abbrev ia t ions on  page  

177 you have taken us  th rough the  one on the  le f t  hand 

s ide .   On the  r igh t  A means what?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Approva l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   PR? 

MS MALAHLELA:   P r imary  Respons ib i l i t y.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   CR? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Co- respons ib i l i ty.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   C?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Consu l ta t ion  Input  Supp l ied .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I?  

MS MALAHLELA:   In i t ia te .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And FI?  
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MS MALAHLELA:   For  In fo rmat ion  rece ived repor t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So  i f  we go  back to  what  I  took  you 

took you ear l ie r  a t  page 182.   I f  we look a t  5 .1 tha t  i s  

s tandard  procurement  o f  p roducts  o ther  than those  

spec i f i ca l l y  ment ioned e l sewhere  less  than R50 mi l l ion  the  

A under  CEO means approva l  by  the  CEO,  is  tha t  r igh t?  

MS MALAHLELA:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And C we  have jus t  seen  means  

Consu l ta t ion  or  input  supp l ied .   

MS MALAHLELA:   Ja .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So  what  does i t  mean in  the  contex t  

o f  less  than R50 mi l l ion?  Does i t  mean the  CEO was  

vested  w i th  the  –  en t rus ted  w i th  the  power  to  approve such 

a  procurement?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes tha t  i s  my unders tand ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And tha t  wou ld  be  as  the  Cha i r ’s  

po in ted  tha t  i s  the  CEO of  the  d i v is ion .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Not  the  Group  CEO? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Cor rec t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   And  then the  C ’s  mean tha t  

the  GCE and the  GEX tha t  i s  the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  

and the  funct iona l  Groups Execu t ive  may be invo lved in  

consu l ta t ion .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Or  wou ld  requ i re  consu l ta t ion .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Which  one?   Would  they have to  be  

consu l ted?  

MS MALAHLELA:   They w i l l  have to  be  consu l ted .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   And then when we get  to  the  –  

be tween R50 mi l l ion  and R200 mi l l ion  we have seen tha t  

the  no ta t ion  is  A fo r  GCE aga in  does not  mean tha t  the  

Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  as  oppose to  the  d iv i s iona l  CEO 

wou ld  have to  approve i t?  10 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And the  Group CE –  the  GCE’s  l im i t  to  

approve a  t ransact ion  the  upper  l im i t  was R200 mi l l ion?  

MS MALAHLELA:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And any th ing  above tha t  wou ld  

requ i re  board  approva l  i f  we look  a t  the  f ina l  bu l le t  po in t  

on  th is  page above R200 mi l l ion  A is  –  appears  under  DBD 

tha t  i s  the  Dene l  Board?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   Thank you.   May we now… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  th i rd  bu l le t  po in t  i s  i t  in tended to  

say R200 mi l l ion  and above?  

MS MALAHLELA:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Of  course  I  guess –  I  guess i t  

means above R200 mi l l ion  because the  –  the  one above  
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tha t  says anyth ing  be tween R50 mi l l ion  and R200  mi l l ion 

the  GDC the  Group CEO has to  approve?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  they cannot  be  two who approve R200 

mi l l ion?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Cannot  be  bo th  t he  board  and the  –  so  –  

so  fo r  the  board  i t  must  anyth ing  above R200 mi l l ion?  

MS MALAHLELA:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   May we then go  back to  

your  s ta tement  page 135 you se t  ou t  an  organogram 

showing the  repor t ing  s t ruc tu res  or  the  p rocu rement  

p rocesses ra the r.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then you  re fer  in  parag raph 2 .12  

to  the  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  mean ing  tha t  depend ing  on 

the  va lue  o f  the  procu rement  you wou ld  be  as  among your  20 

du t ies  prepar ing  a  –  a  submiss ion  fo r  approva l  by  EXCO of  

DLS depend ing  on the  leve l  o f  au thor i t y.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  s t rugg led  Ms Malah le la  to  fo l low 
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the  d iag ram above parag raph 2 .12 .  

MS MALAHLELA:   So… 

CHAIRPERSON:   To  see where  the  f i rs t  s tep  takes  p lace,  

who in i t ia tes  i t  and then the  next  s tep  and so  on .   I  ended  

up see ing  a t  the  bo t tom submi t  to  Group Execut ive  D i rec tor  

and then the  top  ob ta in  approva l .   So I  was not  su re  where  

you s ta r t  and where  you end.   I  am su re  there  is  someth ing  

I  m isunders tood wou ld  you l i ke  to  exp la in  i t  to  me? 

MS MALAHLELA :   Not  a  p rob lem.   Th is  d iagram tha t  you 

see here  i t  was inc luded in  the  procedure  tha t  was  in  p lace  10 

a t  the  t ime when the  t ransact ion  took p lace.   So i f  you  look  

a t  the  va lues there  they are  no t  necessar i l y  in  l ine  w i th  the  

va lues in  the  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y.   I  know they are  too  

smal l  so  the  f i rs t  one tha t  you have is  be tween 0  and 20.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry,  I  am sor ry.   These –  does th is  

d iag ram re la te  spec i f i ca l l y  to  what  happened in  th is  case 

or  th is  i s  jus t  a  genera l  d iag ram to  say th is  wha t  wou ld  

happen genera l l y?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Th i s  i s  a  genera l  d iagram which  was 

inc luded in  the  po l i cy.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay a l r igh t .  

MS MALAHLELA:   They Supp ly  Cha in  –  the  procurement  

po l i cy.   Ja  bu t  the  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  we fo l lowed what  

was app l i cab le  f rom t ime to  t ime as  i t  was issued and sub-

de legated fu r the r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   So  –  so  where  does one s ta r t  when 

someth ing  needs to  happen tha t  i s  re levant  to  th is?  

MS MALAHLELA:   So  i f  our  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  can  see re jec ted  –  re jec ted  –  re jec ted  

and I  see approved –  approved –  approved.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  I  do  no t  see the  s ta r t  and the  

journey.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Okay.   So we  are  s ta r t ing  here  a t  the  

approva l  s tage so  tha t  means you wou ld  no t  necessar i l y  10 

see the  quota t ion  s tage or  the  tender  s tage a t  th is  l eve l .   I t  

happens before  wh ich  is  no t  inc luded in  my s ta tement .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

MS MALAHLELA :   So  I  can take  you th rough the  approva l  

p rocess because tha t  i s  what  I  wan ted you… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh so  th is  i s  about  approva l?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Th is  i s  jus t  about  approva l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Not  about  the  journey before  tha t?  

MS MALAHLELA:   No i t  i s  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   So jus t  ta lk  to  i t  fu r ther.  20 

MS MALAHLELA:   So th is  was to  g ive  ind ica t ion  tha t  i f  

someth ing  needs to  be  approved.   So le t  us  say someth ing  

needs to  go  to  Group EXCO or  Group CE fo r  approva ls .   So 

what  wou ld  happen is  tha t  the  procurement  manager  wou ld  

g ive  approva l  and w i l l  recommend.   I t  w i l l  go  to  the  smal l  
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what  we used to  ca l l  the  smal l  p rocu rement  commi t tee  

wh ich  is  now on  the i r  re fe r red  to  LPC which  is  the  o ld  

acronyms tha t  were  used a  long t ime ago but  we ca l led  i t  

the  smal l  p rocurement  commi t tee .   Then i t  was  

recommended to  the  Group –  oh  sor ry  the  D iv is iona l  EXCO 

and then f rom the  D iv i s iona l  EXCO then i t  w i l l  go  to  the  

Group C –  Execu t ive  D i rec tor  wh ich  is  the  CEO.   Shou ld  I  

use  the  de legat ions tha t  we have in  here  to  exp la in?   So  

le t  us  say someth ing  is  be tween  R50 mi l l ion  and R200 

mi l l ion  as  we have seen in  paragraph 5  Cha i r.  So the  10 

manager  the  procurement  manager  respons ib le  fo r  tha t  

par t i cu la r  sec t ion  o f  p rocurement  be  i t  commerc ia l  o r  

techn ica l  wou ld  then g ive  an  approva l  to  s ign  tha t  they a re  

okay w i th  i t .   Then i t  i s  recommended to  the  smal l  

p rocu rement  commi t tee  wh ich  wou ld  normal ly  approve up  

unt i l  R5 mi l l ion  wh ich  is  a  sub-de legat ion  tha t  i s  why you  

do not  see i t  in  the  Group De legat ion  o f  Author i t y.   Then 

tha t  p rocu rement  commi t tee  wou ld  then recommend to  the  

D iv i s iona l  EXCO Supp ly  Cha in  Commi t tee  wh ich  is  cha i red  

by  the  CEO of  the  d i v is ion .   And then i f  i t  i s  acceptab le  20 

there  then i t  w i l l  be  recommended fu r ther  to  the  Group 

Execut ive  fo r  approva l .   And i f  i t  i s  go ing  to  the  board  then  

i t  w i l l  go  fu r ther  than tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  th is  d iagram dea ls  w i th  amounts  

s ta r t ing  f rom wha t  R20?  
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MS MALAHLELA:   From 0  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   From 0?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   I  can  see 0  to  20 ,000 there .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then I  can see 20,000 to  500,000? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then I  can see is  i t  500,000  be low 

tha t?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes tha t  i s  t rue .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   And then another… 

MS MALAHLELA:   You have got  500 to  10  mi l l ion .   I f  I  may 

Cha i r  so… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  to  10  mi l l ion .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  th is  d iag ram covers  s i tua t ions  tha t  do  

no t  exceed 10 mi l l ion?  

MS MALAHLELA:   So  th is  d iagram was the  de legat ion  o f  

au thor i t y  I  be l ieve  because I  was not  in  the  organ isa t ion  a t  

the  t ime.   The de legat ions o f  au tho r i t y  tha t  were  app l i cab le  20 

when the  procedure  was put  in  p lace  but  they s ince  went  

obso le te  because we or  Dene l  rev i sed the  de legat ion  o f  

au thor i t y  as  and when Corpora te  rev i sed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   So  th is  one is  no  longer  app l i cab le .  

MS MALAHLELA:   So  the  va lue… 

CHAIRPERSON:   A t  the  t ime o f  the  t ransact ions.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.   That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   Then  I  do  no t  need to  bo ther  

myse l f  w i th  th is .   I  thought  … 

MS MALAHLELA:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  thought  i t  was here  because i t  wou ld  be  

app l i cab le .  

MS MALAHLELA:   No.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

MS MALAHLELA:   I t  i s  jus t  to  show the  process.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   A l r igh t .   Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you .   Jus t  to  conf i rm Ms 

Malah le la  th is  does not  appear  to  dea l  w i th  the  s i tua t ion  o f  

someth ing  tha t  i s  to  the  va lue  o f  more  than R200 mi l l ion?  

MS MALAHLELA:   No i t  does not .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay thank you.   And fo r  tha t  we have 

to  look  a t  the  tab le  we looked a t  ea r l ie r  wh ich  requ i red  tha t  

anyth ing  above R200 mi l l ion  wou ld  requ i re  no t  on ly  the  20 

GCE’s  approva l  bu t  a lso  the  board ’s  approva l .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I s  tha t  co r rec t?   R igh t  thank you.   

Now you dea l  f rom page 136 w i th  eva lua t ion  cr i te r ia  tha t  

was –  tha t  were  used in  the  assessment  o f  b ids .   Was th is  
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the  s tandard  process and requ i rement  fo r  when you 

assessed b ids  in  your  capac i ty  in  p rocurement?  

MS MALAHLELA:   A t  the  t ime i t  was not  app l ied  in  the  

d iv is ion  because  i t  was –  there  was s t i l l  –  o r  ra ther  we  

were  s t i l l  app ly ing  the  po l i c i es  and the  procedures tha t  

were  in  p lace  in  the  d iv is ion .   However  Mr  Mlambo had 

a l ready to ld  us  to  s ta r t  app ly ing  the  eva lua t ion  cr i te r ia  as  I  

have a l luded to  in  my s ta tement .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Can I  take  you to  paragraph 3 .4  page  

137.  10 

MS MALAHLELA:   3 .4  ja .   I  have found i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You re fer  to  a  p resenta t ion  by  Mr  

Mlambo.   What  pos i t ion  d id  he  ho ld  a t  tha t  s tage? 

MS MALAHLELA:   He was the  Group Supp ly  Cha in  

Execut ive  or  manager.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So  you were  dea l ing  w i th  Supp ly  

Cha in  Management  in  the  DLS Div is ion .  

MS MALAHLELA:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I s  tha t  cor rec t?   But  he  was a t  the  

Corpora te  Head Off i ce  leve l  o f  Dene l?  20 

MS MALAHLELA:   Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   And he conducted a  

presenta t ion .   I s  tha t  –  i s  tha t  the  meet ing  tha t  you were  

re fer r i ng  to  a  moment  ago where  he  sa id  you must  now 

app ly  a  pa r t i cu la r  c r i te r ia?  
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MS MALAHLELA:   So  we used to  have –  I  w i l l  re fe r  to  two  

meet ings.   We used to  have regu lar  Group Supp ly  Cha in  

meet ings where  we wou ld  d iscuss Supp ly  Cha in  i ssues in  

the  group.   So he re fer red  to  in  the  –  in  one o f  those 

sess ions bu t  he  a lso  re fer red  to  i t  in  th is  sess ion  where  the  

supp ly  –  i t  was essent ia l l y  no t  a  meet ing  i t  was a  supp l ie r  

day i f  I  may ca l l  i t  tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then he gave –  he  ind i ca ted  tha t  

cer ta in  eva lua t ion  cr i te r i a  had to  be  used in  the  Dene l  

g roup.  10 

MS MALAHLELA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   D id  tha t  mean tha t  you in  DLS were  

requ i red  to  app ly  these cr i te r i a?  

MS MALAHLELA:   That  i s  cor rec t .   As  a  d iv i s ion  o f  Dene l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Now these th ree  i tems in  351,  

352 and 353 are  they the  cr i te r i a  tha t  he  then sa id  you 

must  now use?  

MS MALAHLELA:   That  i s  cor rec t  as  I  have taken tha t  f rom 

the  presenta t ion  wh ich  he  had made wh ich  is  an  annexure  

to  th is  s ta tement .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I s  tha t  what  you re fer  to  aga in  a t  the  

end o f  paragraph 3 .4?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Le t  me jus t  doub le  check 3 .4 .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  i s  the  presenta t ion?  

MS MALAHLELA:   CM5 yes tha t  i s  the  one.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   And i f  I  can  take  you p lease to  

page 209 and 23  –  210.   So i t  i s  209 and 210 is  tha t  the  

agenda tha t  you re fer red  to  in  your  a f f idav i t?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes fo r  the  Supp l ie r  Day.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   Go back to  page 137.   So  

the  th ree  cr i te r i a  were  pr i ce ,  funct iona l i t y  and  BBBEE.   

P r ice  was 25% funct iona l i t y  45% and BBBEE 30%.   You 

ment ion  in  3 .6  tha t  these cr i te r ia  and par t i cu la r l y  tha t  the  

a l loca t ion  o f  –  o f  po in ts  based on BBBEE re la ted  to  the 

Group S t ra teg i c  Ob jec t ive  o f  Increase B lack  Supp l ie r  Pu l l .   10 

So I  no t ice  fo r  example  the  BBBEE propor t ion  was  30% a 

b i t  h igher  than pr ice  wh ich  was 25%.   I s  –  does th is  re f lec t  

the  po in t  requ i red  by  Mr  Mlambo in  te rms o f  Group Po l icy  

to  be  improv ing  b lack  rep resent i t i v i t y  in  the  Supp l ie r  Poo l?  

MS MALAHLELA:   That  i s  cor rec t .   Th is  i s  what  he  a lso  

sa id  in  an  emai l  wh ich  I  th ink  I  have a t tached to  th is  as  

par t  o f  h im sens i t i s ing  tha t  we need to  app ly  the  cr i te r ia  

go ing  fo rward .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   And i f  you –  you re fer  to  an 

emai l  in  3 .7  i s  tha t  the  emai l  tha t  you have jus t  ment ioned? 20 

MS MALAHLELA:   Le t  me jus t  doub le  check.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Jus t  look  a t  3 .7 .   I s  tha t  what  you 

re fer r i ng  to?  

MS MALAHLELA:   I  jus t  need to  check the  page where  the  

emai l  i s  so  tha t… 



27 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 292 
 

Page 24 of 260 
 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes we l l  jus t  –  yes we l l  le t  me take  

you to  tha t .   I t  i s  a t  page 212.   212 .    

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes th is  appears  to  be  the  one.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   And so  tha t  re fe rs  to  a  process 

a t  Group leve l  among the  execut ives  a t  g roup leve l  and the  

fo rmula t ion  o f  a  po l i cy  to  improve  Dene l ’s  spend on b lack  

owned and b lack  women owned compan ies?  

MS MALAHLELA:   Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And recent  aud i t  f rom –  conducted by  

De lo i t tes  wh ich  re f lec ted  tha t  wh ich  found tha t  there  was a  10 

var ia t ion  in  imp lementa t ion  across the  group and the re  was  

now a  need to  s tandard ise  th is  and to  impose a  c lear  leve l  

o f  c r i te r ia .  

MS MALAHLELA:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I s  tha t  cor rec t?   R igh t .   Thank you.   

Then to  go  back  to  page 137 pa ragraph 3 .8  you se t  ou t  

app l i cab le  in te rna l  p rocu rement  po l i c ies  and you have 

re fer red  to  th is  spec i f i c  documents  in  tha t  regard .   Now d id  

you take  in to  account  what  we have jus t  dea l t  w i th ;  the  

cr i te r ia ,  the  po l i c ies  and procedures when you then 20 

proceed to  –  proceeded to  dea l  w i th  the  eva lua t ion  o f  the 

var ious b ids  or  o f fe rs  tha t  we a re  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  in  

re la t ion  to  the  spec i f i c  cont rac ts  tha t  a re  the  sub jec t  o f  the  

res t  o f  your  a f f idav i t .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   May we turn to the f i rst  of  

those contracts,  page 138,  paragraph 4? 

MS MALAHLELA :    138.   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Do you have i t?  

MS MALAHLELA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Do you have paragraph 4? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  I  have paragraph 4.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   I  am going to take you through 

i t .   That  deals speci f ical ly wi th  the f i rst  contract  of  interest  

here.   And that  is the appointment by DLS for whom you 10 

worked of  VR Laser  Services speci f ical ly  for the product ion 

of  217 armour hul ls for the Hoefyster plat form component.   

And that  took place in 2014.   Correct? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   Now, you refer f i rst  to a 

submission that  was made to DLS Exco in Apri l  2014 

recommending the appointment  of  VR Laser Services for  

these 217 armour hul ls.   And you say in 4.1.1.  that  there was 

a submission to the Exco of  DLS.  So that  is the d ivis ion.   

That  is not  at  group level  at  th is stage.  20 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .  

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you signed off  a  submission 

re lat ing to quotat ions that  have been received f rom three 
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ent i t ies.    

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And those were LMT, DCD Dorbyl  and 

VR Laser.   And then you refer to yoursel f  being a member of  

the team together  wi th  Mr Badenhorst .   Wel l ,  you have 

received an instruct ion,  rather,  f rom Mr Badenhorst .   Who 

was he? 

MS MALAHLELA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You refer to him in 4.1.2.   Pro ject  

Manager,  Transfer of  Technology Plat form.  To at tend a 10 

meet ing to discuss progress.   Is that  correct? 

MS MALAHLELA :    yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And Badenhorst ,  you ment ion at  the 

foot  of  the page.  Had previously been employed in the 

Supply Chain Management Department as a procurement 

off icer.   Was that  DLS’s Supply Chain Department? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  i t  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So you say he had been involved in  

the procurement  process pr ior  to having his  posi t ion 

changed.  Then you referred to a report ,  4.1.4.   Submit ted by 20 

a Finland company,  Pat r ia Land Services.   What was Patr ia  

involved in?  What was i ts relevance to th is? 

MS MALAHLELA :    So Patr ia was the only or the. . .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is i t  what  you referred to in 4.1.5,  the 

or ig inal  equipment manufacturers? 
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MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  that  is the one.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  the abbreviat ion OEM? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .  

MS MALAHLELA :    Original  Equipment Manufacturer of  the 

vehicle.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .    

MS MALAHLELA :    Which is  the badger(?)  or the 

interchange leader(?) who faced(?) the vehicle.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And. . .  but  th is was a new 10 

contract  for the supply of  217 armour hul ls.   Had Pat r ia i tse l f  

suppl ied a number of  s imi lar i tems to Denel  pr ior to th is 

contract  be ing awarded to VR Laser? 

MS MALAHLELA :    I  cannot say but  there were other 

vehicles that  they were busy wi th  but  let  me not  speak to  

that  because I  do not  have the exact  facts.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A lr ight .   Thank you.   Then you referred 

to the meet ing that  Mr Badenhorst  had asked you to at tend 

together wi th the people ment ioned in 4.1.6.   Is that  r ight? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Bezuidenhout,  Chebis(?)  van den 

Heever,  Drevon(?)  and Van te Nel l (?).  

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then you say,  you were f i rst  –  th is  

is at  the foot  of  the page – you were f i rst  made aware of  the 
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three suppl iers responses to the RFO.  So had there been a 

request  for off ice that  had been put  out  before this? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  I  bel ieve so before I  jo ined the 

organisat ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   You say that  that  was dated,  the 

RFO was dated February 2012.  That  was before you jo ined.   

I  th ink you jo ined in May 2012  Is that  r ight? 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   So you came into the process 

mid-st ream.  10 

MS MALAHLELA :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Would that  be fai r  to say? 

MS MALAHLELA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   And there had been responses 

to that  RFO.   

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    From LMT, DCD and VR Laser.   So that  

meet ing took place and a submission was then to  deal  in  

Exco.   We see at  the top of  page 40,  paragraph 418.    

 And that  contained a recommendat ion as to which 20 

suppl ier should be appointed for  th is part icular contract .   

And you refer in  4.1.9.   So that  having been prepared in 

Apri l  2014 by Mr Badenhorst  and that  was submit ted to you.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    For  your considerat ion and onward 
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t ransmission to the Exco.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then you referred to annexures 

which has set  out  the relevant  correspondence.   I f  I  can just  

ask you to turn for  a moment to pages 255 and 256? 

MS MALAHLELA :    H’m, 255. . .   Yes,  I  have found i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Is that  the correspondence via 

emai l  that  you were referr ing to in your aff idavi t?  

MS MALAHLELA :    Sorry,  I  just . . .   The correspondence 

re lat ing to?  I f  you can just  help me with that? 10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The emai ls f rom Mr Badenhorst  

re lat ing to the recommendat ion.  

MS MALAHLELA :    I  was on 155.   My apologies.   So i t  is 

255? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    255.   Especia l ly 256.    

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A lr ight .   Thank you.   Now back to page 

140.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   That  is an emai l  f rom whom to 

whom? 20 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is an emai l  f rom Riaan to mysel f ,  

cc’ ing the programme r ights.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  is Riaan Badenhorst .    

MS MALAHLELA :    Mr Badenhorst .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  Mr Badenhorst .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Chai r,  i t  may assist  i f  you have regard 

to page 255 which bears the emai l  detai ls of  when i t  was 

sent  by whom and to whom. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay alr ight .   I  was expect ing to that 

at  256.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   Cont inue.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So this emai l ,  i t  seems, was pressing 

for a speedy decision to be made on the award of  the 

business? 

MS MALAHLELA :    I t  was one of  the emai ls that  was 

pressing for a decision to be made because there was also 

pressure f rom Pat r ia ’s side.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Pressure f rom Patr ia ’s side? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Patr ia ’s side.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Because now we were running into 20 

leap(?) t imes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R ight .   Now in your statement at  page 

140 at  para 4.1.11.   You say that  a f inal  submission was 

concluded on 25 Apri l  2014 for considerat ion at  i ts meet ing 

on the 29t h  of  that  month.   And that  recommended that  VR 
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Laser be appointed as the preferred suppl ier in the plat form 

hul ls manufactur ing cont ract .   Is that  r ight? 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then i f  I  can take you now to 

CM10.  You wi l l  f ind that  at  page 258 and fol lowing.   There is 

an emai l  f rom Linda Meyer to Exco,  Exco secretar ies and 

yoursel f ,  Cel ia Malahlela.   Correct? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And was the document that  then 

appears f rom page 259 at tached to that? 10 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  i t  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And what is the document at  259 and 

fol lowing? 

MS MALAHLELA :    I t  is a submission to the Group Chief  

Execut ive asking for his recommendat ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And were you involved in i ts  

compi lat ion? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  I  was.   I . . .   Yes,  I  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And so i t  is addressed,  i f  you see just  

under the logo of  Denel ,  the top le f t -hand part  of  th is page 20 

259.   You wi l l  see the next  block,  to Exco.   Is that  DLS’s 

Excos? 

MS MALAHLELA :    At  which page?  Excuse.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Page 259.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Okay.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    You see at  the top lef t  there is a Denel  

logo.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Oh,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Then there is a heading,  Group Chief  

Execut ive Off icer Supply Chain Approval .   And then the next  

l ine,  i t  is addressed to Exco.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  DLS Exco? 

MS MALAHLELA :    I t  is DLS Exco.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Not  Group Exco of  Denel? 10 

MS MALAHLELA :    Not  Group Exco.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .    

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i t  comes f rom Supply Chain of 

which you were part? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.   As you have referred to.   The 

document was draf ted by Riaan and sent  to me for. . .  that  I  

look at  i t  and then recommended through Exco.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   So you approved this draf t  that  

you have f rom Mr Badenhorst  and then you sent  i t  wi th you 20 

recommendat ion to Exco? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  correct? 

MS MALAHLELA :    For considerat ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then i f  we look at  page 261,  
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paragraph 8,  the recommendat ion.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Page 261? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Page 261,  yes.   Paragraph 8.   Af ter 

ref lect ing the evaluat ion and the comments and so forth,  the 

recommendat ion is that :  

“Denel  Land Systems Exco g ive approval  to use VR 

Lasers as the Hoefyster Plat form hul l  suppl ier.   Due 

to the value of  th is t ransact ion deal ,  i t  must  seek 

f inal  approval  f rom Group CEO and the Board of  

Denel .    10 

We t rust  that  th is document gives enough 

informat ion to enable DOS Exco to give i ts blessings 

and make the recommendat ion as st ipulated above. ”  

 So you were saying to Exco DLS:  

“Please approve this recommendat ion and then also 

go to the Group CEO for his approval . ”  

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   The value of  the t ransact ion,  

are you able to te l l  us what the value is? 

MS MALAHLELA :    [No audible reply]   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I f  you look on page 260,  paragraph 3.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Thank you.   260,  paragraph 3.   So the 

tota l  potent ia l  contract  value was R 364 774 839,00.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A l r ight .   So this would clear ly be way 

above R 200 mi l l ion which was the l imi t  of  the Group CEO’s 
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author i ty? 

MS MALAHLELA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  correct? 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .   So that  is why in my 

recommendat ion I  recommended that  i t  goes to the board.   

And i f  you also refer to page 7,  you wi l l  see that  the last  

page is that  we take for recommendat ion at  the Divis ional  

Exco and then af ter  that  i t  goes to the Group Exco and then 

ul t imately to the board.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .  10 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  was the intent ion.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Thank you.   Okay back to page 

140,  please.  

MS MALAHLELA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    4.1.13 refers to an agenda.  And just  

look for a moment at  page 265.   Is  that  the agenda you are 

referr ing to? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Page 265.   Let  me just  get  there.   I t  

seems to be the one but  I  note that  there seems to be an 

error wi th regard to the dates because i f  you look at  the date 20 

that  appears on the agenda, i t  says the 27t h of  Apr i l  and on 

4.1.13,  we are referr ing to the 29t h .   I f  we can just  conf i rm 

that  for correctness.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Thank you.   And in fact ,  there 

seems to be a di f ference in the paragraph to that  which you 
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ment ioned in your statement which I  have just  picked up 

now.  But  I  do not  th ink anything turns on that  Chai r? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You then in your statement,  page 140-

41-14.   You say:  

“ I t  can be noted under paragraph 7 of  the DLS Exco 

submission of  25 Apri l  2014. . . ”  

 That  is the document we looked at  a moment ago at  

page 261.   Is that  correct? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  that  is the one.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Then to cont inue in your statement.  

“The Patr ia report  had been integrated into the 

recommendat ion of  the cross-funct ional  team for the 

appointment of  VR Laser as the preferred suppl ier  

for th is contract . ”  

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You say:  

“Al though the Pat r ia report  had been used in support  

of  the decision to recommend VR Laser,  i t  is  

submit ted that  VR Laser would have been 20 

recommended.”  

 Now who is submit t ing here?  Whose v iew is th is?  Is  

th is your view? 

MS MALAHLELA :    No.   We.. .  I  do not  want to  cal l  th is a 

cross-funct ional  team because i t  was not  s i t t ing as a formal  
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cross-funct ional  team.  So we sat  as a team that  looked at  

the quotat ions.   I f  you refer to 1.1.6.1.   That  is the view of  

the team.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Sorry,  what number were you g iving? 

MS MALAHLELA :    4.1.6.   Where I  am ment ioning that  we 

sat  to look at  the quotat ions that  had been sent  to us.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  yes.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   So the view was that  VR Laser  

had offered the most  compet i t ive pr ice out  of  the three 10 

suppl iers.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.   And on the face of  that ,  i f  you go to 

page 2,  you wi l l  real ise that  the cheapest  pr ice wi th  regard 

to that  part icular RFO was VR Laser.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Sorry.   Can you just  hold on a second?  

The page 2,  are you referr ing to page 260? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Sorry.   Yes,  that  is the one.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  is page 2 of  the document but  i f  you 20 

can just  t ry and bear in mind that  we must  use the page 

numbers on the top lef t .  

MS MALAHLELA :    I  wi l l .   I  wi l l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And so you refer to the three pr ices 

here.   Is that  in the middle of  the page where the column is 



27 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 292 
 

Page 37 of 260 
 

headed supply and amount pr ices per uni t .   And we see 

there at  LMT worth offer ing as a pr ice per uni t  R 1.7 odd 

mi l l ion.   VR Laser R 865 010.00.   And DCD sl ight ly  higher,  

R 896 000,00.  

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So LMT was roughly double what VR 

Laser was offer ing in terms of  th is response to the RFO. 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And so to go back to your paragraph 

4.1.15,  page 140.   So you are saying:  10 

“Al though Pat r ia,  the or ig inal  manufacturer,  had 

recommended VR Laser for the var ious reasons,  i t  

had. . . ”  

 The reason why you in your sect ion were recommending 

approval  of  VR Laser ’s appointment was that  i t  was offer ing 

the best  pr ice? 

MS MALAHLELA :    True.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And then you have set  out  

helpful ly at  the top of  page 141 in your statement the same 

table ref lect ing the pr ices.  20 

MS MALAHLELA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now you say at  4.1.16:  

“Short ly before sign ing off  the submission of  

25 Apri l  2014,  which recommended VR Laser ’s  

appointment and emai l ing i t  to Exco. . . ”  
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 You received an emai l  f rom Mr Thebus request ing that  

you check the shareholders agreement in place between LMT 

and Denel  Land Systems.  Now LMT was one of  the bidders 

in th is three bid process.  

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And we have al ready seen that  is pr ice 

was double that  o f  VR Laser whom you were recommending.  

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now why was i t . . .  you do not  seem to 

have at tached the emai l  but  again,  you do explain i t  in your 10 

statement.   You say he was asking you to check the 

shareholders’ agreement between LMT and Denel  Land 

Systems, DLS.  What was that  shareholders agreement?   

 The Commission has heard evidence in relat ions to LMT,  

or ig inal ly being an independent ent i ty and later there was an 

agreement between Denel  and the shareholders of  LMT 

which was a lready supply ing Denel  regular ly wi th i tems.   

 In terms of  that  agreement,  Denel  acquired a major i ty  

shareholding in LMT.  Is th is the shareholding agreement 

that  was referred to? 20 

MS MALAHLELA :    I  bel ieve that  is the one that  he was 

referr ing to.   I  was not  that  involved wi th. . .  in relat ion to 

shareholders agreement.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA :    But  I  bel ieve that  is  the one that  he was 
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referr ing to.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R ight .   And Mr Thebus is a wi tness 

who has been consul t ing wi th us and submit ted an aff idavi t  

and wi l l  be giv ing evidence at  a later stage before the Chair  

of  th is Commission.  

MS MALAHLELA :    I  am sure he wi l l  be able to speak to  

that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    He wi l l  deal  wi th that .   But  you say in 

4.1.17 that  the indicat ion you got  f rom Mr Thebus was that  

his request  that  you look into the shareholders agreement 10 

was informed by communicat ion he had received f rom LMT’s 

Managing Director  at  the t ime, Dr Stephan Nel .    

 Now i f  I  can just  indicate for your  knowledge and the 

Chair  that  Dr Nel ’s evidence wi l l  a lso be produced before 

this Commission at  a later stage.    

 Now the point  that  Dr Nel  raised wi th Thebus,  accord ing 

to what Thebus told you,  was that  Dr Nel  was complaining.   

He accused DOS of  cont ravening the shareholders 

agreement by contract ing,  by indicat ing that  i t  was going to  

contract  for th is  i tem with other  part ies,  presumable VR 20 

Laser.    

 So effect ively,  he was saying on behal f  of  LMT that :   We 

have an ent i t lement to th is business.   Do not  give i t  to 

someone else.   Is  that  your understanding of  what Mr Thebus 

said? 
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MS MALAHLELA :    That  was my understanding,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   And then you refer in 4.1.18 to a 

further emai l  that  you received.   This t ime f rom Mr Knoetze,  

the Chief  Financia l  Off icer,  the CFO of  DOS at  the t ime.   

 And he sa id he recal led a le t ter s igned by DLS 

conf i rming that  DOS would put  business of  the manufactur ing 

house to LMT as a condi t ion to the equi ty deal  involving the 

purchase of  LMT.   

 So Mr Knoetze has indicated that  yes this may relate to  

a let ter indicat ing that  LMT would be given business.  10 

MS MALAHLELA :    A That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And wi l l  be giving business once the 

major i ty shareholding in LMT was sold to Denel .    

MS MALAHLELA :    My . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Was that  your  understanding? 

MS MALAHLELA :    I  cannot speak to that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Because we.. .   The other th ing is that ,  

th is let ter,  we did not  f ind i t  and I  see. . .   I f  you refer to  the 

emai ls further down by Ms Govender,  you wi l l  real ise that  20 

she is referr ing to  the emai l  not  being found.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .  

MS MALAHLELA :    The. . .   Sorry,  the let ter not  being found.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   In  fact ,  in your  4.1.21,  you refer 

to the chain of  emai l  correspondence at tached to CM12.  
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May I  take you please to page 267 and fol lowing? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Page 267. . .   Yes,  I  found i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And that  is emai l  correspondence 

which includes a number of  at tachments which appear to  be 

documents . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    . . . that  relate to LMT.  

MS MALAHLELA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now did you invest igate this then at  

the request  of  Mr Thebus? 10 

MS MALAHLELA :    The group. . .   The legal  execut ive 

invest igated i t  for us and wrote a report .   As you can see,  my 

statement later on refers to the emai ls and what she said.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   Let  us go back to that  statement  

of  yours,  page 141.  

MS MALAHLELA :    H’m. 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Paragraph 4.1.19.   Now Ms Denise 

Govender,  you referred to as the Execut ive Legal  for Denel  

Land System,  DLS.  And she sent  a response which is part  of  

the emai l  correspondence which is at tached there.  20 

MS MALAHLELA :    Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And she at tached a number of  

documents,  4.19.1 a draf t  shareholders agreement between 

DLS and LMT.  Submission to the board of  Denel  Group.   

Not i fy ing of  a revised t ransact ion.   Request ing approval .    
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 Reduct ion of  Denel ’s shareholding f rom 70% to 51%, et  

cetera.   A cal l  opt ion,  et  cetera.   And then 4.1.21 you refer to  

Ms Govender referr ing to page 6 of  the Denel  Board 

submission.   And the reasons why Denel  was acqui r ing a 

major i ty shareholding in LMT.  Is that  correct? 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is what  Mr Govender referred to  

. . . [ intervenes]   

MS MALAHLELA :    To.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    . . . to your. . .  to  you.  10 

MS MALAHLELA :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R ight .   And then. . .   So what was the 

upshot of  th is invest igat ion undertaken by Ms Govender?  

You were made aware that  LMT’s CEO, at  the t ime Dr Nel ,  

was saying that  they should be given preference rather than 

anybody else.   They should be g iven the work because now 

they were major i ty owned by Denel .    

 Part  of  the deal  was that  work would go to  LMT.   

Instead,  you now looking at  a  more compet i t ive process 

which we know ul t imately  resul ted in the award of  the 20 

contract  to VR Laser rather than LMT.  What was the upshot 

of  Ms Govender ’s invest igat ion? 

MS MALAHLELA :    I  would . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  i t  could go ahead or not .  

MS MALAHLELA :    I  wi l l  take you to paragraph 1.1.2.4.   I t  
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has a summary of  di fferent  documents that  she looked at  and 

her  advice wi th  regard to each and every document,  

appl icable document.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  thank you.   So that  is 4.1.24 on 

page 143.    

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And her conclusion and presumable 

you are not . . .  your funct ion was not  to comment on whether 

her legal  conclusion was correct  or not? 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A l though you have an LLB, she was 

employed as Group Execut ive of  Legal .  

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is t rue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   So her conclusion was in  relat ion 

to 4.1.24.1 that  the MOU between DLS and LMT did not  

impose a legal ly binding obl igat ion on Denel  to  cont ract  LMT 

for th is part icular contract? 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is what she wrote.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And the MOU was no longer 

enforced.   In 4.1.24.2,  there was no legal  obl igat ion ar is ing 20 

f rom a contract  for  hul ls.   And then an opt ion to purchase 

agreement,  a lso did not  place a legal ly enforceable 

obl igat ion.    

 And she also deal t  wi th a let ter by DLS’s CO to 

Khomotso.   The Commission has heard ev idence and we wi l l  
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hear evidence relat ing to Khomotso.   That  was a minori ty  

shareholding in LMT af ter Denel  required the major i ty 

shareholding.    

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Were you aware of  that? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A l r ight .   So then you referred to 

Ms Govender ’s emai l .   I  am not  going to  go into the content  

of  that  because you have already summarised i t  in  your 

statement.   That  is at tached.. .   Let  me just  f ind the page.  I t  10 

is f rom page 284.   Is that  correct? 

MS MALAHLELA :    I  just  need to conf i rm.  That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A l r ight .   Thank you.   Now I  would l ike 

to turn in your statement to page 144 and that  is the 

adjudicat ion of  the updated request  for proposals for th is HY, 

Hoefyster contract  in June 2014.  

  So you were now able,  as I  understand your evidence.  

Once Ms Govender said there is no legal  obl igat ion for Denel  

to g ive the business to LMT automat ical ly,  you can then. . .  

you were then able to proceed to evaluate these. . .   Oh,  20 

sorry.   To have these bids adjudicated and an award made.  

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Now, what reference is then 

made in 4.2.2 to a process in  which the bidders were asked 

to amend or update their  proposals to contain a breakdown 
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of  the pr ices and the i tems that  we see in 4.2.2.1 to  4.2.2.3 

are the i tems.  So you requi red a breakdown.  Why was 

there. . .  why was i t  necessary to have a breakdown of  the 

overal l  pr ices that  they had submit ted? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Because i t  was not  c lear what each 

bidders quoted for.   We could not  compare apples wi th 

apples.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   And then you refer in 4.2.5 to 

the responses received f rom the three suppl iers,  LMT, VR 

Laser and DCD.  And you then summarise in 4.2.6 the 10 

pr ic ing that  was actual ly received.  

MS MALAHLELA :    H’m.. .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  correct? 

MS MALAHLELA :    In 4.2.6? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    4.2.6.   And then you give the. . .  how i t  

is broken down where appl icable.   LMT, however,  in  

4.2.6.1. . .   Are you wi th me? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  I  am with you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    LMT gave a response in which i t  

quoted an amount of  R 736 534,00 excluding VAT.  That  for 20 

each of  the 217 hul ls,  i t  ind icated that :  

“ I t  is not  possib le to quote for mine protect ion 

separately as i t  is an integral  part  of  the whole 

st ructures.”  

 Now you had asked for a breakdown speci f ical ly to  see 



27 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 292 
 

Page 46 of 260 
 

what  is your pr ice for the mine protect ion system separately  

f rom the rest .  

MS MALAHLELA :    So i f  I  may just  go back a l i t t le b i t?  So 

we submit ted the documentat ion to Exco.   The 

documentat ion coming f rom the f i rst  RFO that  was issued 

out .   And Exco recommended that  we go and get  rev ised 

quotat ions because we could not  see what the suppl iers 

actual ly quoted for and al l  of  that  is  in the minute.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   So that  was a decision by Exco,  

not  by yoursel f?  10 

MS MALAHLELA :    I t  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   But  did you implement that  

decision . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MALAHLELA :    To reissue? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    . . .by why of  asking these three bidders 

to g ive a broken down pr ice? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  we did.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Are you able to te l l  us,  when we 

look at  LMT’s rev ised submission in 4.2.6.1,  the quot ing of  

an amount of  R 736 000,00 excluding VAT.  Was that  the 20 

same as what they previously tendered or di fferent? 

MS MALAHLELA :    I t  was di fferent .   I t  was more than hal f  

the pr ice.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    More than hal f?  

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.   So i f  we can just  go there.    
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  we saw earl ier that  i t  was over  a 

mi l l ion rand,  was i t  not? 

MS MALAHLELA :    I  th ink i t  was around R 1.7 mi l l ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Double the eight  hundred 

something thousand submit ted by . . . [ indist inct ]   

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So here you have a dramat ic  reduct ion 

in LMT.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Sure .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Wi th  the  purpose o f  ge t t ing  a  10 

breakdown to  a l low supp l ie rs  to  change the i r  p r ices  

overa l l .  

MS MALAHLELA:    S ince a  lo t  o f  t ime had e lapsed I  take  i t  

tha t  –  o r  shou ld  I  say –  how do I  pu t  tha t?   I t  was expected 

tha t  the  pr ice  cou ld  be  d i f fe ren t  bu t  we d id  no t  expect  tha t  

the  pr ice  wou ld  go  down.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   And then …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  in  the  end what  was the  exp lanat ion 

fo r  tha t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  ta lk  to  i t  la te r  on  in  my a f f idav i t ,  I  20 

th ink  he  is  go ing  to  ge t  to  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you remember  what  the  exp lanat ion  

was?  

MS MALAHLELA:    They…I… 

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  you  do not  remember  you can dea l  
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w i th  i t  la te r,  I  thought  you  might  jus t  remember  

…[ in tervenes]  

MS MALAHLELA:    The top  o f  my …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sounds an awkward  th ing .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .   Top o f  my head,  le t  me not… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Le t  us  jus t  ge t  to  i t  then I  know I  am 

re fer r i ng  to  the  ac tua l  s tu f f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   A l r igh t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Can I  take  you pe rhaps as  the  Cha i r  10 

has ra i sed th is  i ssue,  to  page 149?  Le t  us  jus t  jump ahead 

fo r  a  moment  to  page 149,  paragraph 42.21.   Do you have  

i t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    42 .21?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   You say:  

“The pr ic ing  conta ined in  the  rev i sed proposa ls  o f  

27  June 2014 can  be summar ised as  fo l lows:  

42 .21 .1    LMT sought  to  exp la in  i t s  p r i c ing  w i th  20 

respect  to  the  2017 hu l l s (?)  in  the i r  

p rev ious l y  submi t ted  proposa l  by 

d is t ingu ish ing  be tween the  in te r io r  and  

ex te r io r  fea tu res  o f  each hu l l  as  fo l lows:  

(a )  The un i t  p r ice  o f  the  217 hu l l s  were  
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R736 534 each  where  sandb las t ing  and 

pr im ing was inc luded,  and  

(b)   The un i t  p r ice  o f  the  217 hu l l s  were  

R763 191.02 each where  sandb las t ing  and  

pa in t ing  o f  each  hu l l  w i th  mat t  oak ear th  

ex te r io r  and be ige  green as  per  the  RSA 

spec was inc luded. ”  

That  does not  seem to  ac tua l l y  g i ve  an  exp lanat ion  fo r  why  

there  was such a  substant ia l  decrease.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja ,  there  was anothe r  sect ion  where  10 

they a l l uded to  hav ing  improved  the  processes but  i t  i s  

somewhere  i n  the  documenta t ion ,  I  can jus t  ge t  i t  and re fer  

to  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  le t  us  dea l  w i th  tha t  in  due 

course  then.   A l r igh t ,  le t  us  go  back to  your  page 145.   So 

you dea l  no t  on l y  w i th  LMT’s  rev ised proposa l  bu t  a lso  tha t  

o f  VR Laser  and then there  is  a  re ference to  the  breakdown 

fo r  them.   In  re la t ion  to  DCD you dea l  w i th  tha t  in  42 .64  on 

the  foo t  o f  page 146 and a  tab le  a t  the  top  ha l f  o f  –  sor ry,  

146,  f rom 145,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  20 

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t ,  now in  4 .2 .8  you re fer  to  a  

team meet ing  on  1  Apr i l  2015 to  cons ide r  the  responses 

and you then in  429 say tha t  you ca l led  fo r  a  c ross-

funct iona l  team to  eva lua te  the  updated proposa ls ,  i s  tha t  
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cor rec t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you se t  ou t  the  names o f  the  

ind iv idua ls  who were  inv i ted  to  s i t  on  the  cross- funct iona l  

team.   In  4 .2 .10 ,  Mr  Badenhors t ,  Bezu idenhout ,  B revan,  

e tce te ra  and your  name appears  a t  4 .2 .7 .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   And you a lso  invo l ved the  

ass is tance o f  a  Mr  Rhakaduwe o f  the  supp ly  cha in  

management  depar tment .  10 

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now le t  us  move ahead to  42 .14 .    

MS MALAHLELA:    Found i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    On page 148.   That  i s  where  your  

c ross- funct iona l  team eva lua ted the  th ree  supp l ie rs ’ 

responses on the  25  June and a  l is t  o f  quest ions was noted  

requ i r ing  c la r i f i ca t ion .   Cor rec t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  we looked  a t  the 

quota t ions rece ived on the  25 t h  and we ca l led  fo r  a  meet ing  

the  fo l low ing day.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And what  f lowed f rom tha t  was on the  

fo l low ing day,  there  were  feedback  sess ions or  a  feedback  

sess ion  a t tended  by  the  th rees supp l ie rs  separa te ly,  VR 

Laser,  DCD and LMT,  d i f fe ren t  t imes tha t  you spec i fy.   Was  

tha t  fo r  the  quest ions to  be  posed fo r  the i r  c la r i f i ca t ion?  
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MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Now we do not  need to  go  

in to  the  de ta i l  o f  what  was done then and then in  4 .2 .20  

the  cross- funct iona l  team then gave the  th ree  supp l ie rs  an  

oppor tun i ty  to  submi t  rev ised p roposa ls  based on the  

issues ra i sed.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And they then submi t ted  the i r  rev i sed 

proposa ls .   In  fac t ,  Cha i r,  I  see  I  was confused,  the  

re ference I  gave  ear l ie r  to  42 .21  re la tes  to  these  rev ised  10 

proposa ls .   Le t  me jus t  check w i th  you,  Ms Malah le la .   So 

was th is  anothe r  oppor tun i ty  fo r  them to  rev i se  the i r  

p roposa ls  aga in?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  i f  they  I  m isunders tood anyth ing  

and our  in i t ia l  documenta t ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  

MS MALAHLELA:    A f te r  the  c la r i f i ca t ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   So they had o r ig ina l l y  

submi t ted  pr ices ,  then they were  asked to  b reak the i r  

p r ices  down and some o f  them d id ,  some o f  them d id  no t  20 

and then –  and then there  is  ye t  a  fu r ther  oppor tun i ty  fo r  

rev i sed proposa ls .  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Ja ,  was th is  normal  p rocedure  to  

a l low them to  rev i se  the i r  p roposa l?  
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MS MALAHLELA:    I t  was not  –  I  cannot  say  tha t  we have  

done i t  be fore  on  a  spec i f i c  o rde r  bu t  i t  makes sense to  be  

ab le  to  eva lua te  app les  w i th  –  to  unders tand tha t  everyone 

quoted on the  same parameters  because i f  you look a t  the  

quota t ions you rea l i se  tha t  some o f  them a re  i nc luded 

pa in t ing ,  some o f  them d id  no t  i nc lude pa in t ing .   So we 

wanted to  have a  proper  c la r i f i ca t ion ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   And then they submi t ted  the 

rev i sed proposa ls .   We see in  42 .21 .2 ,  DCD d id  no t  change 

i t s  p r ic ing .  10 

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    VR Laser  gave an updated proposa l  

bu t  there  was no rev i s ion  in  the  ac tua l  p r ic ing .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i t  jus t  gave o ther  in fo rmat ion  

and –  yes,  there  is  no  ment ion  –  I  beg your  pa rdon ,  I  must  

s ta r t  LMT,  we dea l t  w i th  tha t  ear l i e r,  42 .21 .1 .   A l r igh t  and 

then 42.24 re fe rs  to  the  same cr i te r ia ,  p r ice  func t iona l i t y  

and BBBEE wi th  the  percentages as  ment ioned to  ear l ie r,  

cor rec t?  20 

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t  and then the re  was a  templa te .   

And do I  unders tand f rom tha t  tha t  the  templa te  was then  

used to  tabu la te  the  eva lua t ion  o f  the  th ree  b ids .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Cor rec t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   And you then say i n  42 .26  

tha t  VR Laser  rece ived the  h ighest  score  o f  65 .54%.   And 

then fo r  p r ice  i t  go t  10 .3 .9% of  a  po ten t ia l  25%,  

funct iona l i t y,  50 .15% and 5% for  BBBEE.  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  cor rec t  and you can a l so  see i t  

on  the  face  o f  the  eva lua t ion  templa te .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  

MS MALAHLELA:    I t  i s  a  copy and paste  essent ia l l y  o f  

what  happened.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   And then you compare  tha t  w i th  10 

LMT in  42 .27 .   I t  came second.   I scor  was 64.78%,  cor rec t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  same here  based  on the  

conso l ida ted  sheet  tha t  i s  a lso  pa r t  o f  the  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    On the  sco r ing .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And so ;  the  d i f fe rence between LMT 

and VR Laser  was a  very  smal l  d i f fe rence,  no t  so ,  less  

than %,  i t  was .76%.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Based on these  percentages.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   But  you re fer  a t  the  foo t  o f  the 20 

page to  LMT to ta l  f inanc ia l  o f fe r  be ing  165 mi l l ion  mak ing  

i t  the  cheapest  ou t  o f  the  th ree  supp l ie rs .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  a l though we have seen i t s  o r ig ina l  

p roposa l  w i th  doub le  what  the  o ther  supp l ie rs  were  o f fe r ing  



27 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 292 
 

Page 54 of 260 
 

th rough the  rev i s ion  o f  the  proposa ls  i t  came out  ac tua l l y  

u l t imate ly  the  cheapest .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Cha i r,  may I  ask ,  do  you w ish  

to  take  a  tea  ad journment  a round now? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  le t  us  do  tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  see  i t  i s  11 .15 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    We wi l l  take  the  tea  ad journment  and  

resume a t  ha l f  past  e leven.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Ms Malah le la ,  can  

I  take  you back  to  your  s ta tement  page 151?  Are  you  

there?  R igh t .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Swi tch  on  your  m ic ,  Ms Malah le la .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Sor ry.   I t  i s  on  now.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t ,  now may I  take  you to  20 

paragraph 4 .29 .   You dea l  in  the  next  number  o f  

parag raphs w i th  your  in te rac t ion  w i th  Mr  Burger  and you  

had a l ready to ld  us  tha t  Mr  Teubes is  the  person you wou ld  

repor t  to  d i rec t l y  and Teubes wou ld  repor t  to  Burger.   

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  you had a  number  o f  in te rac t ions 

w i th  Mr  Burger.   Cou ld  you te l l  the  Cha i r  p lease what  was 

the  genera l  na ture  o f  the  i n te rac t ions w i th  Mr  Burger  about  

th is  spec i f i c  p rocurement  p rocess and whether  i t  was  

ord inary  or  ou t  o f  the  ord inary  fo r  h im to  be  speak ing  

d i rec t l y  to  you about  th is  i ssues.  

MS MALAHLELA:    A t  the  t ime i t  was not  o rd inary  fo r  the  

CEO to  come to  my o f f i ce  and ask  me to g ive  h im feedback 

on procurement  mat te rs  as  I  was repor t ing  to  the  COO,  no t  

the  CEO.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Was Mr  Teubes around on tha t  day or  

was th is  a  s i tua t ion  where  maybe Mr  Teubes was not  

a round?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  cannot  reca l l  exact ly  i f  he  was around 

on the  day.   But  I  –  sor ry?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  Mr  Teubes was not  a t  work  wou ld  you 

have found i t  s t range i f  Mr  Burger  came to  you fo r  a  

feedback?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Usua l l y  he  wou ld  ca l l  me to  h is  o f f i ce  

ins tead o f  coming to  my o f f i ce  i f  there  i s  an  i ssue  tha t  we  20 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  there  are  two th ings.   One,  i t  i s  

whethe r  i t  i s  h is  request  fo r  a  feedback f rom you tha t  was 

not  normal  o r  whether  i t  h i s  coming to  your  o f f i ce  t ha t  was 

not  normal  o r  bo th?  
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MS MALAHLELA:    Bo th .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bo th  were  no t  normal .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Un less  he  was coming f rom somewhere  

in  the  o f f i ces  bu t  i t  was jus t  no t  no rmal ,  he  d id  no t  come to  

me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Had i t  happened  before?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Not  tha t  I  can reca l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   What  wou ld  be  no rmal  i s  tha t  he  10 

wou ld  ge t  h is  feedback f rom Mr  Teubes?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I f  there  i s  need to  g ive  h im feedback.   

We usua l ly  wou ld  no t  g ive  feedback du r ing  the  p rocess.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry?  

MS MALAHLELA:    We usua l ly  d id  no t  g ive  feedback 

dur ing  the  process.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  even tha t  was not  normal?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay but  i f  he  needed anyth ing  f rom you  

the  channe l  wou ld  be  fo r  h im to  go  th rough Mr  Teubes? 20 

MS MALAHLELA:    Or  ca l l  me to h is  o f f i ce  or  g ive  me a  

ca l l  to  te l l  me what  he  needed or  g ive  me a  ca l l  to  te l l  me 

what  he  needed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  he cou ld  dea l  d i rec t l y  w i th  you 

somet imes.  
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MS MALAHLELA:    Se ldom,  somet imes.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   But  you say here  what  was  

not  normal  was one,  tha t  he  asked  fo r  a  feedback f rom you 

in  the  m idd le  o f  a  p rocess.   Two,  tha t  he  came to  your  

o f f i ce .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   In  4 .2 .29  you 

re fer  to  yourse l f  g iv ing  h im regu lar  updates  on  an 

ins t ruc t ion .   What  ins t ruc t ion  d id  he  g ive  you?  10 

MS MALAHLELA:    He asked me to  g ive  h im feedback on 

the  process.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    On a  regu lar  bas is  o r  jus t  on  one  

occas ion?  

MS MALAHLELA:    On a  regu la r  bas is .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  tha t  mean tha t  even when Mr  Teubes  

was around?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes because i f  you re fer  to  the  emai ls ,  

I  cc ’d  Mr  Teubes on our  conversa t ions.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    You cop ied  Mr  Teubes?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  I  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   D id  Mr  Teubes f ind  i t  s t range as  

we l l?  

MS MALAHLELA:    No,  he  knew about  i t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    No,  what  I  am ask ing  is  whether  he  a l so  

found i t  s t range tha t  Mr  Burger  wanted the  repor ts  f rom 

you.  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  am not  sure ,  I  d id  no t  speak to  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You do not  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You then re fer  to  in fo rming Mr  Burger  

about  the  pr i ces  and tha t  a  recommendat ion  cou ld  no t  be  

made on the  in fo rmat ion  and he then requested a  copy o f  

the  b id  eva lua t ion  commi t tee ’s  eva lua t ion  sheets  o r  mat r i x .   

You re fer  to  tha t  in  42 .31 .  10 

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    D id  he  exp la in  why he was ask ing  

you fo r  tha t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    No.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    D id  you have any fee l ing  as  to  

whethe r  i t  was no rmal  p rac t ice  fo r  h im to  do  tha t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  thought  i t  was jus t  overs igh t  ensur ing  

tha t  we fo l low the  r igh t  p rocess  on  th is  par t i cu la r  one  

because i t  was  h igh  va lue ,  i t  i s  jus t  to  ensure  tha t  

every th ing  goes we l l .   That  was my impress ion  a t  the  t ime.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Then you  re fer  in  42 .32  to  h im 

look ing  a t  the  eva lua t ion  commi t tee ’s  sheets ,  eva lua t ion  

sheets ,  e t ce tera ,  and he in fo rmed you tha t  he  was 

prepared to  de fend VR Laser.   How d id  tha t  d iscuss ion  

ar ise?  
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MS MALAHLELA:    I  sen t  h im –  i t  a l l  in  wr i t ing ,  so  I  sent  

h im an emai l  and then he responded by  say ing  tha t  he  is  

p repared to  de fend VR Laser  as  they a lso  number  1  in  the 

scor ing .   I t  i s  a l l  in  wr i t ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  bu t  jus t  g ive  the  contex t  what  had  

happened before  tha t  made h im – tha t  p rompted  h im to 

make th is  remark  tha t  he  was prepared to  de fend VR Laser.   

I t  i s  l i ke  somebody had sa id  someth ing  and then he  

thought  i t  was necessary  to  make i t  c lear  to  you or  to  a l l  

concerned tha t  he  was prepared to  de fend them.   What  was  10 

the  contex t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  wou ld  no t  know so the  in fo rmat ion  

tha t  I  have is  tha t  I  had been send ing  h im in fo rmat ion  a f te r  

h is  request  and he looked a t  th i s  in fo rmat ion  and  a f te r  the  

las t  emai l  tha t  I  had sent  be fo re  th is  then he responded by  

say ing  tha t  he  is  w i l l i ng  –  or  le t  me quote .   He is  p repared  

to  de fend VR Laser.   I  do  no t  know aga ins t  what .  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you unders tand th i s  remark  yourse l f  

o r  d id  you not  unders tand [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  20 

MS MALAHLELA :    My unders tand ing  a t  the  t ime was tha t  

he  was w i l l i ng  to  go  to  –  tha t  he  wou ld  no rmal ly  take  the  

recommendat ion  to  corpora te  o f f i ce  and the  board .   So 

once i t  i s  approved I  w i l l  g ive  i t  to  h im to  take  to  co rpo ra te  

o f f i ce  a f te r  he  had s igned i t .   So  my unders tand ing  a t  the  
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t ime was tha t  when he gets  there  he  wou ld  be  w i l l i ng  to  

work  w i th  the  submiss ions tha t  he  has based  on the  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  he  had.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Then in  42 .38  you  

re fer  –  sor ry,  42 .33 ,  top  o f  page 152,  you re fe r  to  Mr  

Burger  ask ing  whether  the  Pat r ia  Repor t  was inc luded.   Do 

you know why he  –  in  the  commi t tee ’s  recommenda t ion ,  do  

you know he ra ised tha t?   D id  he  exp la in?  

MS MALAHLELA:    No,  he  d id  no t  exp la in .    10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    D id  you f ind  i t  ou t  o f  the  ord inary?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Now th ink ing  back what  –  the  who le  

conversa t ion  and  h im be ing  par t  o f  the  process was out  o f  

the  ord inary  i t se l f .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   And then in  42 .34  you say tha t  

Mr  Burger  sa id  tha t  he  wou ld  be  negot ia t ing  w i th  VR Laser,  

negot ia t ing  what?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  do  no t  know what  he  was negot ia t ing  

w i th  VR Laser  because -  as  you  le t  me jus t  look  a t  tha t ,  

then I  can –  so  i f  you  look a t  the  exact  emai l  tha t  –  tha t  i s  20 

42 .34 was taken  f rom,  you w i l l  see  tha t  we had a l ready  

dra f ted  the  submiss ion  and the  submiss ion  was  in  the  

approva l  p rocess and was now go ing  to  be  changed  

because the  commi t tee  had a l ready made the  dec i s ion  w i th  

regard  to  the  way fo rward .   So I  do  no t  know what  he  was 
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ta lk ing  about  w i th  regard  to  h im d i scuss ing  w i th  VR lega l ,  I  

be l ieve  tha t  he  is  coming,  maybe you must  ask  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON:     Wel l ,  you  cannot  have a l l  o f  these  

th ings tha t  you say you d id  no t  know because he is  wr i t ing  

to  you and he is  communica t ing  someth ing .   I  see  here  he  

seems to  say –  your  paragraph 4 .2 .34  says:  

“He a lso  under took to  negot ia te  w i th  VR Laser  to  

reduce the  pr ice  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

MS MALAHLELA:    Outs ide  the  no rmal  p rocess.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MS MALAHLELA:    Outs ide  the  no rmal  p rocess.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   So th is  sounds s t range to  me.  

MS MALAHLELA:    I t  i s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now I  am th ink ing  i f  you  rece ive  

communica t ion  o r  he  sent  th is  to  you,  there  wou ld  be  some 

react ion  f rom you,  Mr  Burger,  what  a re  you ta lk ing  about?   

Why wou ld  you negot ia te  w i th  VR Laser  to  p roduce the  

pr ice?  

MS MALAHLELA:    For  me the  process was conc luded – as  20 

you see la te r  on  I  rece ived a  quota t ion  w i thout  so l i c i t ing  i t  

and I  was requested to  inc lude i t  and I  re fused.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Which  I  be l ieve  now in  h inds igh t  tha t  

came,  I  do  no t  have the  fac ts ,  came as a  resu l t  o f  h im 



27 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 292 
 

Page 62 of 260 
 

hav ing  negot ia ted .   I  do  no t  have the  fac t s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  i t  sounds l i ke  he  –  th is  

negot ia t ing  tha t  he  wanted to  under take w i th  VR Laser  to  

reduce the  pr i ce  does not  sound r i gh t .  

MS MALAHLELA:    I t  does not .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Would  Mr  Teubes have  become 

aware  a t  some s tage dur ing  the  process o f  what  Mr  Burger  

sa id?  

MS MALAHLELA:    He was cc ’d  in  the  emai ls ,  in  a l l  the 

emai ls .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  he  share  w i th  you what  h is  react ion  

was to  th is?  

MS MALAHLELA:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    He d id  no t .  

MS MALAHLELA:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You never  go t  to  know what  he  thought  

about?  

MS MALAHLELA:    No.   In  h inds igh t ,  when I  rece ived the  20 

quota t ion ,  I  assumed tha t  i s  what  happened.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m… 

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  why  I  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  i t  be  cor rec t  to  say f rom a  cer ta in  
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po in t  Mr  Burger  seems to  have shown a  par t i cu la r  in te res t  

in  the  process in  what  was happen ing?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t ,  f rom my po in t  o f  v iew.  

CHAIRPERSON:    From your  po in t  o f  v iew.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And wou ld  tha t  be  no t  the  k ind  o f  leve l  

o f  in te res t  tha t  he  normal ly  showed in  o ther  mat te rs?  

MS MALAHLELA:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes and now he was say ing  he  wou ld  

negot ia te  w i th  VR Laser  to  reduce the i r  p r ice  and he wou ld  10 

do so  ou ts ide  the  normal  channe ls .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .    Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   Ms Malah le la ,  can 

I  take  you to  the  emai ls  a t  page 529? 

MS MALAHLELA:    529.   I  have found i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    There  is  an  emai l  a t  the  foo t  o f  the  

page wh ich  appears  to  come f rom you to  Mr  Burger .   In  fac t  

i s  says S tephan ,  Reenen.   Reenen i s  a  re fe rence to  

Teubes,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  20 

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then you  say:  

“P lease f ind  the  a t tached as  requested.   The 

commi t tee  w i l l  meet  tomor row to  do  the  f ina l  

recommendat ion  i f  they  agree w i th  the  resu l ts  a f te r  



27 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 292 
 

Page 64 of 260 
 

popu la t ion  o f  in fo . ”  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Was tha t  the  cross- funct iona l  

commi t tee  you re fer red  to  ear l ie r?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Now Mr  Teubes –  sor ry ,  I  beg 

your  pardon,  S tephan Burger  then responds to  you in  the 

emai l  ha l fway down the  page,  in  the  m idd le  o f  the  page,  on  

the  27  June.   Jus t  read out  to  the  Cha i r  p lease what  he  

says?  10 

MS MALAHLELA:    The one tha t  s ta r ts  w i th :  

“Thank you,  Cec i l ia…”  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:    “Thank you,  Ce l ia ,  g iven a l l  tha t  I  am  

prepared to  de fend VR,  the  one th ing  tha t  I  have  

not  seen is  the  fac tor  tha t  Pat r ia  has s t rong ly  

recommended VR as the  pre fe r red  supp l ie r  bu t  

maybe th is  i s  in tegra ted  in  the  scor ing .   G iven VR’s  

pr ice  bu t  a l so  tha t  they a re  number  one,  I  th ink  we 

shou ld  ge t  DCO approva l  bu t  in  para l le l  I  w i l l  20 

d iscuss w i th  them to  reduce the i r  p r ice .   I  wou ld  no t  

have done tha t  i f  they  were  no t  number  one but ,  as  

they are ,  i t  cou ld  do  no harm to  ge t  the  pr ices  

reduced.   Th i s ,  however ,  I  w i l l  do  ou ts ide  the  

normal  channe ls .   That  i s  the  emai l  tha t  I  was  
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re fe r r i ng  to . ”  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now what  d id  you unders tand  h im to 

mean when he sa id  they are  number  one? 

MS MALAHLELA:    So  i f  you  re fer  to  the  conso l ida ted  

sheet ,  there  were  numbers  w i th  regard  to  number  1 ,  

number  2 ,  number  3 ,  wh ich  is  on  the  conso l ida ted  score  

sheet .   That  i s  what  he  was  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  o ther  words,  in  te rms o f  p re ference.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    In  te rms o f  scor ing .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  po in ts .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  VR Laser  was number  1 .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  tha t  i s  what  he  is  re fe r r i ng  to .  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  wha t  I  unders tood he was 

re fer r i ng  to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And was tha t  the  scor ing  tha t  y ie lded  

resu l ts  tha t  we saw ear l ie r  where  VR Laser  was  number  

one but  LMT was less  than 1%? 

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Less in  sco r ing  than VR Laser .  
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MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  was .76 ,  I  th ink  i t  was,  percent .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now I  ge t  the  impress ion  –  and you must  

te l l  me i f  my impress ion  has go t  any bas is  in  te rms  o f  what  

had happened,  tha t  when he says I  am prepared to  de fend  

VR and then ta lks  about  negot ia t ing  the  reduct ion  o f  p r ice ,  

I  ge t  the  impress ion  tha t  tha t  i s  a  react ion  o f  somebody 

who might  have fe l t  o r  unders tood  tha t  VR,  as  number  one,  10 

was under  th rea t  and tha t  they  m ight  no t  ac tua l l y  ge t  

appo in ted  hence want ing  to  de fend  them so tha t  they e i ther  

remain  number  one or  they ge t  appo in ted .   That  i s  what  I  

can th ink  o f .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was there  anyth ing  tha t  was happen ing  

in  the  process tha t  Mr  Burger  had become aware  o f  tha t  he  

m ight  have in te rp re ted  as  th rea ten ing  VR Laser ’ s  p rospects  

o f  be ing  appo in ted?  

MS MALAHLELA:    The on ly  th ing  tha t  I  can th ink  o f  i s  the  20 

issues w i th  LMT tha t  we have a l ready spoken about .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  the  on ly  th ing  tha t  I  can th ink  o f  

bu t  aga in ,  I  am not  sure .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   And the  issue o f  reduc ing  
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the  pr i ce ,  seems to  me might  on ly  a lso  have been –  m ight  

have been in tended to  address maybe – to  make su re  tha t  

in  te rms o f  advantage to  the  company the re  was some 

benef i t  maybe in  o rder  to  counterac t  any negat iv i t y  o r  any  

negat ive  fac to rs  because i f  you say th i s  i s  my pr ice  and i t  

i s  an  acceptab le  to  the  company,  you w i l l  no t  have to  

reduce i t .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t ,  perhaps tha t  was par t  o f  the 

ammuni t ion  tha t  he  was bu i ld ing  to  de fend,  I  do  no t  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

MS MALAHLELA:    Bu t  i t  makes sense.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   But  you wou ld  agree tha t  f rom 

what  he  is  say ing  and f rom h i s  ac t ions i t  looks  l i ke  he  was 

very  suppor t i ve  o f  VR laser  ge t t ing  the  appo in tment .   

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  how i t  looks  l i ke .  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  how i t  looks  l i ke .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   I f  I  can  take  you 

back fo r  a  moment  to  page 150.   We dea l t  w i th  th i s  in  your  20 

ev idence before  the  ad journment .   42 .26  re fe rs  to  the  

scor ing  g iven to  VR Laser .  

MS MALAHLELA:    One f i ve ,  sor ry?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    150 is  the  page number .   Maybe i t  is  

the  numbers  on  the  top  le f t .  
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MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    150,  do  you have i t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  found i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    42 .26  you re fer  to  how the  scor ing  

was made up fo r  VR Laser ,  65 .54%,  broken down pr ice ,  

funct iona l i t y  and  BBBEE.   Now what  in te res ts  me is  the  

pr ice  o f  f inanc ia l  o f fe r .   So VR Laser  was o f fe r ing  a  pr ice  

o f  R262.4  m i l l ion  fo r  th is  p ro jec t .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t ,  tha t  i s  what  appears ,  ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   And then you se t  ou t  in  10 

42 .27.2  the  f inanc ia l  o f fe r ,  the  pr ice  f rom LMT be ing  the  

cheapest .   That  i s  R165.6  m i l l ion .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  we are  compar ing  LMT,  165  

mi l l ion  w i th  VR Laser  a t  262 mi l l ion ,  a lmost  100  mi l l ion  

more  expens ive .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Desp i te  tha t ,  VR Laser  was  

g iven an overa l l  scor ing  a lmost  1% more  bet te r  than LMT 

because o f  the  o ther  cons idera t ions.  20 

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The BBBEE and the  funct iona l i t y .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Which  were  we igh ted in  the  way tha t  

we have a l ready  seen where  pr i c ing  was we igh ted less  
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than the  o the r  i tems.   Okay.   A l r igh t ,  can we go back to  the  

emai ls ,  p lease?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Okay,  wh ich  page are  they on?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Page 528 now.   529 is  the  one tha t  

you have jus t  dea l t  w i th  f rom Mr  Burger  say ing  he  i s  

p repared to  de fend VR and tha t  he  –  tha t  he  in tended to  

see i f  he  cou ld  negot ia te  a  lower  p r ice  f rom VR.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    D id  he  ind ica te  in  th is  emai l  o r  

anywhere  e lse  whether  he  was go ing  to  g ive  the  same 10 

oppor tun i ty   to  LMT or  DCD to  rev ise  the i r  p r i ces?  

MS MALAHLELA:    No,  he  d id  no t .   That  i s  a lso  the  o ther  

reason why I  re fused to  inc lude the  quota t ion  a f te r  I  

rece ived i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Why was tha t?   Why d id  you re fuse?  

MS MALAHLELA:    The o ther  supp l ie rs  were  no t  g iven an  

oppor tun i ty  and supp ly  cha in  d id  no t  so l i c i t  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

MS MALAHLELA:    So  I  knew noth ing  about  us  request ing  

i t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Then i f  we can look a t  what  appears  

to  be  your  rep ly  a t  page 528.   Can you conf i rm i f  tha t  i s  

your  rep ly?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  i t  i s .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now in  your  rep ly ,  i f  I  may jus t  take  
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the  w i tness th rough pa ragraphs tha t  appear  no t  to  be  i n  

d ispute  and then  jus t  ge t  to  the  rea l  po in t s ,  Cha i r .   The  

Pat r ia  Repor t  was in tegra ted  in  a  techn ica l  scor ing ,  tha t  i s  

someth ing  he  had asked Mr  Burger ,  have you inco rpo ra ted  

re ference to  the  Pat r ia  recommendat ion .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  I  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You ment ioned tha t  ear l i e r .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   But  then in  the  second  

paragraph,  they  are  no t  numbered but  the  second 10 

paragraph o f  your  emai l ,  you say:  

“VR Laser  p r i ce  i s  to ta l l y  over  our  budget . ”  

Now we have seen tha t  the i r  p r i ce  tha t  I  took  you to  a  

moment  ago was R262-odd mi l l ion .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you say tha t :  

“That  i s  to ta l l y  over  ou r  budget ,  the  max imum we 

can do is  R1 m i l l ion  per  un i t  a l l  cos ts  inc luded  

based date  2014. ”  

What  were  you re fer r ing  to  there?  20 

MS MALAHLELA:    I  was –  we normal ly  had va lues tha t  

were  a t tached to  l ine  i tems tha t  we were  buy ing  as  par t  o f  

the  programme,  so  be tween f inance and programmes they  

w i l l  te l l  us  how much we are  a l lowed on tha t  par t i cu la r  l ine ,  

then we know what  we can negot ia te  fo r  the  company to  be  
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ab le  to  make p ro f i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  th is  emai l  a t  page 528 preceded tha t  

remark  by  Mr  –  tha t  emai l  by… 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Mr  Burger?  

CHAIRPERSON:    L ike  i t  d id  on  the  next  page,  then  i t  must  

be  tha t  th is  remark  by  Mr  Burger  tha t  he  wou ld  negot ia te  

w i th  VR Laser  to  reduce the  pr ice  must  have been 

prompted by  your  s ta tement  tha t  the i r  p r ice  was  to ta l l y  

over  the  budget ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Perhaps but  tha t  was not  my in ten t ion .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i t  d id  p recede.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Le t  us  jus t  check the  da te  fo r  

cor rec tness,  so  tha t  emai l  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    They are  the  same date .   Ja ,  you rs  i s  i n  

the  morn ing  a t  twenty  e igh t  m inutes  past  e igh t ,  h is  i s  

e igh teen minutes  past  one.  

MS MALAHLELA:    One.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A .m.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  i s  yours  f i rs t  –  i s  h is  f i rs t  o r…? 20 

MS MALAHLELA:    Le t  us  check  the  pages,  203 –  where  

was th is  emai l  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  maybe because o f  the  t ra i l  o f  emai ls  

a t  some s tage or  another  you may have… 

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    He might  have known tha t  there  is  

concern  w i th  regard  to  the  pr ice ,  VR Laser ’ s  p r ice  be ing  

above budget .  

MS MALAHLELA:    He might  have.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Perhaps jus t  to  

ass is t ,  Cha i r ,  apar t  f rom the  date  and the  t ime wh ich  

re f lec t s  tha t  S tephan Burger ’ s  emai l  was sent  a t  1 .18  a .m.  

and your  emai l  was sent  the  same morn ing  bu t  a t  8 .28 ,  the  

f i rs t  paragraph,  i f  you  go back to  Mr  Burger ’s  emai l ,  s ta r ts :  

“Thank you,  Ce l i a ,  g iven a l l  o f  tha t ,  I  am prepared 10 

to  de fend VR.   The one th ing  tha t  I  have not  seen is  

the  fac t  tha t  Pat r ia  has s t rong ly  recommended VR 

as the  pre fer red  supp l ie r  bu t  maybe th is  i s  

in tegra ted  in  your  sco r ing . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then your  emai l  a t  page 528 

s tar ts  and dea ls  w i th  tha t .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Pa t r ia  repor t  was in teg ra ted  in  the 20 

techn ica l  scor ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  am I  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  yours  was a  response to  h is .  
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MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t ,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  fac t  tha t  VR Laser ’ s  p r ice  was  

over  the  budget ,  d id  i t  no t  mean  tha t  they cou ld  no t  be  

appo in ted  or  g i ven the  job  then as  long as  the i r  p r i ce  was 

over  the  budget?  

MS MALAHLELA:    So  normal ly  what  we wou ld  do  is  tha t  10 

we wou ld  take  i t  to  the  commi t tee ,  ge t  mandate  to  

negot ia te  w i th  them to  br ing  them wi th in  the  budget  p r ice  

and i f  they  d id  no t  agree to  come wi th in  the  budget  p r ice  

then we w i l l  ge t  permiss ion  f rom management  to  p roceed 

w i th  th is  p r ice .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   Then s t i l l  on  page 

528 you add a  fu r the r  paragraph  apar t  f rom dea l ing  w i th  

the  pr ice  be ing  to ta l l y  over  budget ,  the  th i rd  paragraph you  

say:  20 

“P lease note  tha t  the  o ther  b ig  d isadvantage fo r  

LMT and DCD was tha t  we cou ld  no t  g ive  them 

po in ts  fo r  any  BBBEE e lement .   They have 

submi t ted  le t te rs  s ta t ing  tha t  they  are  in  a  process 

o f  ver i f i ca t ion . ”  
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E lsewhere  in  your  s ta tement  you have re fer red  to  exp i red  

cer t i f i ca tes .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    What  was the  ac tua l  p rob lem tha t  led  

to  them be ing  g iven zero  po in t s?   D id  they deserve  zero  

po in ts  o r  was the re  a  prob lem wi th  the i r  p roo f?  

MS MALAHLELA:    For  us  to  be  ab le  to  award  po in ts  we 

needed a  va l id  ce r t i f i ca te  wh ich  has no t  exp i red .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  so  then your  le t te r  –  your  

emai l  to  Mr  Burger  cont inued:  10 

“They have submi t ted  le t te rs  say ing  tha t  they are  in  

the  process o f  ve r i f i ca t ion .   Shou ld  they submi t  the  

new cer t i f i ca tes  w i th in  the  next  four teen days we  

have to  inc lude  the i r  po in ts .   I f  they  do  i t  w i l l  

change the  p ic tu re  w i th  regard  to  the  f ina l  to ta l  

score .   P lease re fer  to  the  BBBEE notes  on  the  

conso l ida ted  score  sheet .   I  w i l l  schedu le  a  

meet ing . ”  

E tce tera .  

“…to  do f ina l  recommendat ions …[ in tervenes]  20 

MS MALAHLELA:    So  we inc luded th is  to  be  apparent  in  

the  score  sheet  as  we l l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   So you have ra ised two  

d i f f i cu l t ies  in  your  emai l .   The one is  tha t  the  VR Laser  

p r ice  i s  …[ in tervenes]  
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MS MALAHLELA:    H igh .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  go ing  to  t ake  you way over  budget  

and the  second is  tha t  the  sco r ing  in  wh ich  they  sco red 

jus t  under  1% bet te r  than LMT cou ld  change i f  LMT and  

DCD submi t ted  f resh  BEE cer t i f i ca tes wh ich  m ight  a f fec t  –  

m ight  en t i t le  them to  some po in ts .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .   We had g i ven them an 

oppor tun i ty  to  submi t  w i th in  14  days.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  tha t  have been proper  o f  them to 10 

–  or  fo r  you to  accept  the i r  BEE ce r t i f i ca tes  a f te r  you have  

scored them?  Shou ld  they no t  make sure  tha t  they meet  

a l l  the  requ i rements  by  a  cer ta in  da te  and i f  they  have  

fa i led  to  meet  those requ i remen ts  they have go t  to  be 

scored on tha t  bas is .  

MS MALAHLELA:    I f  the  sco r ing  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:     Can they come back la te r  and say here  

are  the  cer t i f i ca tes  in  c i r cumstances where  as  a t  a  

par t i cu la r  c r i t i ca l  da te  they d id  no t  have those cer t i f i ca tes?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I f  the  cer t i f i ca te  ar r i ved a f te r  we 20 

conc luded the  p rocess then tha t  wou ld  have been  unfa i r  

bu t  we,  as  the  commi t tee ,  took a  dec i s ion  to  a l low them to  

submi t  in  the  mee t ing ,  the  c la r i f i ca t ions meet ing  w i th  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  does  not  l i ke  r igh t  to  me but  

le t  us  no t  –  we do not  have to  s tay  on  i t ,  le t  us  move on.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  your  emai l  was  

a lso  cop ied  to  Mr  Teubes?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes i t  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t ,  thank you.   Now I  wou ld  l i ke  

you to  tu rn  to  page –  so r ry ,  Cha i r ,  page 535.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Got  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Th is  appears  to  be  an  emai l  f rom Mr  

Hendr ik  van den Heever .   Who was he?  

MS MALAHLELA:    He was the  procurement  o f f i cer  

respons ib le  fo r  the  components  tha t  were  be ing  bought .    10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i t  i s  an  emai l  addressed to  you 

and Cynth ia .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  Cynth ia  was,  I  be l ieve ,  speak ing  

under  cor rec t ion ,  she was h i s  manager  a t  the  t ime.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     And  then there  –  was i t  

accompan ied by  the  documents  tha t  we then f ind  f rom 537,  

supp ly  cha in  manager  –  sor ry ,  supp ly  cha in  submiss ion .  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  looks cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Dated the  30  June and there  is  an  

ana lys is  o f  the  b ids  tha t  we have  a l ready d iscussed and 20 

then a t  page 541 a  recommendat ion .  

“The fo l low ing is  recommended tha t  a  cont rac t  can  

be negot ia ted  and an o rder  p laced on VR Laser  

Serv i ces  fo r  phase 2  o f  the  Hoefys ter  cont rac t  w i th  

a  to ta l  va lue  o f  R262.5  m i l l ion . ”  
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MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  i s  the  very  same f igu re  tha t  we 

have re fer red  to  as  be ing  above budget ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  jus t  have to  –  bu t  we can take  i t  as  

cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t  and then 712 th is  i s  a  ce i l ing  

amount  as  fu r ther  negot ia t ions  w i th  VR Laser  w i l l  take  

p lace to  ob ta in  a  pr ice  be low DLS  budget .   Who p repared 

th is  memorandum,  do  you know? 

MS MALAHLELA:    I t  was Henk I  be l ieve .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Henk?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Mr  Van Den Heever.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Van Den Heever  h imse l f?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then we see on the  next  page,  

542 prov i s ion  fo r  s ignatu re ,  p resumably  by  a  number  o f  

peop le ,  your  name be ing  and t i t le  o f  Execut ive  Manager  

Supp ly  Cha in ,  be ing  a t  the  top .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then a l so  fo r  approva l  by  was i t  20 

Mr  or  Ms  A f r i ca?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Mr.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then Mr  Thebus.    

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then on the  r igh t  hand s ide  De  



27 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 292 
 

Page 78 of 260 
 

K le rk  and Knoetze  the  CFO a l ready ment ioned and then the  

ac tua l  approva l  wou ld  be  by  Mr  Burger  as  CEO of  DLS.   

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   D id  you s ign  th is  d id  you  

approve th is  as  a  recommendat ion?  

MS MALAHLELA:    No I  d id  no t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now we wi l l  ge t  to  your  

reasons in  a  moment .   Now can I  take  you p lease  to  page  

548.    

MS MALAHLELA:    548,  yes .   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I f  you  look a t  i t…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  tha t  i s  f i ve?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    F ive  four  e igh t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    F ive  fou r  e igh t ,  okay.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Th is  i s  aga in  a  t ra i l  o f  two emai ls  i f  

you  look a t  the  second one dated the  30 t h  o f  June 2014.   

Can tha t  be  r igh t  f rom VR Laser  to  yourse l f?  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  and i t  i s  headed  

up dated quota t ion  fo r  the  fabr ica t ion  o f  the  Hoefys ter  20 

p la t fo rm component  i t  came f rom – I  be l ieve  i t  i s  a  Mr  

Arora  CEO of  VR Laser.   

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Do you conf i rm you rece ived th is  

emai l?   



27 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 292 
 

Page 79 of 260 
 

MS MALAHLELA:    I  do .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And what  he  says is  th is :  

“H i  Ce l ia  p lease f ind  a t tached the  updated  quota t ion  

fo r  the  Hoefys ter  p la t fo rm components  we a re  

submi t t ing  a f te r  do ing  cost  sav ing  measures a t  our  

end.   We are  thankfu l  fo r  the  oppor tun i ty  and  

assure  the  qua l i t y  -  p resumably  o f  work  -  and best  

serv i ce  to  de l i ver  in  t ime. ”  

And was tha t  then accompanied by  the  document  we see 

f rom 549?   10 

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Which  appears  to  be  there  rev ised  

proposa l .   

MS MALAHLELA:    That  looks cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  i s  headed updated quota t ion  and 

can you te l l  the  Cha i r  what  the  p r ice  was now be ing  quoted 

in  te rms o f  the  updat ing ,  the  rev is ion  o f  the  pr i ces?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  must  jus t  f ind  the  –  are  you  ta lk ing  

about  the  f ina l  p r ice?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   20 

MS MALAHLELA:    I t  was po in t  one is  ta lk ing  about  a  

quota t ion  fo r  the  fabr ica t ion  o f  Hoefys ter  p la t fo rm 

components  on ly  so  tha t  means i t  i s  no t  necessar i l y  the  

hub i t se l f  o f  500 and has the  fu r ther  b reakdown where  you 

have got  indust r ia l i sa t ion  un i t  learn ing  curve  ser ious  
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p roduct ion ,  tha t  i s  why I  am ask ing .   So I  w i l l  j us t  l i s t  a l l  o f  

them the  th ree  o f  them under  po in t  two.   So po in t  one,  

under  po in t  two you have got  un i t  p r i ce  o f  the  

indust r ia l i sa t ion  o f  house.   PPM one to  f i ve  wh ich  was now 

s i t t ing  a t  R1.3mi l l ion  and we have got  po in t  number  two 

learn ing  curve  product ion  wh ich  is  un i ts  four  to  20 ,  wh ich  

was s i t t ing  a t  R1.2mi l l ion  and  ser ies  product i on  un i ts  

s i t t ing  in  jus t  ove r  a  m i l l i on .        

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  now how d id  these  pr ices  

compare  w i th  the  prev ious l y  tendered pr i ces  f rom VR 10 

Laser?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I f  I  can  jus t  –  they were  less  i f  I  can  

jus t  summar i se  i t ,  they  were  less  than the  in i t ia l  quota t ion  

tha t  we had rece ived.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Can I  take  you perhaps to  page 153.     

MS MALAHLELA:    One f i ve  th ree ,  go t  i t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Th is  i s  a  tab le  tha t  you put  in  you r  

s ta tement  jus t  exp la in  to  the  Cha i r  p lease what  tha t  tab le  

conveys?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  am a t  f i ve  f i ve  th ree  so  i t  i s  one f i ve  20 

th ree .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    One f i ve  th ree .   

MS MALAHLELA:    I t  w i l l  take  a  sec to  f ind  j us t  open ing  

the  pages,  yes .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Have you got  i t?  
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MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Th is  i s  par t  o f  your  s ta tement  where  

you have se t  ou t  a  tab le ,  exp la in  the  tab le  jus t  in  b road  

out l ine  to  the  Cha i r  p lease,  what  a re  you t ry ing  to  convey  

there?   

MS MALAHLELA:    Le t  me jus t  check what  was he re .   Can 

I  read what  I  sa id  ou t l ine?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   

MS MALAHLELA:    So  on the  same day…[ in tervene]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A re  you in  4 .2 .38  are  you?  10 

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   

MS MALAHLELA:    I  am jus t  t ry ing…[ in tervene]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  read i t  ou t  p lease.  

MS MALAHLELA:    “On the  same day I  p rov ided a  dra f t  

submiss ion  to  EXCO of  Dene l  Land Systems to  Mr  

Keevers  fo r  h is  cons idera t ion  co inc ident ly  a l so  on  

the  30 t h  June 2014 I  rece ived an emai l  f rom VR 

Laser ’s  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer  a t  the  t ime Mr  JP 

Arora  a t tach ing  a  rev i sed proposa l  wh ich  conta ined 20 

a  reduced pr ice  fo r  the  product ion  o f  the  armour  

hu l l s . ”   

Then I  inc luded the  tab le .     

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  so  what  does the  tab le  re fer  –  

we l l  le t  me take you ha l fway down you w i l l  see  an i t em tha t  
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says  ser ies  product ion  un i ts  based on the  DLS schedu le  

in i t ia l  p r ice  R120 400 986,00 rev i sed pr i ce  R100 084 

487,00,  r igh t .   I s  th is  what  you re fer r ing  to  as  a  reduct ion  

in  p r ices?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I f  you  look a t  the  ser ies  product ion  tha t  

i s  where  the  reduct ion  s tands out .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The o ther  p r i ces  appear  to  

be…[ in tervene]  10 

MS MALAHLELA:    Re la t i ve ly  the  same.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    To  remain  the  same.   

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  i s  under  the  head ing  o f  

quota t ion  fo r  a rmour  hu l l s  inc lud ing  Mine Pro tec t ion  and 

then the  second ha l f  o f  the  tab le  i s  headed quota t ion  fo r  

a rmour  hu l l s  exc lud ing  Mind Pro tec t ion  and there  the  un i t  

p r i ce  fo r  un i ts  one to  f i ve  and fou r  to  20  remain  the  same 

as quoted prev ious ly,  co r rec t?    

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  then the  next  i tems ser ies  

product ion  un i ts  based on the  DLS schedu le  there  i s  a  

reduct ion  f rom R100 108 446,00 to  R100 100 601,00.   

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you .   Now how d id  i t  come 
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about  tha t  we are  VR Laser  in  fac t  sent  you the  emai l  we  

have jus t  looked a t  wh ich  re f lec ted  ye t  aga in  rev i sed pr ices  

wh ich  were  now in  some respects  substant ia l l y  lower  than 

what  they have prev ious ly  tendered?   

MS MALAHLELA:    I  never  rece ived in fo rmat ion  as  to  who  

requested them but  I  know I  d id  no t  request  them as 

Supp ly  Cha in  Team as fa r  as  I  know d id  no t  request  them 

to  resubmi t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now p lease go in  your  

s ta tement  to  page 153.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  we know tha t  –  we know what  

Mr  Burger  had sa id  to  you about  ta lk ing ,  negot ia t ing  w i th  

them to  reduce the i r  p r ice  ou ts ide  the  normal  channe ls .   

Now f rom what  you have sa id  i t  looks  l i ke  your  po l i c ies  and  

procedures permi t ted  a  s tage where  you cou ld  go  back to  a  

supp l ie r  and negot ia te  a  reduct ion  o f  p r i ce  under  cer ta in  

c i rcumstances.   I s  tha t  r igh t?    

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  wou ld  be  an o f f i c ia l  permi t ted  

process?  20 

MS MALAHLELA:    Through Supp ly  Cha in .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  th rough Supp ly  Cha in .   So do you 

have any idea why Mr  Burger  wou ld  have wan ted the  

reduct ion  o f  any pr ice  on  the  pa r t  o f  VR Laser  to  happen  

outs ide  o f  tha t  o f f i c ia l  p rocess?  
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MS MALAHLELA:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You have no idea?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  have no idea.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Can I  take  you then  in  your  

s ta tement  page 153 your  parag raph 42.39.    

MS MALAHLELA:    One f i ve  th ree?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  and you re fer  to  the  emai l  that  

you have rece ived f rom VR Laser,  i s  tha t  the  emai l  se t t ing  

ou t  the  reduced p r ices?   10 

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you sent  tha t  to  Mr  Thebus and 

he reacted  how? 

MS MALAHLELA:    In te res t ing  someth ing  to  

tha t…[ in tervene]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    He sa id  i t  was in te res t ing?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yep.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   

MS MALAHLELA:    In  –  okay maybe you are  s t i l l  go ing  

there  bu t  in i t ia l l y  he  sa id  in te res t ing  a f te r  we  have done  20 

the  submiss ion  he  asked me to  inc lude i t  wh ich  I  re fused.   

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  Mr  Thebus?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  i t  i s  a l l  in  wr i t ing  in  the  emai ls .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you po in t  ou t  a t  the  foo t  o f  page  



27 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 292 
 

Page 85 of 260 
 

153 tha t  the  rev ised proposa ls  tha t  was rece ived on the  

30 t h  o f  June was s t i l l  da ted  24 t h  o f  June.   Why  is  tha t  

s ign i f i can t  and i f  so  why?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I t  was not  rea l l y  s ign i f i can t  a t  my head 

i t  was tha t  you cou ld  no t  rea l l y  d is t ingu ish  be tween tha t  

and the  prev ious quota t ion  tha t  we  rece ived.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  o f  course  i t  c rea ted  the  impress ion  

tha t  as  a t  24  June 2014…[ in tervene]    

MS MALAHLELA:    We had rece ived tha t  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  p r ice  was  th is  la tes t  one.   10 

MS MALAHLELA:    Yep.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  was fac tua l l y  no t  t rue .    

MS MALAHLELA:    True.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And d id  you rece ive  any  rev ised  

fu r ther  reduced p r ices  f rom LMT or  DCD?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Not  tha t  I  can reca l l .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And were  they inv i ted  by  you or  

anybody e lse  to  your  knowledge?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Not  tha t  I  know o f .   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   Now you have ment ioned in  

answer  to  the  quest ion  f rom the  Cha i r  a  moment  ago  tha t  

you unders tood your  p rocesses to  a l low negot ia t ion  o f  

be t te r  p r ices .   I f  tha t  was a l l owed was i t  permiss ib le  to  do  

tha t  on ly  fo r  one  o f  the  tendere rs  or  was i t  requ i red  tha t  
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everybody had to  be  g iven a  chance? 

MS MALAHLELA:    So  i f  the  recommended supp l i e r  was 

the  w inn ing  b id  then tha t  was a l lowed.   Then we  wou ld  

recommend i t  and get  mandate  to  go  and negot ia te  the  

pr ice  fu r ther  because they have a l ready won but  we w i l l  

ge t  approva l  f i rs t  be fore  engag ing  the  process.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  cou ld  you have a  s i tua t ion  where  you 

have a l ready where  a  par t i cu la r  supp l ie r  had won and you 

can s t i l l  negot ia te  the  pr ice  down?    

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  in  cer ta in  cases.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Was tha t  someth ing  tha t  cou ld  happen? 

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  in  cer ta in  cases we d id  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MS MALAHLELA :    Gathered w i th in  our  base l ine  tha t  we 

had.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  I  guess tha t  you wou ld  be  

negot ia t ing  f rom a  weak pos i t ion  wou ld  you not  where  they 

have a l ready known tha t  they have won as  opposed to 

negot ia t ing  be fore  the  f ina l  dec i s ion?   

MS MALAHLELA:    True ,  we wou ld  no t  necessar i l y  l e t  them 20 

know tha t  they had won.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You wou ld  no t  te l l  them?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay a l r i gh t  so  i f  your  nego t ia t ions  

d id  no t  y ie ld  a  sa t is fac tory  reduct ion…[ in tervene]  
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MS MALAHLELA:    Then we wou ld  go  back.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Then you cou ld  go  back,  ja  okay a l r igh t .   

MS MALAHLELA:    I f  we d id  no t  ge t  permiss ion  to  p roceed  

w i th  tha t  p r ice .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  yes  Mr  Kennedy.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r  i f  I  can  j us t  have a 

moment .   R igh t  now you re fe r red  to  a  response tha t  you  

rece ived f rom Mr  Thebus in  your  paragraph 4 .2 .40 .1  and in  

42 .40 .2  you say  tha t  he  recommended tha t  the  reduced 

pr ice  conta ined in  the  rev i sed proposa l  rece ived f rom VR 10 

Laser  Mr  Arora  ear l ie r  tha t  day tha t  even ing  be inc luded in  

the  dra f t  submiss ion  to  EXCO and  i t  be  sent  to  Mr  Burger.   

I s  tha t  cor rec t?   

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now what  d id  you fee l  about  tha t  

request  o r  ins t ruc t ion  f rom Mr Thebus?  

MS MALAHLELA:    How I  fe l t?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  what  d id  you fee l .   

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i t  was not  p roper  tha t  is  why I  

responded by  say ing  tha t  we cou ld  no t  do  tha t .   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And I  take  you to  the  emai l  tha t  your  

s ta tement  re fe rs  to  page 562.    

MS MALAHLELA:    Page f i ve  s ix  two.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A t  the  foo t  o f  the  page f i ve  s ix  two.   

MS MALAHLELA:    I  am a lmost  the re ,  go t  i t .   
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t  a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page Reenen  

tha t  i s  Mr  Thebus there  is  an  emai l  r igh t  a t  the  bo t tom 

says:  

“Thanks Ce l ia  I  suggest  tha t  you update  i t  w i th  the  

la tes t  quote  in fo ”  

Update  what ,  Ms Malah le la?   

MS MALAHLELA:    The submiss ion  tha t  I  had sent  to  h im.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay:  

“That  you update  i t  w i th  the  la tes t  quote  in fo  f rom 

VR and then emai l  i t  to  Stephan. ”   10 

Which  S tephan is  tha t?   

MS MALAHLELA:    S tephan Burger.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Burger :  

“For  h i s  ca l l  and fu r the r  p rocess ing . ”  

Then jus t  above  tha t  seems to  be  an emai l  f rom you in  

response:  

“Dear  Reenen are  you happy w i th  the  content  as  i s .   

I  cannot  p ick  up  the  changes you have made to  the  

doc cou ld  be  because I  am do ing  i t  f rom IPad. ”  

And then you say :  20 

“RE -  updated proposa l  fo r  governance reasons .   

We cannot  inc lude i t  in  the  eva lua t ion  as  the  

eva lua t ion  is  a l ready conc luded and s igned.   We 

can on ly  take  in to  cons idera t ion  the  pr ices  as  

submi t ted  by  the  c los ing  da te .   Shou ld  the  Board  
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g ive  us  the  mandate  to  negot ia te  we can use th is  

p roposa l  as  a  s ta r t ing  po in t  fo r  negot ia t ion . ”     

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Jus t  exp la in  tha t  to  the  Cha i r  p lease  

bear ing  i n  m ind your  answer  to  h is  ea r l ie r  quest ion  about  

when and to  what  ex ten t  there  can be negot ia t ion?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Okay so  on  th is  I  was h igh l igh t ing  tha t  

i t  wou ld  be  improper  o f  us  to  inc lude tha t  quota t ion  as  par t  

o f  the  quota t ions  tha t  we had rece ived dur ing  the  process.   

But  i f  the  proposa l  tha t  we get  permiss ion  to  negot ia te  i s  10 

granted as  par t  o f  our  p roposa l  tha t  we were  submi t t ing  to  

the  Board  then we cou ld  use tha t  as  a  s ta r t ing  pos i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You see tha t  reason ing  I  am f ine  w i th  i t  

bu t  in  the  same emai l  you say:  

“We can on ly  take  in to  cons idera t ion  the  pr ices  as  

submi t ted  by  the  c los ing  da te . ”  

Aga in  I  have no prob lem tha t  sounds log i ca l  to  me  but  why  

is  tha t  answer  no t  good enough in  regard  to  the  BBBEE 

cer t i f i ca tes ,  why shou ld  they no t  be  to ld  i f  you  d id  no t  have 

–  i f  you  d id  no t  comply  w i th  the  BBBEE requ i rements  by  20 

the  c los ing  da te  you cannot  come a f te r  you see tha t  see 

where  I  was coming f rom.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  why is  tha t  reason tha t  you advance  

fo r  say ing  tha t  VR Laser  cannot  b r ing  the i r  p r ice  a f te r  the  
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c los ing  da te .   Why is  tha t  answer  no t  good enough to  say  

to  the  o ther  compan ies  you cannot  b r ing  your  ce r t i f i ca tes  

or  BBBEE cer t i f i ca tes  a f te r  the  c los ing  da te?  

MS MALAHLELA:    So  on tha t  on  the  BBBEE we  d id  no t  

on ly  g i ve  one company an oppor tun i ty  to  submi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A f te r  the  c los ing  da te?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  was in  your  po l i c ies?   

MS MALAHLELA:    I t  was not  in  t he  po l i cy  bu t  we d id  no t  

g ive  one company an oppor tun i t y  to  submi t  we gave a l l  10 

compan ies an  oppor tun i ty  to  resubmi t  a  va l id  BBBEE 

cer t i f i ca te  w i th in  14  days.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  i f  the  po l i cy  does not  a l low you  

to  do  i t  a f te r  why  is  i t  no t  wrong to  do  i t  a f te r  fo r  a l l  th ree ,  

why is  i t  r igh t  to  do  i t  fo r  a l l  th ree  i f  the  po l i cy  does not  

permi t  you to  do  i t  fo r  anybody a f te r  the  c los ing  da te? 

MS MALAHLELA:    Okay,  the  po l i cy  d id  no t  –  how do I  pu t  

i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    They permi t ted ,  i t  d id  no t  say  you cou ld  

do  i t ,  d id  i t?   20 

MS MALAHLELA:    No,  i t  d id  no t  bu t…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    So why wou ld  i t  be  r igh t  to  do  i t  you  

wou ld  be  go ing  outs ide  po l i cy  wou ld  you not?   Jus t  l i ke  you  

wou ld  be  go ing  outs ide  po l i cy  to  accept  th is  p r ice  f rom VR 

Laser.   Would  you not  agree?   
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MS MALAHLELA:    So  i f  i t  i s  du r ing  the  process and we 

had dec ided tha t  we are  go ing  to  ask  fo r  c la r i f i ca t ion  or  

add i t iona l  documenta t ion  tha t  was a l lowed  before  

every th ing  e l se  is  c losed.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  I  –  maybe I  can unders tand tha t  

there  is  a  t ime w i th in  wh ich  you  may seek c la r i f i ca t ion  

exact ly  when tha t  t ime might  be  another  po in t  bu t  tha t  I  

can unders tand but  I  cannot  unders tand why i f  you have 

got  a  c los ing  da te  to  say everybody must  pu t  in  a l l  the i r  

requ i rements  by  th is  da te  and the  po l i cy  does not  have a  10 

prov is ion  to  say under  the  fo l low ing c i r cumstances  you can 

a l low somebody who d id  no t  meet  the  dead l ine  in  te rms o f  

cer ta in  requ i rements  to  come back and meet  them.   I  do 

no t  unders tand why you can do  i t  you  see because the  

who le  idea is  tha t  the  par t ies  –  everybody must  meet  the  

requ i rements  they are  to ld  what  the  requ i rements  are ,  they  

are  to ld  what  the  c los ing  da te  i s .   They know tha t  they 

must  sa t is fy  a l l  these requ i rements  by  tha t  da te ,  do  you 

unders tand?            

MS MALAHLELA:    I  do  unders tand .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MS MALAHLELA:    Bu t  the  reason why we a l low  then in  

th is  case fo r  the  BBBEE cer t i f i ca te  wh ich  i t  was par t  o f  the 

c la r i f i ca t ion  tha t  we asked fo r  th is  dur ing  the  c la r i f i ca t ion .   

Not  somebody e l se  ou ts ide  Supp ly  Cha in  go ing  to  request  
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on  our  –  w i thout  us  ask ing  them to  request .   I t  was Supp ly  

Cha in  and the  cross- funct iona l  team tha t  dur ing  the  

process they dec ided tha t  we w i l l  a l low the  supp l ie rs  to  

submi t  the  BBBEE cer t i f i ca tes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  we w i l l  con t inue but  I  th ink  VR Laser  

wou ld  be  ent i t led  to  say no ,  no  they d id  no t  meet  the  

requ i rements  by  tha t  t ime you cannot  g ive  them another  

chance your  po l i c ies  do  not  do  tha t  and i f  you say I  cannot  

reduce my pr i ce  a f te r  the  c los ing  da tes  they a lso  cannot  so  

bu t  tha t  i s  f ine  I  unders tand what  your  commi t tee  is  10 

th ink ing  was.           

MS MALAHLELA:    Okay.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Kennedy.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank  you Cha i r.   Now your  

s ta tement  then re fers  to  the  response f rom Mr Thebus d id  

he  accept  your  concerns or  p roper ly  address your  concerns 

tha t  you had ra ised about  the  pr ice  no t  be ing  capab le  o f  

be ing  ad jus ted  a t  leas t  a t  tha t  s tage?  

MS MALAHLELA:    He accepted  tha t  bu t  he  s ta ted  tha t  

they as  EXCO wi l l  then take  th is  in to  cons idera t ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    He sa id  they w i l l  take  i t  in to 

cons idera t ion?  

MS MALAHLELA:    A t  EXCO.   

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  EXCO? 

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay wh ich  suggested he d id  no t  

agree w i th  you w i th  your  po in t .   

MS MALAHLELA:    He agreed tha t  we do not  inc lude i t  as  

par t  o f  the  eva lua t ion  bu t  he  sa id  tha t  he  w i l l  then  go and 

inc lude i t  –  they w i l l  take  a  dec i s ion  to  inc lude i t  a t  EXCO.   

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you unders tand what  he  was  say ing  

because i t  looks  l i ke  i t  i s  two cont rad ic to ry  pos i t ions  

because the  purpose o f  inc lud ing  i t  in  the  submiss ion  is  so  

tha t  i t  can  be taken in to  account .   So you are  say ing  i t  

shou ld  no t  be  inc luded,  he  agrees w i th  you.   10 

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  he  says they w i l l  take  in to  account  

anyway.   

MS MALAHLELA:    When my submiss ion  ge ts  to  EXCO 

they w i l l  take  i t  in to  account .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Even though i t  w i l l  no t  be  in  the  

submiss ion .   

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I f  we can look aga in  a t  page 562 and 20 

look a t  h i s  response to  your  emai l ,  the  top  emai l  do  you  

see tha t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    “He l lo  Ce l ia  no  changes made  f rom a  

governance perspect ive  I  see the  sequence as  
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fo l lows.   The team eva lua ted the  th ree  p roposa ls  

made a  fo rmal  recommendat ion  to  EXCO.   We have 

rece ived the  team’s  recommendat ion .  EXCO 

thereaf te r  inc ludes th is  unso l i c i ted  proposa l  as  par t  

o f  the i r  p roposa l  to  DCO.”  

What  i s  DCO?    

MS MALAHLELA:    Dene l  Corpora te  Off i ce .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    “Corpora te  O ff i ce  fo r  approva ls  s ince  

they be l ieve  i t  does not  make a  d i f fe rence in  the  

order  o f  p re fe rence as  recommended by  the  team 10 

but  on l y  s t rengthens the  v iew.   The Board  paper  i s  

there fo re  the  EXCO paper  fo r  approva l  and I  am 

comfor tab le  to  inc lude i t  in  the  Board  paper  tha t  you 

are  wr i t ing  on  EXCO’s  beha l f .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yep,  wh ich  he  a lso  s igned.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Which  he?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Which  he  a lso  s igned.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  and so  th is  wou ld  be  a  paper  

recommending to  Dene l  Corpora te  Board ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?   

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  and tha t  you were  to  wr i te  on  

EXCO’s  beha l f .    

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  a t  tha t  s tage the  process was s t i l l  

thaw whatever  EXCO dec ided  was  mere ly  a  
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recommendat ion  i t  wou ld  s t i l l  have to  go  to  the  Board  fo r  

approva l .     

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  was  requ i red  on  the  bas is  o f  

your  ev idence ea r l ie r  in  te rms o f  the  de legat ion .   

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  so  le t  us  go  back  to  your  

s ta tement  page  154 you re fer red  to  42 .40 .46 to  

tha t…[ in tervene]   

MS MALAHLELA:    One f i ve  four?  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    One f i ve  four  yes  p lease.  The foo t  o f  

page 154 you say :  

“The submiss ion  to  the  Board  was prepared as  

recommended by  Mr  Thebus and I  p rov ided h im wi th  

a  dra f t  o f  the  same. ”  

D id  you in  fac t  p repare  tha t  recommendat ion?     

MS MALAHLELA:    I  p repared the  document .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The document  to  go  to  the  Board?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    On beha l f  o f  EXCO? 20 

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  as  ins t ruc ted  by  Mr  Thebus.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you inc luded  th is  reduced pr i ce  o f  VR 

because he ins t ruc ted  you to  inc lude i t?    

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  bu t  i t  was not  inc luded  in  the  
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score  sheet .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   

MS MALAHLELA:    I t  was inc luded  in  the  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i f  you can jus t  keep your  f inger  

then a t  page 155 and jus t  look  qu ick ly  p lease a t  page 573.    

MS MALAHLELA:    Page f i ve?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    F ive  seven th ree .   

MS MALAHLELA:    Got  i t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  i s  the  top  emai l  i s  f rom you to  10 

S tephan Burger :  

“P lease f ind  the  a t tached document  fo r  your  

perusa l . ”   

And d id  you a t tach  the  document  we see f rom page 575?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  I  d id .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  i s  headed company 

conf ident ia l  Dene l  (SOC) L td . ,  Dene l  Board  meet ing  to  be  

he ld  on  and then  i t s  le f t  b lank.   So was th is  the  dra f t  o f  a  

repor t  tha t  was a imed a t ,  was meant  to  be  submi t ted  to  the  

Board  a t  a  par t i cu la r  meet ing  fo r  approva l?   20 

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And jus t  to  conf i rm what  you jus t  to ld  

the  Cha i r  tha t  th is  was prepared on the  bas i s  o f  Mr  Thebus  

recommendat ion  tha t  th is  document  wou ld  re f lec t  a  

reduced pr ice  o f  VR Laser  even though the  sco r ing  wou ld  
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no t  be  changed to  re f lec t  tha t .     

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now you then say in  your  

s ta tement  tha t  you were  requested  by  Mr  Burger  to  change  

tha t  submiss ion  and address i t  to  Mr  Sa lugee.   Te l l  us  how 

tha t  came about?  

MS MALAHLELA:    So  on the  –  I  th ink  about  now rough ly  

a round th ree  or  four  months  lapsed a f te r  I  had  sent  the  

Board  the  submiss ions then tha t  i s  when the  conf l i c t  o f  

in te res t  I  be l ieve  we w i l l  ge t  to  i t  a  dec la ra t ion  came in to  10 

p lay  in  be tween  and a l l  o f  tha t  and out  o f  the  b lue  Mr  

Burger  –  a  mee t ing  was ca l led  I  am not  rea l l y  sure ;  I  

cannot  remember  proper ly  who ca l led  the  meet ing  bu t  I  

have got  the  inv i ta t ion .   We had a  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Burger  

and Mr  Thebus about  the  submiss ion  and I  was requested 

now to  change the  submiss ion  f rom a  Board  submiss ion  

wh ich  I  had d ra f ted  now to  the  Group CE submiss ion .    

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  tha t  t ime the  Group CEO was Mr  

Sa lugee.      

MS MALAHLELA:    True.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   So th is  was s t i l l  under  the  Board ,  

Dene l  Board  tha t  was Cha i red  by  Mr  Mantsha o r  you cannot  

remember.    

MS MALAHLELA:    I  am not  rea l l y  sure  who was the  Cha i r  

a t  the  t ime I  can check.    
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  we l l  i t  must  be  because by  the  t ime – 

ja  know I  th ink  i t  must  be  okay,  a l r igh t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t  so  you were  then requested 

by  Mr  Burger  to  change the  submiss ions so  tha t  i t  was no  

longer  a  submiss ion  to  the  Board  fo r  approva l  bu t  a  

submiss ion  to  the  GCE for  approva l?     

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And d id  he  exp la in  why there  shou ld  

be  th is  change?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  cannot  remember…[ in tervene]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ac tua l l y  I  th ink  I  may be wrong I  th ink  i t  

m igh t  be  the  Board  be fore  Mr  Mantsha ’s  Board .    

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja ,  I  th ink  so  bu t  we can check.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  am sor ry  Mr  Kennedy I  in te r rup ted  

you.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r  no  prob lem.   D id  Mr  

Burger  exp la in  why i t  was no longer  to  be  a  document  

submi t ted  to  the  Board  fo r  i t s  approva l  bu t  submi t ted  to  the 

GCE for  approva l?   

MS MALAHLELA:    I  cannot  remember  the  exact  reasons 20 

tha t  he  gave le t  me jus t  look  a t  CM37 the  documents  tha t  

we ta lk ing  about .   I f  you  can he lp  me to  f ind  i t ,  wh ich  page 

is  i t  on?   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  you w i l l  f ind  i t  a t  page 584.   

MS MALAHLELA:   584 is r ight  at  the back.   Ja – I  cannot 
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remember correct ly what the reasons he that  he gave were 

at  the t ime. 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   D id you understand Mr Burger  to  be 

saying that  he now expected that  Mr Saloojee would give the 

f inal  approval  not  the board?  Or did you understand the 

instruct ion to be send i t  to Mr Saloojee so that  he can 

consider i t  and he can then make a recommendat ion to the 

board? 

MS MALAHLELA:   That  was my understanding and as you 

can see on page 593 of  that  same document that  we spoke 10 

about I  put  recommendat ion to Mr Saloojee not  approval .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes that  was the – that  was the 

previous formulat ion? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  what he was now asking you to do 

as I  understand i t  was to – was to send i t… 

MS MALAHLELA:   Send i t  for approval .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Ms Malahlela Mr Kennedy took – put  

two proposi t ions to you and when he f in ished the second one 20 

you said that  was your understanding.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Oh sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  was not  c lear which one of  the two? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was you understanding that  Mr Burger 
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wanted Mr Saloojee to make a recommendat ion to the Denel  

board af ter reading the submission? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Was that  your understanding? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.   That  is why i f  I  lost  that  page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MS MALAHLELA:   You wi l l  see that  I  said recommended and 

I  put  Riaz Saloojee.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So th is would st i l l  comply wi th the 10 

requi rement that  the board would st i l l  have to give i ts  

approval? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Then i f  you can go please to page 

604.   That  is a submission addressed to EXCO and we see at  

the end of  the document page 611 where i t  is s igned.   There 

is a signature by you.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Sure.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   At  the foot  o f  611 on the 16 October 

2014,  do you recal l  s igning that? 20 

MS MALAHLELA:   Let  me just  double check that  is on page? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   611.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then on 612 i t  is  a lso 

recommended by the other off ic ia ls Afr ica,  Thebus,  Burger  
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h imsel f ,  Wessels and Mhlont lo.   And then at  the top of  page 

613 there is a provision for Mr Saloojee to approve or reject  

– i t  does not  seem that  the relevant  word was deleted i t  st i l l  

appears approved/reject  but  i t  is s igned by Mr Saloojee.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A lso on the 16 October 2014.  Now do 

you know whether the – whether the recommendat ion was 

ever approved not  only by Mr Saloojee but  by the board? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Let  me just  – I  just  want to  check 

something for you.   So in  between the session that  I  had wi th 10 

Mr Burger and Mr  Teubes I  must  just  recal l  I  wi l l  check my 

emai ls who I  spoke to.   I t  was – i f  you look at  paragraph 2 

CHAIRPERSON:   At  page? 

MS MALAHLELA:   That  is page 606.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:   You wi l l  now see that  we no longer buying 

the quant i ty that  we were buying.   The quant i ty has now 

reduced.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Where does one see that? 

MS MALAHLELA:   You wi l l  see that  we are talk ing about 20 

including 37 new var iants,  new requirements which are not  

ordered yet .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you want to read the relevant  parts?  Is 

i t  on page … 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes I  can read the whole paragraph.   So 
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in 203:   

“The board of  Denel  author ised the signing of  

product ion cont ract  for the 238 including…” 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry,  I  am sorry.   Are you reading 

back in your statement? 

MS MALAHLELA:   I  am reading in the … 

CHAIRPERSON:   What page are you reading? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Am I  confusing mysel f  now?  Let  me 

just… 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Are you not  at  page 606? 10 

MS MALAHLELA:   I  am at  page… 

CHAIRPERSON:   You had said we must go to 606.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes page 606 but  now… 

CHAIRPERSON:   And you said paragraph 2.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Paragraph 2.   I  must  just  fo l low my l ine of  

thought here.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  says:  

“ In 2013 the board of  Denel  author ised the signing. ”  

MS MALAHLELA:   No I  apologies I  am confusing mysel f .   I  

am confusing mysel f .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Apologies.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Al r ight .  

MS MALAHLELA:   I  am confusing mysel f .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A l r ight  i t  has been long okay.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  there is a quest ion you – Mr Kennedy 

had put  to you I  guess which led to the confusion.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Ja,  ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Kennedy you want to repeat  your 

quest ion then? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  th ink let  me – let  me get  to real ly the 

bot tom l ine of  th is – the recommendat ion here.   Can I  take 

you at  611.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes I  am there.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  is a recommendat ion and i t  reads:  10 

“ In l ine wi th the d iscussions art icu lated herein we 

hereby recommend the approval  of  

a.  The Group CEO of  Denel  that  he should 

approve the DLS recommended select ion of  

the Hul l  suppl ier.   That  recommendat ion was 

VR Laser.”  

Correct? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    

“A mandate to enter into contract  20 

negot iat ions for  the manufactur ing and 

supply of  the Hoefyster plat form hul ls for the 

183 armoured vehicles to ensure that  the 

tota l  cont racts pr ice f i ts wi thin the deal  S 

budget ”  
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So here i t  is 183 is that  what you were referr ing to ear l ier? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Ja.   That  is where my brain was going.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:   So now the quant i t ies had now reduced.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And would that  then al low VR Laser to 

keep i ts or ig inal  tendered pr ice but  st i l l  keep wi thin the 

overal l  budget because less – a lesser number of  vehicles 

was now being purchased.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.   But  the reasons given by the 

program guys I  must  just  remember but  Reardon signed this 10 

as thei r  – Mr Teubes signed this as the responsible person 

for  –  as the COO.  The quant i t ies – the data packs were not  

ready to order the del ta between 183 and 270. 

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease just  make this point  about  the 

di fferent  numbers so that  I  understand i t .   Original ly what  

was contemplated and in what numbers and now what was 

being contemplated and in what numbers? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Okay.   So when we went out  on the 

quotat ions – when the DLS went out  on quotat ions RFO’s 

they wanted to buying 270 I  must  just  check correct  – 20 

conf i rm i t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   270.  

MS MALAHLELA:   270.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.    
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CHAIRPERSON:     217 or 270? 

MS MALAHLELA:   217.  

CHAIRPERSON:   217  

MS MALAHLELA:   We can just  conf i rm i t  in the document.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja I  th ink 217.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Yes 217 hul ls .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Huh-uh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And then now? 

MS MALAHLELA:   So subsequent ly now af ter a few months 10 

had lapsed then we were told that  I  must  just  – i t  is in the 

documents somewhere.   That  the data packs are not  ready to 

procure the del ta between 270 and 183.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes so that  means we cannot actual ly 

place an order wi thout  the requi rement – wi thout  the data 

packs essent ia l ly because i t  was a di fferent  var iant .   I t  is al l  

in the documents you can just  f ind i t  and refer to i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   So – so the number now would be what? 

MS MALAHLELA:   The number would then be wi th th is 183 

that  you see under recommendat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MS MALAHLELA:   So that  means my cl ient  does not  requi re 
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what  – i t  is not  ready to receive what they in i t ia l ly sa id they 

wanted.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  I  can take you at  page 606 paragraph 

2.  

MS MALAHLELA:   60? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   6 paragraph 2.    

MS MALAHLELA:   Paragraph 2.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You say in 20 – the document says:  

“ In 2013 the board of  Denel  author ised the 10 

signing of  the product ion cont ract  for  the 238 

including 34 new var iants new requi rements 

by SANDF badger vehicles systems with  

Armscor.   In order to execute the Armscor 

contract  DLS now wishes to sign the contract  

and accordingly place an order for the 

manufactur ing and supply of  the armoured 

hul ls for these vehicles.   16 of  these vehicles 

are manufactured in Finland and 217 wi l l  be 

manufactured in South Af r ica.”  20 

So this is – is th is  the 217 that  you were want ing to procure? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Local ly.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    
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“At  th is  stage DLS has not  f inal ised the base 

l ine for the 34 new var iants.   We therefore 

cannot place an order on the ful l  217 

intent ion at  th is stage is to p lace an order for  

only 183 plat form hul ls” .  

MS MALAHLELA:   That  is what I  was looking for.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is th is – is th is reason for  why i t  went  

down for – f rom 217 to 183? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.  

MS MALAHLELA:   And i t  was also ver i f ied by Mr Teubes by 

his signature because he knows the requi rements of  his 

people.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now in this submission i t  is contemplated 

that  i t  was the Group CEO who was going to approve or  

re ject .   Is that  r ight? 

MS MALAHLELA:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – and you – you prepared the 20 

submission? 

MS MALAHLELA:   I  prepared the submission wi th the new 

requi rements in mind.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  prepared the submission wi th – for the 
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new requirements.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:   But  the in i t ia l  requirements was 217 I  

prepared the board submissions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:   So now the quant i t ies have gone down.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now – but  the – that  the approval  should 

come from the Group CEO was st i l l  not  in  order  in terms of  

the pol ic ies of  the company,  is i t  not? 

MS MALAHLELA:   We can just  check how much i t  was for? 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Because we st i l l  ta lk ing – i t  seems to me 

way beyond the delegated author i ty  that  you ta lked – told me 

about in the morning.  

MS MALAHLELA:   We just  need to add i t  up i f  the pr ice is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  was your  understanding at  that  t ime 

that  i t  was wi thin his mandate? 

MS MALAHLELA:   True.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  was your understanding? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   Okay we can check la ter on.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A lr ight  then just  to go back to 611.   We 

have deal t  wi th  a and b and then c is  that  there should be 

approved that  the necessary commission for Mr Stephan 

Burger to sign the cont ract  for the manufacture and supply of  

the Hoefyster plat form hul ls for the 183 vehicles.   Place the 
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associated purchase order  when the condi t ion is in [a]  is  

met.   That  is the Group CEO’s approval .   Cont ract ing LMT as 

a single source suppl ier for the vehicle rear internal  f i t .   So 

that  is LMT would get  some business.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Huh-uh.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then af ter  the complet ion of  the 

jo int  task force design that  the addi t ional  34 vehicle hul ls 

rear internal  f i t  and back doors be contracted on the same 

pr inciples.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   You have a view as to whether 

what was – what was – had been recommended here 

together wi th your recommendat ion was in fact  compl iant  

wi th the processes and procedures that  regulated Supply 

Chain in Denel .  

MS MALAHLELA:   What was being recommended by EXCO? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In – by you and your col leagues in the 

document? 

CHAIRPERSON:   In other words was your view at  that  t ime 

that  there was nothing wrong with processing this in th is way 20 

in terms of  the company’s Supply Chain Management  Pol icy?  

Were you aware whether i t  was wi thin or outside of  the 

pol ic ies to do i t  th is way? 

MS MALAHLELA:   In terms of  the Delegat ion Of Author i ty  

and the amounts? 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MS MALAHLELA:   The pr ice was in  my v iew the pr ice was… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Was within.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Was within.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS MALAHLELA:   And they d id not  requi re – 

CHAIRPERSON:   The board.  

MS MALAHLELA:   They did not  –  when I  say they I  mean my 

cl ient  – the end user – they did not  require – was not  ready 

to order the addi t ional  quant i t ies because the base l ines 10 

were not  ready.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  But  your recol lect ion is that  you did 

not  pick up – you were not  aware of  anything that  may have 

been in breach of  the pol ic ies wi th the submission? 

MS MALAHLELA:   I f  I  ta lk – i f  we look at  e and d which is 

now br inging LMT which was not  part  of  the or ig inal  

submission this was part  of  the EXCO recommendat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  Okay.  

MS MALAHLELA:   The cross-funct ional  team had done i ts  

own evaluat ion which was not  changed.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  Hm.  Okay.   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Can I  take you to the 

same memorandum page 610.  

MS MALAHLELA:   610.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   At  the foot  of  the page there is a table.   
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You see that? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes I  do.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And that  sets out  the current  VR Laser  

pr ice of  R1.209 mi l l ion giving you a total  pr ice for 183 uni ts 

of  221.2 mi l l ion,  correct? 

MS MALAHLELA:   True.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Does that  ref lect  the – the pr ices that  

they had previously tendered? 

MS MALAHLELA:   I  must  just  double check.   I t  looks l ike i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Wel l  perhaps let  me approach i t  a 10 

di fferent  way.   Just  go back to that  table please.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Hm. 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And in the very last  i tem is the 

requested mandate/  maximum pr ice of  R1 050 000.00 per 

uni t  which would give you a total  pr ice for  the 183 of  

R192.15 mi l l ion.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now the reduct ion in the numbers of  

vehicles you have al ready explained that  that  was not  too – 

to adjust  the overa l l  pr ice to br ing i t  down under the R200 20 

mi l l ion i f  I  understood you correct ly? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   I t  was … 

MS MALAHLELA:   That  was my understanding.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes that  was your…. 
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MS MALAHLELA:   Unless somebody had a di fferent  

intent ion when they said the vehicles have decreased.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   But  what you suggest ing in th is  

memorandum is f i rst ly that  VR Laser should be appointed but 

you have a problem with the – wi th the budget and their  

pr ice which would g ive a total  cost  for the project  of  R221 

mi l l ion should be reduced by negot iat ion.  

MS MALAHLELA:   I  must  just  read this properly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am sorry say again? 

MS MALAHLELA:   I  must  just  go through this  sect ion 10 

properly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So i f  i t  was brought down to R192 

mi l l ion you would not  need the board approval .  

MS MALAHLELA:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   But  was that  the object ive of  

what was being done here?  Was i t  to avoid the board having 

to consider i t  and give i ts approval? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Now in hindsight  i f  I  look at  i t  and the fact  20 

that  the – I  was requested to change i t  f rom a board 

submission which I  in i t ia l ly put  forward to now a Group CEO 

submission i t  appears there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now was the idea that  the balance of  the 

hul ls now having reduced the number to 183 would be 
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ordered at  some other stage in the future or was the idea 

that  the whole pro ject  now would be on the basis of  183 and 

not  217 as or ig ina l ly intended? 

MS MALAHLELA:   So the idea i f  you go back to page 606 

under background the f i rst  paragraph the procurement of  the 

new var iants which is  the del ta  that  we were talk ing about  –  

var iance plat form hul ls wi l l  only be made once the base l ines 

have been f i rmed up wi th f rozen data packs.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Chai r  i t  is get t ing close to one o’clock 10 

but  I  am almost  f in ished this part  o f  the wi tness’ statement.   

May I  complete that  sect ion at  least? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes let  us f in ish that  part  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes thank you.   Now can I  take you 

back to your statement page 155.  

MS MALAHLELA:   155.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Paragraph 4.2.48.   155.  

MS MALAHLELA:   I  have got  i t .   Paragraph? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   4.2.48 you refer to the fact  that  as we 

have seen on the document Mr Saloojee signed for  his 20 

approval .   Do you know whether i t  was ever submit ted to the 

board? 

MS MALAHLELA:   No I  got  the document f rom Stephan 

saying i t  is approved we can place the order.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   Now 4.2.49 refers to Patr ia  
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which we have deal t  wi th a lready.   You refer to the fact  that  

the memorandum says that  LMT offered a pr ice that  was 

unreasonably too low for the number of  manufactur ing hours 

and mater ia l  costs associated wi th  the fabr icat ion of  each 

hul l .   Was that  your view or did you get  that  informat ion or  

opinion f rom someone else? 

MS MALAHLELA:   I  – now t rying to  recal l .  I  am just  t ry ing to  

recal l  whether i t  was discussed in the commit tee ’s par t  of  the 

Adjudicat ion that  we were doing but  what we did fol lowing 

that  was that  we got  the pr ices to – f rom Pat r ia  in terms of  10 

the input  costs.   I  th ink i t  was – we must just  conf i rm i t .   I t  

was ment ioned as part  of  the cross-funct ional  team 

adjudicat ion but  let  us conf i rm i t .   I  do not  want to l ie .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A l r ight .   Then 4.2.50 deals wi th the 

pr ice being over budget and the approval  for negot iat ing to a 

maximum of  R1 050 000.00.   And then you refer in 4.2.51 to 

negot iat ions that  took p lace wi th VR Laser which included 

the reduct ion of  the pr ice.   That  began in  November 2014.   

There was a meet ing on that  date where Denel  negot iated 

for a product ion pr ice of  R1 mi l l ion per uni t  for each hul l  and 20 

payment wi th a deposi t .   And you refer to the people invi ted 

to that  meet ing – were you part  of  that  meet ing? 

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes I  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes you refer to i t  – yoursel f  as having 

been invi ted but  that  meet ing took place and did i t  involve 
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the people at  the top of  page 156? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   J iyane f rom VR Laser,  Van Der Merwe 

also f rom VR Laser,   Mr Teubes and yoursel f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   From – f rom DLS.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now what was the upshot  of  that?  You 

were t ry ing to get  a – a pr ice that  did not  exceed R1.05 

mi l l ion you proposed R1 mi l l ion as the – as the uni t  pr ice.   10 

Was that  accepted? 

MS MALAHLELA:   No i t  was not  accepted.   We have got  a  

few emai ls to that  effect  ref lect ing that  they did not  accept  

the pr ice and then eventual ly they sent  an emai l  wi th – l i t t le  

bi t  of  pr ice reduct ion which I  [00:22:40]  that  I  must  accept  – 

accept  including the base data.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sorry just  speak up a bi t  I  d id not  hear  

that? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Oh sorry.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Teubes said what inst ructed? 20 

MS MALAHLELA:   There is an emai l  where Mr Teubes 

instructed that  I  accept  the pr ice including the base data 

proposal  that  was made on an emai l .   But  i t  is al l  in wri t ing.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  I  can take you to page 616.    

CHAIRPERSON:   616 or 615 are you start ing f rom the 
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beginning? 

MS MALAHLELA:   616 have you got  that  page? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes I  do.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  are these the emai ls that  are 

referred to in your  statement? 

MS MALAHLELA:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In relat ion to whether or not  the R1 

mi l l ion was acceptable and the deposi t  of  15.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Hm correct .   And as you can see i t  says 

that  the proposed pr ice of  R1 mi l l ion uni t  wi th a deposi t  of  10 

15% so they were haggl ing on condi  – i t  was on – accepted 

on condi t ion that  we agree on the November base date.   So 

i t  was not  accepted as we were negot iat ing i t .   Am I  

confusing mysel f .   Let  me just  look at  th is.   So the f i rst  

d iscussion was on the 14 November 2014 where we have got  

an emai l  f rom Pieter Van Der Merwe f rom VR Laser.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is that  at  the foot  of  page 616? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes,  yes.    20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Sorry I  am – I  actual ly made an error a 

bi t  ear l ier Chair  sorry i t  is al l  in the emai l .   My memory is 

fa i l ing me.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes so what is  the correct  posi t ion? 
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MS MALAHLELA:   So the correct  posi t ion on here is  that  in 

l ight  of  the c i rcumstances we would request  you to  conf i rm 

whether we can agree on the product ion pr ice of  R1 mi l l ion 

plus 15% deposi t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   But  then he says:   Should you 

agree we suggest  a date and t ime be arranged.  Was i t  in 

fact  ul t imately agreed to? 

MS MALAHLELA:   I t  was ul t imately agreed to because on 

the 18 November you wi l l  see where Mr Teubes says to me 

we have t r ied our luck so that  means we d id not  get  to where 10 

we wanted to get  to.   My cal l  is that  we accept  the base date 

of  June 2014 and do not  argue i t  fur ther.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What page is that? 

MS MALAHLELA:   I t  is page 615.  

CHAIRPERSON:   615? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  appears f rom these emai ls that  what 

was agreed to was the base date but  was i t  ever actual ly 

recorded that  there was an agreement as to the pr ice being 20 

R1 mi l l ion per uni t  or for that  matter  R1 050 000.00 per uni t .  

MS MALAHLELA:   I  – I  need to look at  the documentat ion 

[00:26:22]  might  have been recorded as part  of  the order 

being placed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.  
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MS MALAHLELA:   But  we can conf i rm.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A lr ight .   Thank you.   Perhaps th is would 

be a convenient  t ime to suggest  the adjournment Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   We wi l l  take the lunch adjournment 

we wi l l  resume at  two.   We adjourn.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES :     

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Ms Malahlela,  you refer  in your  10 

aff idavi t  to a Mai l  & Guardian art ic le.   Can I  take you please 

to your statement to page 156? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Got  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    156.  

MS MALAHLELA :    I  am on i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   And just  sum up what actual ly 

happened.  You referred to your having been sent  a  copy of 

a Mai l  & Guard ian art ic le.   Who sent  i t  to you? 

MS MALAHLELA :    I t  was,  amongst  other people,  Mr Henk 

van den Heever.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   And i f  you turn p lease to page 

622.  

MS MALAHLELA :    622. . .    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    On the. . .  about  hal fway down, there is  

an emai l ,  apparent ly,  f rom you to Mr Burger.    
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MS MALAHLELA :    I f  I  can just . . .  622. . .   I  found i t ,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Hal fway down. 

MS MALAHLELA :    I  found i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you refer  him to that  art ic le .  

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you. . .  just  read out  what you say.   

“He is the president . . . ”   Just  read that  out ,  p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   Reading f rom 622? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    622.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .    10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Hal fway down Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

“Dear Stephan.  Please see the at tached art ic le 

below.  Is i t  the president  and his  fami ly his/ f r iends 

al lowed to benef i t  f rom SOE procurement contract?  

I f  i t  is indeed t rue that  the president  has associat ion 

wi th VR Laser,  I  bel ieve that  VR Laser  should have 

declared thei r  interest  in th is regard.    

I  recommend that  we request  VR Laser to disc losure 20 

the real  shareholders behind thei r  b lack equi ty  

shareholding.    

Can we please have a meet ing tomorrow when you 

are back in the off ice to discuss the way forward.    

I  cannot  have any further deal ing wi th VR Laser unt i l  



27 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 292 
 

Page 120 of 260 
 

th is al legat ion has been cleared. ”  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now i t  is correct  that  the art ic le is  

at tached on page 263 on a cover of  an emai l  to you f rom 

Mr Van den Heever that  you ment ioned earl ier? 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now we do not  need to go into the 

detai l  contents of  the art ic le.   Just  summarise what  

concerned you about the art ic le.   What was i t  saying that  ran 

alarm bel ls for you? 

MS MALAHLELA :    I t  was essent ia l ly stat ing that  VR Laser  10 

had connect ion to  the president  and they were benef i t ing van 

state owned procurement cont racts,  in a nutshel l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Your aff idavi t  refers to al legat ions of  

connect ions wi th  the Gupta Family  and also Mr Duduzane 

Zuma.   

MS MALAHLELA :    Exact ly.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now i f  we keep at  that  page,  page 622.   

We see what appears to be a response f rom Mr Burger  at  the 

top of  the page and he says:  

“A hundred percent  Cel ia.   Our deal ings need to 20 

squeaky clean.”  

 And then he refers to arrangements being made for a 

meet ing to discuss as you had requested.   Is that  r ight? 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is r ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   Now what happened thereaf ter? 
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MS MALAHLELA :    Thereaf ter. . .   I  cannot  remember exact ly 

what the exact  detai ls of  the meet ing but  we agreed that  I  

wi l l  sent  a declarat ion of  interest  form accompanied by the 

let ter,  asking them to declare thei r  interest  i f  any.   Because 

we did not  know i f  the al legat ions in the newspaper art ic le 

was t rue or not .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I f  I  can take you to page 632.    

MS MALAHLELA :    I  found i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is the let ter wi th your name and 

signature.   Is that  correct? 10 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am bat t l ing to see who i t  is 

addressed to.   There is  an address that  is inserted but  there 

is no name of  the company or person to whom the let ter is 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MS MALAHLELA :    I t  is addressed to the. . .   the address that  

you see there,  10 Haggie Road in  Johannesburg.   I t  is the 

VR Laser address.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A lr ight .  

MS MALAHLELA :    And i t  says:   At tent ion CEO.  And i t  was 20 

emai led to VR Laser.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   So was i t  sent  to VR Laser? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  i t  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And did they respond? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Why did you not  include the VR Laser ’s 
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name? 

MS MALAHLELA :    I t  was just  an overs ight .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS MALAHLELA :    But  i f  you look at  the reference,  i t  

actual ly starts wi th VR.  I t  was just  a simple oversight .  

CHAIRPERSON :    A lr ight .  

MS MALAHLELA :    But  i f  you look at  the content  of  the let ter  

i tsel f ,  i t  does refer to VR Laser.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Then i f  you can turn please to page 

634 and tel l  the Chair  p lease,  did you receive a response to 

th is request  for a declarat ion of  interest? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  I  d id.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    From VR Laser? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And is that  what we f ind at  pages 634 

and 635? 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now i f  you look at  the let ter,  635 says 

in the second paragraph:  

“We conf i rm that  the shareholders in VR Laser  

Services are Elgasolve (Pty) Ltd,  74.9% and Craig 

Shaw(?) Investment (Pty) Ltd,  25.1% of  the 
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shareholders and nei ther have any involvement of  

conf l ict  wi th doing business wi th Denel  in any way 

whatsoever.    

A l l  shareholders and d irectors are pr ivate 

individuals who do not  work for government. ”  

 Were you sat isf ied wi th that  response? 

MS MALAHLELA :    I f  you look at  the ful l  declarat ion wi thout  

the necessari ly re ferr ing to the last  part ,  I  was sat isf ied.   But  

furthermore,  I . . .  there was a clause in the contract  stat ing 

that  should they found. . .   10 

 Should they later  be found to have been unethical  or  a  

l ie,  we can determinate the cont ract  at  any t ime.  So I  was 

sat isf ied that  wi th  th is document that  I  have,  i f  they l ied then 

we can determinate the contract  to protect  the company.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now i f  you turn next  to page 637.  

MS MALAHLELA :    I  got  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    This is an exchange of  emai ls between 

you and mister . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MALAHLELA :    Mlambo? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mlambo.  The one at  the bot tom is 20 

f rom Bennie Dejani  to yoursel f .   He is the Chief  Operat ing 

Off icer of  VR Laser.    

“Please f ind at tached let ter and the completed 

declarat ion.”  

 Are those the documents we just  looked at? 
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MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then in the middle of  the page, the 

emai l  f rom you to Denis Mlambo.  You have al ready 

conf i rmed he is the Group Head of  Procurement.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    He wi l l  be our  next  wi tness Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You then say:  

“Denis,  p lease f ind at tached the ownership detai ls  

as requested. ”  10 

 Had you any deal ing wi th Mr Mlambo at  group level  in  

re lat ion to th is issue of  ownership and possible conf l ict  of  

interest? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  we used to have a lot  of  informal 

discussions wi th regard to  VR Laser and my 

dissat isfact ion(?)  wi th i t ,  off  the record.   And in some cases,  

I  would sent  him emai ls and delete them but  on his s ide,  I  do 

not  th ink he deleted them.  He would have them, I  th ink.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then you appear to responded.. .   

Sorry.   He appears to respond to you,  at  the top of  the page 20 

on the 2n d of  September.  

“Thanks for the info.   Who are the individual  

shareholders of  Elgasolve and Craig Shaw. “  

 So what you have been given was a . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MALAHLELA :    Company.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    . . . informat ion that  Elgasolve and Craig 

Shaw were shareholders in VR Laser,  an insurance in broad 

terms in the let ter that  nobody worked for government and 

there was no conf l ict .    But  Mr Mlambo was then saying:   But  

let  us f ind who the owners are.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Let  us probe a bi t  further.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Was anything done by you 

fol lowing up f rom that? 

MS MALAHLELA :    No,  Mr Mlambo took i t  over and he cc’d 

me on the emai ls to VR Laser probing further.    10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And Mr Mlambo wi l l  deal  wi th i t  in his 

evidence but  you say in your aff idavi t :  

“Mr JP Aurora conf i rmed that  Elgasolve which had a  

74.9% stake in VR Laser was owned by Sal im Essa.”  

 So that  is what came out  of  Mr Mlambo’s exerc ise to 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MS MALAHLELA :    Probing.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    . . . to f ind deta i ls.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Thank you.   Now can we turn in  20 

your aff idavi t ,  page 158 to another agreement.   This is a new 

topic we need to cover wi th you.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And that  is  a  single source suppl ier  

contracted DOS awarded to VR Laser in 2015.    
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MS MALAHLELA :    Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now I  am just  going to,  i f  I  may Chai r,  

just  to skip through a couple of  paragraphs that  appear to be 

more background that  you would be able to read that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Relat ing to technical  input  and so 

forth.   And may I  skip then to page 159,  paragraph 5.3?   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now you have ment ioned in the ear l ier 

paragraphs that  you had been asked to deal  wi th the 10 

procurement side for a proposed contract  for a so le suppl ier,  

Single source.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  correct? 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    and you deal  in paragraph 5.3 wi th a 

requested draf t  submission.   So were you asked for a 

submission,  to prepare a submission? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  I  was asked to prepare a 

submission and i t  is al l  in wri t ing in the emai ls that  you see 20 

here.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R ight .   And you made a 

recommendat ion.   Can I  take you page 651? 

MS MALAHLELA :    651,  okay.   651.  Got i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now that  is a br ief  emai l  f rom you to 
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Mr Thebus.   And i t  got  the subject :   Group CEO Submission.    

“Please f ind at tached the at tached document as 

requested. ”  

 And i t  is just  the emai l .   I t  seems that  the at tachment 

has not  been inc luded in the copy that  has been raised.   

Unless i t  is the document.   Perhaps you can help me 

Ms Malahlela.   Is i t  at  page 654? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  I  need to double-check.   Yes,  i t  is  

the one because in the recommendat ion I  had inc luded a 

note.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   Sorry about the confusion.   

MS MALAHLELA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now you made a recommendat ion to 

go out  and tender for th is contract .  

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And why did you recommend that? 

MS MALAHLELA :    We could not  appoint  or contract  a 

suppl ier wi thout  fo l lowing a process.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   At  th is  stage . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   Now that  is a tender in  20 

re lat ion to. . .  that  is in relat ion to which tender?  I  just  want 

to . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MALAHLELA :    The MOU. 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .move away f rom the one that  you have 

been deal ing wi th the whole morning,  is i t  not? 
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  we have moved away f rom that  

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   What are we on now? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i f  you wi l l  look at  the heading 

Chair  to paragraph 5 on page 158.   I t  deals wi th the 

memorandum of  agreement.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  that  is  the one that  we are deal ing 

wi th now.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    2015.   I t  is the Single source.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  okay.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Sole suppl ier contract .  

CHAIRPERSON :    In favour of  the same company? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    In favour of  the same company.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  i t  is a di fferent  t ransact ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay al r ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   So . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    And this one is to  do what? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  is a. . .   Wel l ,  can you just  conf i rm 

Ms Malahlela? 20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Malahlela.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I f  you look at  5.1.   I t  is  for the 

appointment of  what? 

MS MALAHLELA :    5.1,  which page, sorry? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Sorry,  page 158.  
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MS MALAHLELA :    158.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  i t  is of  the supply of  tar i ffed(?) FCM’s 

hul ls and related armour deals components.   Is that  r ight? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  i t  was complex fabr icat ions.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you start  that  wording wi th the 

words Single source.  

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Is there any signi f icance to this 

being a contract  for a single source? 10 

MS MALAHLELA :    So I  received a request  f rom 

engineering.   I  wi l l  cal l  i t  Engineering Technical .   

Substant iat ing why there is a need for a single. . .  for having a 

single suppl ier to assist  them with fabr icat ion going forward.   

So those were submit ted to me and Riaan(?) then asked me 

to. . .    

 Mr Thebus asked me to do a mot ivat ion but  in  the 

mot ivat ion,  instead of  having the name of  the suppl ier,  I  

wrote that  a proper process should be fol lowed i f  the 

st rategic that  the company wants to  take and i t  should not  be 20 

longer than three years.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   The ear l ier t ransact ion was also for  

the supply of  hul ls? 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  one was just  for hul ls.   So 

essent ia l ly,  th is one,  my understanding was that  i t  was going 
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to cover a whole lot  of  d i fferent  fabr icat ion on di fferent  

programmes going forward.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  but  basical ly,  i t  is also hul ls just  l ike 

previously?  Di fferent  brands.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Di fferent  brand.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Steel  p lates and di fferent  stuff .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.   And then the. . .  and there is st i l l  10 

components and so on? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Ja.   That  is why I  am saying,  i t  went 

beyond just  hul ls.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA :    I t  was a lot  of  steel  component,  complex 

fabr icat ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   Thank you,  Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Were there var ious manufacturers in  

the marketp lace which could compete for  th is  type of  

product? 20 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Once one of  them was awarded the 

contract ,  i t  would then be the only supply to Denel  of  those 

components? 

MS MALAHLELA :    For the durat ion of  the contract .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    For the durat ion of  the cont ract ,  yes.   

Which you recommended should be no more than three 

years.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Exact ly.   Af ter having fol lowed a proper  

process in th is select ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So would i t  mean that  you award the 

contract  to appoint  a part icular manufacturer and say to  

them for th is part icular  per iod,  you are going to be our only 

suppl ier of  these mater ia ls? 10 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is the understanding but  we had not  

discussed that  up to that  detai l  up to that  part icular t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  I  am talking in general  to say,  

when you say somebody is going to be a single suppl ier.   Is 

that  what i t  means? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  i t  is a s ingle source.   You only 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Just  for  a  certain  per iod,  they have 

exclusive r ight  to supply you wi th whatever? 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay al r ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now I  ment ioned ear l ier that  the 

at tachment had not  been at tached to the emai l ,  at  least  in  

the copy that  we have before the Commission.   Can I  take 

you in your aff idavi t .   I  do not  need to take you to the actual  
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paragraph but  you referred to Mr Thebus responding and he 

changed the submission document.    

MS MALAHLELA :    Ja,  that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And I  may have confused things ear l ier 

when taking you to that  document.   I f  I  can take you back to  

page 653? 

MS MALAHLELA :    653. . .   On i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is an emai l  f rom Mr Thebus to  

yoursel f ,  20 March 2015.  

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And he says:  

“ I  have changed the angle but  we asked for approval  

f rom Riaan(?).   Please see at tached submission. ”  

 Is th is the. . .  is th is the document that  came back f rom 

Mr Thebus ref lect ing a change? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  you are actual ly r ight .   I  see now 

VR Laser is al ready included.   My recommendat ion did not  

have the name of  the suppl ier.   I  would l ike to put  that  on 

record that  my. . .   The in i t ia l  document that  I  sent  to 

Mr Thebus did not  have the name of  the suppl ier which is VR 20 

Laser which he then inserted as part  of  the respond to me, 

saying that  i t  should go to in arrears(?).  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    the in i t ia l  document that  you prepared 

did not  have VR Laser because you were saying i t  needs to 

go out  to open compet i t ive pr ice.  
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MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Would that  be a proper publ ic tender? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.   I f  you also look at  the t ime of  th is  

part icular submission,  we were then using the new pol icy 

that  we must check.   I t  was based on the group pol icy that  

cal led for open tender.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Can we go to the document you sent  to 

Mr Thebus that  did not  have the name of  the suppl ier.   I t  is 

just ,  I  th ink I  have missed that  i f  you have already deal t  wi th  

that .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Chai r,  I  am afraid.   There appears to 

be a problem.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    In  that ,  what appears at  page 651 

should have an at tachment.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    At tached to the emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The aff idavi t ,  in  fact ,  says that  i t  was 

at tached.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  but  i t  is not  a t tached.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    For a reason,  I  am af raid,  I  do not  

have informat ion Chair  to convey to  you know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    And that  would have been the document I  

am looking for.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  would have been the. . .  what  should 

be here,  is the or ig inal  version that  the wi tness prepared.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And I  confused her by assuming that  i t  

was the document  at  page 654.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  that  is now clar i f ied that  that  in  

fact  is the rev ised version as revised by Mr Thebus.    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay no that  is f ine.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And Chai r,  may we just  request  leave? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Must  we t rack down that  annexure that  

for some reason has not  been included in the pack? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    We may present  that  to you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  let  us do that .   And then for the 

record,  you can just  announce that  i t  has been found and i t  

is been included and i t  wi l l  be page whatever.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am sure my learned juniors wi l l  

. . . [ intervenes]   

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes,  I  may just  as a fol low up to my last  
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response.   Under the. . .  we can get  the pol icy.   Under the 

new pol ic ies and procedures there were ci rcumstances 

where we would be al lowed a closed tender an. . .  and 

ci rcumstances where we would fol low an open tender.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA :    And that  is al l  s t ipulated in that  pol icy.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now.. .   Oh, sorry Chai r.   May I  

cont inue? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Sorry? 10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    May I  cont inue? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  please.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Now you say that  

Mr Thebus,  i t  came back. . .  he came back wi th the revised 

vers ion which now recommended not  that  i t  should go out  on 

open tender but  that  i t  should be awarded to VR Laser.  

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .   The name of  VR Laser 

was already in the submission when i t  returned.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I f  I  can take you to page 656? 

MS MALAHLELA :    656. . .   I  got  i t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    In paragraph 4,  what appears is  

recommendat ion,  DOS.   

“Based on the supply chain process fol lowed for the 

Hoefyster vehicle  and the AV8 turrets hul ls to date 

and that  both these processes are or wi l l  be 
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industr ia l ised at  VR Laser.   I t  is recommended that  

VR Laser is appointed a s ingle source suppl ier for  

fabr icated structures for a per iod of  three years. ”  

MS MALAHLELA :    Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So Mr Thebus agreed wi th your 

recommendat ion that  th is cont ract  should be for three years 

but  he did not  accept  your v iew that  i t  should go out  to  

tender.   Instead,  i t  should be awarded immediately to VR 

Laser.  

MS MALAHLELA :    That  appears.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Pr ior to you receiving this submission or 

recommendat ion f rom him, had he had a discussion wi th you 

wi th regard to his di fferent  v iew on that? 

MS MALAHLELA :    No.   The only discussion that  I  had wi th 

him was when he came to my off ice alert ing me that  there is 

th is request  that  is going to come.  Then I  received the emai l  

a lso f rom Mart in Draven to that  effect .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   Now I . . .   I  guess f rom the 

document,  there is nothing that  indicates why i t  should not  

be an open tender.  20 

MS MALAHLELA :    Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   So when you read i t ,  you must  have 

wondered why he took a di fferent  v iew but  did not  discuss 

that  wi th you? 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  but  you did not  ask him? 

MS MALAHLELA :    I  d id.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You did? 

MS MALAHLELA :    There is an emai l  response to him. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr Kennedy wi l l  read i t  when 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Perhaps we can do 

that  r ight  away.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Page 659.    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Should I  read i t?  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  your. . .  is that  the emai l  that  you 

sent  in response to Mr Thebus? 

MS MALAHLELA :    True.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 659? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that  the one? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i f  I  can just  read out  the relevant  

part .   I  have gone through the document.    

“ I  real ise that  you have taken out  my 

recommendat ion and now the document has the 
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name of  the suppl ier speci f ied.    

I  do not  mean to belabour the point  but  I  am st i l l  of  

the opinion that  should management approve this  

request ,  DOS must go out  on tender or RFQ.. . ”  

 What does that  stand for? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Request  for Quotat ions.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .    

“ . . .as you had done in relat ion to the 217 hul ls  

contract . ”  

MS MALAHLELA :    This was under now the new pol icy 10 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Ja.  

MS MALAHLELA :    . . . that  was in place.   Not  under the 

previous . . . [ indist inct ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And then to cont inue.  

“ . . . for the appointment of  a single source for th is  

scope of  work.   Once we have ident i f ied the suppl ier 

that  meets the DLS requi rements through a 

compet i t ive process,  then we can appoint  such a 

suppl ier for a maximum of  three years as a single 20 

source.   The speci f icat ion and evaluat ion cr i ter ia  

must  be send,  et  cetera. ”  

 And then you raised another point .  

“Furthermore,  I  th ink that  i t  wi l l  only be fa i r  to al low 

LMT to compete for th is work.   F irst ly,  we had a 
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contract  wi th them for Tranium(?) FCM Machine 

which is part  of  the proposed scope of  work in th is  

request  which was later cancel led due to reasons 

unknown to me because i t  was before my t ime as 

that  Execut ive Manager of  Supply Chain.  

Secondly,  when we suspended the order for the AV8 

FCM, we wrote a let ter to LMT, where we stated that  

the intend of  the t ime was to cont inue or f in ish off  

the execut ion of  that  part icular order as part  of  the 

Hoefyster FCM order.    10 

I  am not  saying that  the work must  be given LMT.   

Al l  I  am saying is that  LMT and other capable 

suppl iers must  be given a chance to prove 

themselves through a t ransparent ,  compet i t ive and 

fai r  RFQ or tender process.  

I  do not  th ink we should piggyback on a process that  

was fol lowed for the plat form.  We should go out  on 

a separate RFQ tender process where we invi te al l  

suppl iers that  we think are capable and then do 

such an appointment.   I  wi l l  ask Michel le to  20 

schedule a meet ing.”  

 So you re inforced your point  raised ear l ier that  i t  should 

be a tender process.   You were not  suggest ing as I  

understand i t ,  that  LMT should automat ical ly get  the 

business.  
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MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  you were envisaging st i l l  a  tender 

process in which LMT could tender,  other compet i tors could 

tender and so could VR Laser.  

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .    

CHAIRPERSON :    A s ingle source is not  necessar i ly in  

conf l ict  wi th an open tender process? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    No.  

MS MALAHLELA :    No.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    You can go through an open tender 

process and end up wi th a single source suppl ier? 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So would the opposi te ar ise in th is  

si tuat ion?  I f  there is a single suppl ier in the world for  

something that  you requi re,  you would have to go to that  

person and you would not  have to fo l low a tender process? 

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is correct .   And we had a process 

that  was st ipulated in the pol icy and procedure where there 20 

is just  one only suppl ier in the world and we can prove there 

is only one suppl ier in the world,  which is usual ly the case in 

case of  OEM, Original ly Equipment  Manufacturer.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Is the terminology used in terms of  
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Nat ional  Treasury Regulat ions the same as sole suppl ier  or  

something? 

MS MALAHLELA :    Ja,  I  th ink i t  is  someth ing to that  effect  

but  I  have not  worked on procurement forum for many years.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  I  th ink that  is  why I  am asking whether 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MS MALAHLELA :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .your concept of  sole suppl ier here is in  

conf l ict  wi th an open tender.   Because I  th ink in terms of  

Nat ional  Treasury Regulat ions,  as wel l  as Supply Chain 10 

Management Pol ic ies of  many state owned ent i t ies,  there wi l l  

be a provision which says i f  that  is  the only ent i ty that  can 

provide . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MALAHLELA :    The sole suppl ier.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   And I  th ink i t  is  referred to,  i f  I  am not  

mistaken,  a so le suppl ier.  

MS MALAHLELA :    I t  is.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  then,  i t  means you do not  go open 

tender.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Correct .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    You just  go to  that  suppl ier and your 

just i f icat ion is that  they are the only ones.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Correct .   And you need evidence to 

support  that .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  but  your sole suppl ier is not  along 
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those l ines.   Your so le suppl ier is  one that  you achieved 

af ter an open tender process.  

MS MALAHLELA :    That  is why I  prefer to cal l  i t  a  sing le 

source.   Af ter you have now . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now maybe i t  is the single suppl ier and 

sole suppl ier that  [ laughing]  

MS MALAHLELA :    Ja,  I  do understand.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because i f  i t  is a sing le suppl ier,  i t  must  10 

be a sole suppl ier  . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .  as wel l .   

MS MALAHLELA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]   Okay so . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MALAHLELA :    Ja but  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  but  your sing le suppl ier concept  does 

not  exclude using open tender whereas the so le suppl ier  

concept under the Nat ional  Treasury Regulat ions excludes 

open tender process.  20 

MS MALAHLELA :    I t  would not  make sense to fol low an 

open tender process.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Because i t  wi l l  just  be one company that  

can provide you wi th that .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  a l r ight .   I t  is  just  necessary to  

understand these things.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Ja,  total ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because we do not  deal  wi th them every 

day.   So one could end up get t ing confused.  

MS MALAHLELA :    Denel  has the same def in i t ion that  we 

are working on.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  is compl icated Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   [ laughing]  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  bel ieve the PFMA and the Treasury 

Regulat ions and the SCM Pol icy and so forth,  as you r ight ly  

say wi th respect ,  refers to sole suppl ier but  there is def ined 

in a part icular way that  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    . . . there is only one suppl ier effect ively  

avai lab le.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  Chai r,  can I  just  get  you to 

conf i rm?  Here there were var ious manufacturers in the 20 

marketplace who could compete for  th is business.   And i f  you 

awarded one of  them the contract ,  they would then be. . .  

perhaps I  can use the terms sing le source as far as Denel  is 

concerned for the per iod of  the cont ract .  

MS MALAHLELA :    Now that  is my bel ieve.    
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    A lr ight .   But  now . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Actual ly. . .   I  th ink Mr Kennedy i t  is good 

you raised that  point  because what I  said ear l ier may cause 

more confusion,  I  th ink.    

 When you talk about  a s ingle suppl ier i t  is not  as i f  that  

suppl ier is the only suppl ier who can provide you whatever 

serv ices or products that  you want.    

 I t  is just  that  for a part icular per iod,  you are commit t ing 

yoursel f  to obtain ing those services or those products f rom 

that  suppl ier.  10 

MS MALAHLELA :    In th is context ,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  would i t  not  be the same thing?  

Would i t . . .   Is i t  not  the posi t ion that  you would not  need to 

actual ly say,  to commit  yoursel f  l ike that  because i f  you say 

we want somebody who is going to  supply us wi th X for the 

next  three years,  necessari ly,   where  you a re  go ing  to  ge t  i t .   

You cannot  go  e l sewhere .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Sor ry?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  you  leave the  techno logy o f  s ing le  

supp l ie rs .  20 

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes? 

CHAIRPERSON:    You say we wan t  somebody who i s  go ing  

to  p rov ide  us  w i th  x  p roduct  fo r  the  next  th ree  years .   They  

compete  and one w ins ,  au tomat ica l l y  tha t  one who has 

won…[ in te rvenes]  
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MS MALAHLELA:    Becomes a  s ing le  source .  

CHAIRPERSON:    He is  the  on ly  one who is  go ing  to  g ive  

you.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Techn ica l l y  i t  i s  the  same.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  even i f  you do not  use  the  s ing le  

supp l ie r ’s  te rm ino logy.  

MS MALAHLELA:    I t  i s  the  te rm ino logy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Now Ms Malah le la  

you –  so  your  approach was,  to  sum up,  we must  go  ou t  to  10 

open tender.   A t  tha t  s tage tha t  you sent  tha t  memorandum 

for  approva l  to  Mr  Teubes before  he  changed i t  to  re f lec t  

VR Laser  had you been to ld  by  anybody tha t  you must  

ac tua l l y  do  i t  on  the  bas is  tha t  VR Laser  w i l l  be  awarded  

the  cont rac t  w i thout  a  p rocurement  p rocess?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  cannot  reca l l  spec i f i ca l l y.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   So he ra ises  then  in  the  

emai l ,  the  a t tachment  wh ich  he  had changed,  he  ra ised an  

approach wh ich  was no tender,  no  pub l i c  p rocurement ,  i t  

must  go  to  VR Laser.   You respond  a t  page 659 –  we have 20 

jus t  been th rough  tha t  –  d id  he  come back to  you in  answer  

to  these quest ions tha t  you ra ised or  these op in ions tha t  

you expressed tha t  th is  was not  appropr ia te?  

MS MALAHLELA :    I  be l ieve  tha t  we have got  an  emai l  to  

tha t  e f fec t ,  I  mus t  jus t  look  fo r  i t ,  where  –  I  am not  sure  i t  
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was before  th is  emai l  o r  a f te r  th is  emai l ,  I  jus t  look  and 

conf i rm now wi th  my s ta tement .   There  was one emai l  

where  he  is  say ing  tha t  h is  v iew is  tha t  i t  i s  f ine ,  we w i l l  

p roceed and take  th is  to  Exco but  i t  w i l l  be  to  ge t  s t ra teg ic  

d i rec t ion  no t  to  approve VR Laser.   So my unders tand ing  

was tha t  VR Laser  now is  ou t  o f  the  equat ion  and Exco w i l l  

be  approv ing  the  s t ra teg ic  dec i s ion  to  do  the  s ing le  source  

work  fo r  us  to  i ssue i t  ou t ,  tha t  they are  okay w i th  i t  as  a 

s t ra tegy d i rec t ion  no t  to  approve i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you unders tood h i s  response to  be  10 

tha t  he  was abandon ing  the  idea tha t  th is  shou ld  go  to  VR 

Laser?  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  th is  wou ld  go  to  Exco and what  

wou ld  Exco –  what  d i rec t ion  must  i t  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS MALAHLELA:    They w i l l  app rove.   I  th ink  the re  i s  an  

emai l  to  tha t  e f fec t .   I  w i l l  f ind  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS MALAHLELA:    They w i l l  approve the  pr inc ip le  o f  

hav ing  th i s  work  be ing  issued out  as  –  hav ing  a  cont rac t ,  a  20 

s ing le  source  con t rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  the  s t ra teg ic  dec i s ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     Do you know whether  an  agreement  
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was eventua l l y  s igned w i th  VR Laser  fo r  th i s  pa r t i cu la r  

s ing le  source  supp l ie r?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  I  be l ieve  i t  was in  May.   We have 

got  the  a t tachment  here ,  we can re fer  to  i t ,  where  I  went  to  

go  and mot iva te  procu rement  I  be l ieve  f rom LMT for  work  

tha t  has to  do  w i th  a  scope tha t  i s  inc luded in  here  and in  

tha t  par t i cu la r  meet ing  I  was to ld  –  I  was asked f i rs t  why  

am I  b r ing ing  mot iva t ion  fo r  LMT to  ge t  the  work  wh i le  we 

have a  cont rac t  w i th  VR Laser,  wh ich  I  was not  aware  o f  .   

A l l  tha t  i s  m inuted in  there ,  we have got  the  annexure .   The 10 

minutes  as  the  annexure .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Does i t  look  l i ke  VR Laser  go t  appo in ted  

w i thout  you r  knowledge?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  i t  was.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   Yes,  Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   I f  I  can  take  you back to  

page 159?  

MS MALAHLELA:    159,  go t  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  jus t  be fore  Mr  Kennedy asks you  

fu r the r,  so  d id  Mr  Teubes ever  advance any argument  to  20 

you as  to  why the  open tender  shou ld  no t  be  used? 

MS MALAHLELA:    Not  tha t  I  can remember.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because you had made tha t  po in t  ve ry  

emphat ica l l y  to  h im.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .   No,  he  d id  no t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   Page 159,  paragraph 5 .8  

in  you r  s ta tement  you say:  

“No fu r the r  response was rece ived regard ing  my  

emai l  o f  the  23  March 2015.   I  was no longer  

updated as  to  the  progress o f  the  approva l  o f  the  

dra f t  submiss ion  under  d i scuss ion . ”  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then you  go on to  dea l  w i th  what  

you have jus t  to ld  the  Cha i r  tha t  you la te r  found in  a 10 

meet ing  where  you t r ied  to  mot iva te  fo r  an  award  o f  some 

work  to  LMT tha t  in  fac t  there  was a l ready a  Memorandum 

of  Agreement  tha t  had been conc luded w i th  VR Laser  tha t  

gave them the  s ing le  source  supp l ie r  s ta tus  fo r  tha t  t ype o f  

work .  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   Now your  a f f idav i t  goes on in  

some deta i l  to  say  tha t  the  appo in tment  o f  VR Laser  as  

DLS as s ing le  source  supp l ie r  ra ised a  number  o f  

cha l lenges f rom a  supp ly  cha in  management  po in t  o f  v iew  20 

because i t  was in  conf l i c t  w i th  the  procu rement  po l i cy.  Now 

i f  I  can  take  you p lease to  in  the  annexures  to  the  

document  tha t  you have a t tached to  your  s ta tement  a t  page 

662.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Which  is  the  po l i cy.   Okay,  go t  i t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry  you sa id ,  as  an  as ide ,  wh ich  is  

the  po l i cy?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Which  is  the  po l i cy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  rea l l y  the  quest ion  I  

wanted to  ra i se .   So th is  i s  the  one tha t  you re fer red  to  in  

your  a f f idav i t ,  e f fec t i ve  f rom the  19 November  2014.   Was 

tha t  the  new po l i cy  tha t  you re fer red  to  ear l ie r?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  i t  i s  the  one.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And what  is  the  bo t tom l ine  o f  th is  

po l i cy  as  fa r  as  i t  was re levant  fo r  th is  cont rac t  tha t  was  10 

awarded to  VR Laser  w i thout  a  p rocurement  p rocess tha t  

you had recommended?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Sor ry,  what  i s  the  quest ion  aga in?  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  was the  re levance,  what  i s  the 

bo t tom l ine  o f  what  you were  say ing  here  in  re la t ion  to  VR 

Laser  hav ing  been g iven th is  cont rac t  w i thout  open tender?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Okay.   So essent ia l l y  the  document  

cor robora tes  wha t  I  sa id  in  the  emai l  to  say  tha t  we were  

ac tua l l y  supposed to  fo l low a  process to  appo in t  VR Laser  

ins tead o f  jus t  pu t t ing  i t  in  a  document  and mot iva t ing  i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  –  and I  am tak ing  you back  a  l i t t le  

b i t ,  th is  cont rac t  tha t  you found out  had been g iven to  VR 

Laser  w i thout  your  knowledge was s t i l l  the  same cont rac t  

tha t  you had been invo lved in  except  tha t  i t  was now,  I  see 

here  in  your  pa rag raph 5 .9 ,  i t  was now fo r  ten  years  
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ins tead o f  th ree  years  tha t  you had  recommended? 

MS MALAHLELA:    Not  on ly  tha t ,  Cha i r,  I  was ac tua l l y  very  

angry  a t  some po in t  because – and the  submiss ion  tha t  

was taken to  corpora te  o f f i ce ,  there  was re ference to  

supp ly  cha in  tha t  we suppor ted  the  document  wh ich  is  no t  

t rue .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And who wou ld  have done tha t ,  do  you 

know?  Who wou ld  have made  tha t  m isrepresenta t ion  about  

your  depar tment?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  have no idea whether  the  document  10 

was updated a t  DLS or  a t  DCO,  so  –  and the  meet ing  

where  I  found ou t ,  I  was to ld  tha t  the  document ,  the  new 

s igned document  and the  mot iva t ions w i l l  be  sent  to  me 

a f te r  the  meet ing  and I  be l ieve  tha t  we have an emai l  to  

tha t  e f fec t  where  the  d iv i s iona l  lega l  execut ive  sent  me the  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    The documents .  

MS MALAHLELA:    The documents  w i th  a  new submiss ion .  

So I  am not  sure  who d id  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  is  the  pos i t ion  tha t  a  submiss ion  tha t  20 

you had prepared  wh ich  d id  no t  re f lec t  suppor t  fo r  t h is  was 

amended to  make  i t  look  l i ke  you suppor ted  th is  new th ing? 

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Yes,  Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Ms Malah le la ,  
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there  i s  anothe r  po in t  re la t ing  to  the  po l i cy  tha t  you 

h igh l igh t  in  your  a f f idav i t .   I f  I  can  take  you to  page  669.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Found i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    C lause 6 .10 ,  in te rgroup and group  

procurement  cont rac t  6 .10 .1  says:  

“Under  no  c i rcumstances sha l l  p roducts  o r  serv ices  

tha t  can be procu red f rom a  group ent i t y  o r  d iv is ion  

be  procured f rom an ex terna l  supp l ie r  o r  non-Dene l  

company un less  there  is  approva l  by  the  g roup 

supp ly  cha in  execut ive  based on sound bus iness 10 

reasons. ”  

Now you have ment ioned prev ious ly  tha t  you had  ra ised  

concern  about  LMT par t l y  because i t  had had a  cont rac t  

cance l led  and you fe l t  i t  was fa i r  to  a t  leas t  a l low i t  to  

par t i c i pa te  in  a  t ender  bu t  you have a l so  ment ioned tha t  

LMT was pa r t -owned –  major i t y  owned by  Dene l  i t se l f .  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Wou ld  LMT fa l l  under  the  scope o f  

what  i s  re fe r red  to  her  as  a  group ent i t y?  

MS MALAHLELA:    There  were  ac tua l l y  conf l i c t ing  20 

in te rpre ta t ion  w i th  regard  to  LMT s ince i t  was not  –  I  wou ld  

use DV as the  prev ious BAE,  as  an  example .   So w i th  the  

BAE or  DV as i t  was c lea r  tha t  i t  was g roup ent i t y  o r  what  

we were  re fer r ing  to  bu t  w i th  LMT somet imes i t  was  t rea ted  

as  an  outs ide r  where  i t  had to  fo l low a  process.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now you  have re fer red  in  your  

a f f idav i t  to  an  Exco meet ing  o f  DLS,  DLS Exco,  where  

there  was a  d i scuss ion  about  the  agreement  tha t  was in  

p lace  w i th  VR Laser,  th is  par t i cu la r  agreement  and you  

have re fer red  in  your  a f f idav i t  to  the  commi t tee  tak ing  a  

dec is ion  tha t  the  agreement  w i th  VR Laser  takes 

precedence.   Can  you te l l  the  Cha i r  p lease what  happened,  

what  was in  fac t  d iscussed.   Were  you p resent  a t  tha t  

meet ing?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  was.   I f  I  may d ig ress  a  l i t t le  b i t .   So 10 

fo l low ing hav ing  rece ived the  documents  tha t  were  s igned,  

I  fe l t  a  b i t  aggr ieved and I  d id  no t  know wh ich  avenue to 

exp lore  now because i t  looked l i ke  my management  was  

par t  o f ,  how do I  pu t  th is ,  my management  was  

ins t rumenta l  in  tha t  documents  ge t t ing  s igned so  I  spoke to  

the  Group CFO …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Your  management  be ing  Mr  Teubes?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:    And Mr  Teubes and S tephan Burger.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:    So  i t  wou ld  have been a  fu t i le  exerc i se  

to  t ry  to  speak to  them about  a  document  tha t  i s  a l ready  

s igned.   So I  spoke to  Mr  F i k i le  Mhlont lo  –  sor ry,  I  m igh t  be  

pronounc ing  su rname inco r rec t ly.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  the  CFO at  the  t ime.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  the  Group CFO at  the  t ime.   That  

was a round quar te r  th ree  o f  the  same year  and I  

h igh l igh ted  what  had happened  and a lso  tha t  I  was 

unhappy w i th  what  had happened and I  was hop ing  tha t  he  

wou ld  be  ab le  to  ass is t  me to  reso lve  th is .   Lo  and beho ld ,  

I  th ink  about  few weeks or  a  month  a f te r  tha t ,  he  was gone.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  when he  was suspended?  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  when he was suspended .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  does th i s  mean tha t  t ime you were  10 

ab le  to  pu t  in  f ron t  o f  you the  submiss ion  tha t  you sent  and  

the  submiss ion  tha t  was amended by  peop le  you  do not  

know? 

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you cou ld  te l l  where  the  d i f f e rences 

were .  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t  and I  can s t i l l  do  tha t  

today.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   And you have got  those in  

the  f i le  …[ in tervenes]  20 

MS MALAHLELA:   I  can  jus t  look  th rough the  f i le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Because I  go  th is  f i l e  th is  morn ing ,  so  I  

can jus t  look  th rough the  f i le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  you do no t  have to  look  fo r  i t  now,  
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as  long as  we have got  i t .   That  i s  f ine .  

MS MALAHLELA :    And now go ing  back to  the  quest ion  

tha t  was asked.   So a f te r  hav ing  exp lo red tha t  avenue and  

i t  d id  no t  bear  any f ru i t  I  then dec ided to  ra ise  i t  in  the  

commi t tee  where  there  i s  a  lo t  o f  Exco members .   Perhaps  

they wou ld  take  a  d i f fe ren t  dec i s ion  and ra ise  a  concern ,  

every th ing  i s  in  wr i t ing ,  perhaps peop le  w i l l  fe l l  a  b i t  a f ra id  

to  go  on  w i th  whatever  was go ing  on and the  dec i s ion  was 

taken,  we have got  an  a t tachment  o f  the  m inutes  wh ich  was  

taken more  than  once because I  kept  on  repeat ing  the  10 

same th ing  over  and  over  aga in  and I  a l so  asked my team 

to  s ta r t  to  ensure  tha t  we keep the  record ing .   So not  on ly  

d id  we type the  m inutes  bu t  we a lso  kept  the  reco rd ing  o f  

the  m inutes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A mechan ica l  record ing?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  was a  mechan ica l  reco rd ing  o f  the  

m inutes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS MALAHLELA:    So  where  i t  was –  I  ra ised the  concern  

tha t  I  have a  prob lem wi th  th is  MOU,  MOA,  I  th ink  there  is  20 

a  lo t  o f  confus ion  w i th  regard  to  what  i t  i s ,  tha t  cont ra  

aga ins t  the  po l i c i es  and we have to  cont inu ing  app ly ing  i t  

over  and over  aga in ,  i s  tha t  rea l l y  a lso  susta inab le  to  keep  

on p i l ing  a l l  th is  work  on  the  same supp l ie r  fo r  such  

amount  o f  t ime?  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  bu t  the  commi t tee  w i th  

whom you ra ised th is  d id  no t  go  a long w i th  your  v iews? 

MS MALAHLELA:    No,  they took a  dec is ion  to  say tha t  the  

MOU supersedes the  company po l i cy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh …[ in te rvenes]  

MS MALAHLELA:    Which  is  a lso  documented  in  the  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  I  have seen tha t ,  ja .   Mr  

Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  take  the  w i tness to  what  I  th ink  10 

she is  re fe r r ing  to?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Page 672.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  qu i te  an  in te res t ing  s t range th ing  

because agreements  are  supposed to  be  in  l ine  w i th  

po l i c ies .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Abso lu te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  say the  ag reement  supersedes the  

po l i c ies .   The agreement  supersedes the  law.   Yes,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now,  Ms Ma lah le la ,  w i l l  you  not  jus t  20 

p lease have a  qu ick  look a t  tha t?   You w i l l  see  in  the  

m idd le  o f  the  page under  the  head ing  Genera l  1 .1 :  

“A concern  was  noted w i th  regard  to  p lacement  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  I  m issed the  page,  where  we  
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must  go?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    672,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    672.   Okay,  a l r i gh t ,  cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Th is  reco rds  in  the  m inutes  tha t  a  

concern  was noted w i th  regard  to  p lacement  o f  o rders .   I t  

re la tes  to  a  dev ia t ion  w i th  the  Group SCM po l i cy.   Was tha t  

the  concern  tha t  you had ra ised?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   And then under  the  head ing  

Reso lu t ion  does th is  re f lec t  what  was reso lved by  Exco?  10 

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    “The commi t tee  took a  dec is ion  tha t   

the  MOU takes  precedence over  the  GSCE’s  

cond i t ion  and the  group supp ly  cha in  po l i cy  and the 

DLS supp ly  cha in  procedure .   The commi t tee  a lso  

s ta ted  tha t  g iven the…”  

recent  p resumably,  no t  resend.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t :  

“ . . recent  h is to ry  w i th  regards  to  p r ice  and 20 

tu rna round t ime,  VR was the  pre fe r red  supp l ie r  w i th  

a l l  oppor tun i t ies .   I t  was fu r ther  s ta ted  tha t  in  te rms 

o f  the  MOU VR Laser  p r ices  must  be  market - re la ted  

and in  l ine  w i th  the  prov is ions o f  the  MOA before  an 

order  can be p laced on them.   Due to  th is  reason 
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and prev ious exper ience w i th  VR Laser  the 

commi t tee  fe l t  conf ident  tha t  the  VR Laser  p r ices  

w i l l  be  market - re la ted  and reasonab le .   Ce l ia  

Malah le la  was asked to  d ra f t  a  le t te r  to  the  GSCE 

and exp la in  the  dec i s ion  taken in  th is  regard . ”  

Now before  we  get  to  whether  you sent  a  le t te r,  as  

ins t ruc ted ,  d id  you agree w i th  th is ,  d id  you –  were  you 

persuaded by  the  reasons g i ven fo r  the  reso lu t ion  tha t  was 

adopted?  

MS MALAHLELA:    No,  I  was not .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    D id  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Were  you a  so le  lone ly  vo ice  a long th i s  

l iner  in  th is  meet ing?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  cannot  remember  anybody 

d isagree ing  but  I  m igh t  have fo rgo t ten  bu t  the  dec is ion  was 

taken.   The record ings shou ld  be  a t  DLS so  we shou ld  be  

ab le  to  f ind  ou t  what  happened.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   And what  i s  GSCE? 

MS MALAHLELA:    Group Supp ly  Cha in  Execut ive .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   Who wou ld  have been? 20 

MS MALAHLELA:    Mr  Mlambo.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Mlambo,  okay.   Had anyth ing  l i ke  th is  

happened befo re  in  your  exper ience?  

MS MALAHLELA:    No.  Not  where  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Where  an  ag reement  o r  memorandum of  
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unders tand ing  is  sa id  to  be  above the  po l i c i es  o f  the 

company?  

MS MALAHLELA:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Not  to  my reco l lec t ion  tha t  I  saw.   I  

wou ld  have opposed i t  in  any case ,  bu t  anyway.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:     Now may  you tu rn  p lease  to  page  

677?  675,  in  fac t .  

MS MALAHLELA:    675,  okay.   Got  i t .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  i s  an  emai l  f rom you to  Exco  

sub jec t  Conf l i c t  be tween Po l icy  and the  S igned MOU and  

then you say:  

“F ind  the  a t tached fo r  your  f ina l  input . ”  

Now is  the  document  f rom 677 what  you a t tached  fo r  the i r  

f ina l  input?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  i t  i s .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And why d id  you –  and jus t  ident i f y  

the  document  a t  677 p lease?  Who prepared th is  and what  

i s  i t?  20 

MS MALAHLELA:    I  p repared i t  on  ins t ruc t ion  f rom Exco 

as  s ta ted  in  the  m inutes  on  670 .   So we were  ac tua l l y  

d iscuss ing  an  o rder  w i th  regard  to  T5 wh ich  is  p roduct  o f  

DLS wh ich  inc luded fabr ica t ions.   So tha t  is  why tha t  

sub jec t  has re ference to  T5.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now d id  you  ac tua l l y  s ign  th i s  le t te r,  

677.   A t  678 I  see your  name but  there  is  no  s ignature  

there .   D id  you ever  s ign  i t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  cannot  reca l l ,  I  m igh t  have s igned i t .   

I  was asked to  send th is  to  Mr  Mlambo but  a t  the  same 

t ime I  spoke to  Mr  Mlambo about  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   D id  Mr  Mlambo in  fac t  s ign  i t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    No,  he  d id  no t  s ign  i t .   I  th ink  i t  i s  th is  

one …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  ta lk  about  f i rs t ,  i f  we may,  i t  i s  10 

jus t  the  impor tan t  fea tures  o f  what  you say here .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  jus t  –  I  dea l  w i th  tha t  to  say  th is  i s  

what  –  these are  the  main  po in ts  you say in  the  le t te r.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Okay.   Can I  read i t  qu ick ly?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i f  you  can.   Not  the  who le  th ing ,  jus t  

…[ in te rvenes]  

MS MALAHLELA :    So  essent ia l l y  I  was say ing  tha t  the  

MOU conf l i c t s  w i th  the  prov i s ions o f  the  po l i cy  tha t  was in  

p lace  in  the  company and I  was a l so  s ta t ing  tha t  the  20 

commi t tee  had taken a  dec i s ion  to  say tha t  the  MOU 

supersedes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS MALAHLELA:    The company po l i c ies .   And I  was 

in fo rming Mr  Mlambo,  as  ins t ruc ted  by  the  commi t tee .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So ,  as  you po in ted  out  ea r l ie r,  Ms 

Malah le la ,  there  is  a  b i t  o f  confus ion .   Somet imes  peop le  

are  re fer r i ng  to  the  agreement  as  an  MOU and somet imes i t  

i s  an  MOA but  le t  us  leave as ide  tha t  te rm ino logy.   What  

was be ing  re fer red  to  here  was tha t  there  had been an 

agreement  conc luded w i th  VR Laser,  i t  had been p i cked up  

tha t  there  was a  breach o f  the  Group ’s  po l i cy  and the  

d iv is ion ’s  po l i cy.   And then i f  you can look a t  the  las t  

parag raph p lease  on page 677,  you say:  10 

“Due to  these cont rad i c t ing  pos i t ions ,  supp ly  cha in  

approached DLS Exco. ”  

Supp ly  cha in  be ing  yourse l f ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And so  you approached Exco to  make 

a  dec is ion  as  to  whethe r  to  honour  the  MOA and p lace the  

order  on  VR Laser  o r  to  fo l l ow the  supp ly  cha in  po l i cy  and  

procure  f rom in te rg roup,  namely  DVS or  LMT for  th is  

p ro jec t .   DVS is  Dene l  Veh ic le  Systems.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  tha t  another  Dene l  d i v is ion  l i ke  

DLS was a  d iv i s ion ,  DVS a lso?  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   So you were  say ing :  

“…ei ther  DVS o r  LMT,  bo th  o f  wh ich  were  e i the r  
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who l ly -owned or  par t l y  owned by  Dene l  cou ld  have  

been g iven the  pro jec t  i f  there  had  been compl iance 

w i th  th is  p rov i s ion  o f  the  supp ly  cha in  po l i cy. ”  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Do I  unders tand i t  cor rec t l y?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     R igh t .   And then you say:  

“G iven the  t imef rame,  u rgency and h is to ry,  Exco  

has recommended tha t  the  work  be  done by  VR 

Laser. ”  10 

And then you say :  

“ I  request  permiss ion  to  imp lement  the  Exco  

dec is ion  in  th is  regard . ”  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  a  way d id  you want  wr i t ten  ins t ruc t ion  

to  say you can go  ahead?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   To  cover  yourse l f .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Someth ing  l i ke  tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Huh?  20 

MS MALAHLELA:    I t  go t  to  tha t  po in t  un for tunate ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   But  you say Mr  Mlambo 

d id  no t  s ign  i t .  

MS MALAHLELA:    he  d id  no t  s ign .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  
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MS MALAHLELA:    I  th ink  the re  is  a  response f rom Mr  

Mlambo somewhere  in  the  documenta t ion  tha t  we can re fe r  

to .   I  am get t ing  a  b i t  fuzzy  w i th  these documents .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   No,  Mr  Kennedy w i l l  ge t  us  to  i t  i f  

i t  i s  impor tan t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Sor ry,  I  was jus t  

…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  no ,  she  jus t  conf i rmed tha t  Mr  

Mlambo d id  no t  s ign  th is .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    And but  she says somewhere  in  the 

bund le  the re  is  a  response,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?   Or  a  le t te r?  

MS MALAHLELA:    There  i s  a  response.   I  th ink  he  

sc r ibb led  a t  the  back ins tead o f  s ign ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine  bu t  Mr  Kennedy w i l l  

ge t  to  i t  when i t  is  conven ien t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.   May I  jus t  d raw a t ten t ion  

to  an  issue tha t  is  jus t  apparent  to  me now and tha t  i s  the  

–  tha t  the  a f f idav i t  re fe rs  to  a  no te  re jec t ing  approva l  by  Mr  

Mlambo.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i t  i s  annexure  CM52.   You w i l l  

see –  un for tunate ly,  and I  do  no t  have immedia te ly  an  

exp lanat ion  fo r  th is ,  when you  get  to  page 680 th is  

annexure  was not  ava i lab le  a t  the  t ime o f  bund l ing  the  
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exh ib i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  I  am a f ra id  I  cannot  pu t  i t  to  the  

w i tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  the  next  w i tness w i l l  be  Mr  

Mlambo h imse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And he w i l l  g ive  ev idence tha t  he  in  

fac t  re fused to  approve th is .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i f  the  document  i s  ava i lab le  in  

h is  bund le  then we w i l l  d raw your  a t ten t ion  to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   That  must  be  the  

document  because the  w i tness a l so  says he  sc r ibb led  a t  

the  back.  

MS MALAHLELA:    He scr ibb led  a t  the  back.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  the re  is  any  20 

d ispute  be tween any o f  the  peop le  whose names have been  

ra ised in  re la t ion  to  these proceed ings or  in  the  documents  

tha t  Mr  Mlambo was asked to  approve the  dev ia t ion  

re t rospect ive ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    And he re fused.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Ms  Malah le la ,  may we now 

tu rn  to  the  next  cont rac t .   We have a l ready dea l t  th is  

morn ing  w i th  the  f i rs t  cont rac t  awarded to  VR Laser  fo r  217 

hu l l s .   The second cont rac t  tha t  we have jus t  dea l t  w i th  

th is  a f te rnoon was the  s ing le  source  supp l ie r  fo r  var ious 

components .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    In  the  same pro jec t .   And tha t  was 10 

awarded to  VR Laser  where  you had sa id  i t  shou ld  be  fo r  

th ree  years  and sub jec t  to  a  tender  p rocess and  ins tead 

what  was dec ided  was i t  was fo r  ten  years  and i t  was g iven  

to  VR Laser.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja ,  I  recommended tha t  we fo l low due 

process.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am sor ry,  you recommended? 

MS MALAHLELA:    That  we fo l low due process.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Can you jus t  comment  on  the  

10  years ,  was tha t  –  d id  tha t  happen f requent ly  w i th in  20 

Dene l ,  to  you r  knowledge,  tha t  as  s ing le  source  supp ly  

cont rac t  wou ld  be  awarded ever  to  a  par t y  fo r  10  years?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Un less  i t  was l inked to  a  spec i f i c  

p ro jec t  so  tha t  i t  was runn ing  fo r  ten  years  w i th  c lear  

de l i verab les ,  I  cannot  remember  any cont rac t  o f  such  
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na ture .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Whereas you had been the  –  you were  

the  one who came up w i th  th ree  years ,  you never  go t  to  

know who came up w i th  ten  years .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now we come to  a  th i rd  cont rac t  tha t  

you dea l  w i th  in  your  a f f idav i t .   You dea l  w i th  i t  a t  page  

161,  pa rag raph 6  and tha t  i s  an  award  o f  a  cont rac t  to  VR 

Laser  in  2016,  co r rec t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A year  a f te r  the  cont rac t  tha t  we  

have jus t  dea l t  w i th ,  the  second cont rac t  and you re fer  to  

an  o rde r  hav ing  prev ious l y  been p laced the  prev ious year  

in  2015 on LMT for  spec i f i c  i tems and LMT,  there  was a  

prob lem wi th  meet ing  the  de l i ve rab les ,  de l i very  schedu le  

fo r  tha t .   Can you jus t  te l l  the  Cha i r  p lease very  br ie f l y,  

why was tha t  re levant  to  the  appo in tment  o f  VR Laser  in  

th is  th i rd  cont rac t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    So  the  orde r  had a l ready been  p laced 

on LMT.   DLS changed the  spec and LMT cou ld  no t  meet  –  20 

I  be l ieve  the  t ime l ines because I  am – th is  i s  based  on the  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  go t ,  the  t ime l ines and the  pr i c ing  as  we l l .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now jus t  to  be  spec i f i c ,  to  make i t  

c lea r,  the  d is t inc t ion  be tween th is  cont rac t  and the  o ther  

two,  as  your  head ing  ind ica tes ,  th is  was a  cont rac t  in  2016  
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to  supp ly  c rad les ,  FCM oute r  sh ie lds  and  armour  

components .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you say tha t  an  orde r  had been 

p laced on LMT which  i t  had not  fu l f i l l ed  proper l y  w i th in  

t ime and then what  happened in  re la t ion  to  VR Laser?  

MS MALAHLELA:    No,  tha t  i s  no t  what  I  am say ing .   So 

Dene l  Land System has p laced –  had p laced an order  on  

LMT for  the  p roduct ion  o f  FCMs fo r  AV8 pro jec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    AV8 pro jec t?  10 

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes?  

MS MALAHLELA:    The order  was suspended due to  

inab i l i t y  o f  LMT to  meet  the  de l i very  schedu le  fo r  the  new 

conf igura t ion ,  no t  the  one tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  see .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  i t  was no t  the  or ig ina l  one  i t  was 

the  la te r  conf igu ra t ion .  

MS MALAHLELA:    The change in  spec du r ing  –  a f te r  the  20 

order  had been p laced.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   And then you make re ference to  

a  proposa l  by  VR Laser.   To  do  what?  

MS MALAHLELA:    To  do  the  same work .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The same work  tha t  had a l ready been 
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p laced as  an  order  on  LMT? 

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    How d id  i t  come about  tha t  they 

submi t ted  a  proposa l?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  jus t  –  so  how i t  worked,  my team had  

managers ,  so  on  the  day- to -day runn ing ,  do ing  the  day- to -

day bus iness they wou ld  go  out  on  quota t ions un less  I  

need to  ge t  invo lved in  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Had there  been any p rocess –  had  

there  been any dec i s ion  to  rep lace LMT under  the  prev ious  10 

order?  

MS MALAHLELA:    So  the  d iscuss ions tha t  were  

happen ing  between LMT and management ,  i t  was my 

unders tand ing  a t  the  t ime tha t  fo l low ing th is  i ssue where  

LMT cou ldn ’ t  meet  our  requ i rements  there  was some 

d iscuss ion  w i th  management  o f  LMT and Mr  Teubes came 

to  me to ask  me to  dra f t  a  le t te r  wh ich  I  am sure  you have 

seen,  and there  were  emai ls ,  there  are  a l so  emai ls ,  where  I  

am send ing  th i s  emai l  to  say  tha t  the  orde r  w i l l  then be  

p laced under  –  ins tead o f  to ta l l y  cance l l ing  the  orde r,  on  20 

LMT we’ re  jus t  go ing  to  move i t  to  a  d i f fe ren t  p rogramme 

and tha t ,  Mr  Teubes asked me to  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now,  what ’s  then happened Ms 

Malah le la?  

MS MALAHLELA:    So ,  the  j igs  and f i x tu res  were  removed  
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f rom LMT and were  then de l i vered  to  VR Laser  t o  p roceed 

w i th  the  work .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    What  concerns d id  you ra ise  w i th  

your  co l leagues as  to  whether  o r  no t  tha t  was cor rec t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Wi th  regard  to  mov ing  the  o rder?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And p lac ing  i t  on  VR Laser?  

MS MALAHLELA:    A t  the  t ime we had th is  MOU which  we 

were  now be ing  to ld  tha t  we need to  fo l low.   So,  under  the  

MOU i f  we are  fo l low ing the  p rov is ions o f  the  MOU,  we can 

p lace tha t  o rde r  and then a t  the  same t ime we cou ld  g ive  10 

tha t  o ther  one to  LMT la te r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay,   d id  EXCO dea l  w i th  the  

mat te r?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Not  tha t  I  can reca l l ,  la te r  on  we ’ re  

ta lk ing  about  d i f fe ren t  i ssue,  i f  you  go to  6 .5  then we are  

now mov ing  in to  –  DLS have been communica ted  to  LMT 

tha t  i t  has  the  in ten t ion  o f  p lac ing  the  Hoefeyster  o rder  fo r  

the  FCM on LMT –  sor ry  I  ac tua l l y  d id  –  i t  s l ipped my mind.  

I  ra ised the  concern  a t  EXCO on the  7 t h  o f  March  2016 and  

there  a re  m inutes  to  tha t  e f fec t ,  apo log ies  fo r  tha t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  tha t  what  you re fer  to  in  6 .4?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So ,  you ra ised the  concern  w i th  

EXCO at  th is  meet ing  tha t  DLS was now p lac ing  the  very  

same orde r  on  VR Laser  w i thout  go ing  back to  LMT? 
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MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  then there ’s  re fe rence to  

EXCO tak ing  lega l  adv i ce ,  do  you know whether  tha t  was 

taken?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  i t  was done,  i f  you  look a t  6 .6  

there  i s  commun ica t ion  w i th  the  Execut ive  Lega l  as  her  

capac i ty  in  tha t  pos i t ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  and you  re fer  to  her  say ing  tha t  

LMT shou ld  be  a f fo rded a  r igh t  o f  f i rs t  re fusa l .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    To  submi t  a  p roposa l .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    On the  Trunn ion  Mach in ing  cont rac t ,  

yes .   Then you re fer  to  your  ra i s ing  concerns,  aga in  a t  

another  EXCO meet ing ,  22n d  o f  March but  what  was the  

ou tcome o f  a l l  o f  th is ,  was an agreement  in  fac t  conc luded  

w i th  VR Laser  fo r  th is  th i rd  lo t  o f  i tems? 

MS MALAHLELA:    We jus t  need  to re fer  to  the  m inutes ,  

so ,  Mr  Burger  in  h is  capac i ty,  so  th is  i s  par t  o f  the  m inutes ,  

in  h is  capac i ty  as  the  CEO of  DLS,  adv i sed tha t  the  20 

memorandum of  a rgument  –  in  th is  case we ’ re  ca l l ing  i t  the  

memorandum of  a rgument  bu t  I  th ink  eve rybody knows 

what  we ’ re  re fe r r ing  to ,  was s igned by  the  Group ’s  Ch ie f  

Execut ive  o f  Dene l  and shou ld  there fo re  supersede the  

Supp ly  Cha in  Po l i cy  o f  Dene l  SOC in  ins tances where  two  
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documents  are  in  conf l i c t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t ,  thank  you.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Then i f  I  can  take  you to  page 686.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What ’s  the  page? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    686 Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    686 appears  to  be  a  le t te r  f rom Ms 

Govender  to  yourse l f .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    On page  688,  the  second las t  10 

parag raph…[ in tervenes] .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Which  one?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    688.  

MS MALAHLELA:    688.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Second las t  parag raph,   

“ In  my v iew,  LMT needs to  be  g i ven an oppor tun i t y  

to ,  a t  leas t ,  quote  on  the  FCM’s  as  DLS was 

fu rn ished w i th  i t s  cos t ings e t ce te ra” ,  

 I s  tha t  a  re ference to  what  you ment ioned ea r l ie r  as  

a  r igh t  o f  f i rs t  re fusa l?  20 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  and then the  document  a t  689,  

tha t  appears  to  be  a  le t te r  f rom you…[ in tervenes] .  

MS MALAHLELA:    So  i f  you  re fe r  to  the  m inutes ,  you w i l l  

see  tha t  I  was asked to  d ra f t  c ryp t ic  no tes ,  i f  you  can jus t  
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go  to  the  exact  m inutes  there  now,  you w i l l  see  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A re  those the  m inutes  a t  page 693?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  jus t  need to  conf i rm because i t  re fe rs  

to  c ryp t ic  no tes  tha t  I  was to  make and send to  the  Group  

CEO,  I  must  jus t  ge t  to  the  exact  re fe rence but  essent ia l l y  

–  we can f ind  the  m inutes  and search  fo r  i t  p roper ly  bu t  

there  were  m inutes .   So,  essent ia l l y,  I  was requested to  

wr i te  c ryp t ic  no tes  to  S tephan hence tha t  emai l  go ing  to  

S tephan.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay le t ’s  move on f rom why there  10 

were  cryp t ic  no tes  and so  fo r th ,  the  ag reement  was,  

u l t imate ly…[ in te rvenes] .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Oh sor ry,  I  found i t ,  i t  i s  on  page 693 i f  

you look a t  the  las t  comment .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The las t  bu l le t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    The las t  bu l le t  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:    As  CEE to  prov ide  CEO wi th  c ryp t ic  

no tes  on  the  summary o f  deve lopments  a round the  issue,  

wh ich  is  what  I  d id  in  the  emai l  bu t  i f  you  page th rough you 20 

w i l l  see  tha t  I ’ ve  ac tua l l y  a lso  bo lded i t  as  par t  o f  the  

m inutes ,  I  asked  the  guys to  bo ld  i t  so  tha t  everybody 

knows what  they ’ re  do ing .   You w i l l  see  the  las t  –  no t  the 

las t ,  the  second las t  bu l le t  on  the  th i rd  co lumn on page 2  

on  top  i t  says ,  



27 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 292 
 

Page 172 of 260 
 

 “CM vo iced concern  and sought  c la r i t y  f rom the  

Commi t tee  on  where  the  Supp ly  Cha in  shou ld  comply  w i th  

the  po l i cy  o r  the  s ing le  source  agreement ” ,   

 So,  he ’s  say ing  cha i r,  re i te ra t ing  the  same po in ts  

tha t  I ’ ve  been re i te ra t ing  over  and over  aga in .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  thank you,  there ’s  one las t  

i ssue wh ich  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  dea l  w i th  be fo re  we c lose  w i th  

your  ev idence Ms Malah le la ,  can I  ask  you p lease  to  tu rn  

to  page 699.  

MS MALAHLELA:    I ’m  here .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now th is  appears  to  be  a  le t te r,  o r  an  

emai l  sent  by  you on the  20 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016 addressed to  

S tephan,  i s  th is  aga in ,  Mr  S tephan Burger?  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now I ’d  l i ke  jus t  to  remind you  o f  the 

re levant  par ts  o f  the  le t te r,  you say th is ,  

 “Hav ing  s igned the  pre fer red  supp l ie r  ag reement  

w i th  VR Laser,  Dene l ,  hav ing  been  in  the  med ia  w i th  regard  

to  i t s  s t ra teg ic  a l l iance w i th  VR Laser,  hav ing  read severa l  

med ia  repor t s  about  a l legat ions o f  s ta te  captu re  by  the  20 

Gupta  fami ly,  more  concerns a re  ra ised about  the  v iab i l i t y  

o f  the  par tnersh ip  and the  r i sks  tha t  Dene l  w i l l  be  exposed 

to ,  shou ld  Dene l  dec ide  to  cont inue i t s  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  VR 

Laser.   I ’m  s t rugg l ing  to  tu rn  a  b l ind  eye to  th is  

phenomenon” ,  
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 Jus t  te l l  the  Cha i r,  how you fe l t  i t  appropr ia te  t o  

ra ise  th is  w i th  Mr  Burger  ra the r  than Mr  Teubes,  you r  

immedia te  super io r  and why you fe l t  i t  appropr ia te  to  

express tha t  you cou ldn ’ t  tu rn  a  b l i nd  eye to  these issues? 

MS MALAHLELA:    In  2016 the  s t ruc ture  had been 

changed a  few t imes and 2016,  I  must  jus t  conf i rm,  I  

be l ieve  tha t  tha t  was the  t ime I  was repor t ing  to  Mr  Burger  

h imse l f .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t  and…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why d id  you fee l  th is  way?  10 

MS MALAHLELA:    So ,  I  th ink  somewhere  in  the  emai l  I  am 

actua l l y  –  I ’m  not  sure  i f  i t ’s  th is  emai l  bu t  we can jus t  

check,  I ’m re fer r i ng  to  –  yes i f  you  look a t  paragraph th ree ,  

I ’m  re fer r ing  to  the  meet ing  tha t  I  had w i th  the  CEO of  VR 

Laser.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Where  he  acknowledged the  t ies  in  

pass ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The t ies  w i th  the  

Gupta ’s…[ in tervenes] .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Who was the  CEO of  VR Laser?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I t  was P ie te r  van der  Merwe.  

CHAIRPERSON:    P ie ter  van der  Merwe? 

MS MALAHLELA:    So ,  be fore  tha t  i t  was hearsay in  med ia  

ar t i c les  and a l l  o f  tha t  bu t  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime,  I  had heard  i t  
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f rom somebody tha t  i t  was jus t  in  f ron t  o f  me.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Your  le t te r  says tha t  he  

acknowledged t ies  w i th  the  Gup ta  fami ly  and the  then,  

Pres ident ’s  son,  Duduzane Zuma.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  in  pass ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Through –  in  d i rec t  sha reho ld ing?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    As  a l leged by  the  med ia?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now you jumped to  the  th i rd  10 

paragraph,  i f  I  can  jus t  remind you what  you sa id  in  the  

second pa ragraph,  in  add i t ion  to  the  med ia  repor ts  and  

acknowledgment  by  Mr  van de r  Merwe tha t  there  were  t ies  

be tween VR Laser  and the  Gupta  fami ly  and the ,  then,  

Pres ident ’s  son  you a lso  ment ioned in  the  second  

paragraph,  tha t  i t  was your  humble  op in ion  as  you  put  i t ,  

tha t ,  

“DLS had fa i led  to  fo l low the  cor rec t  p rocess when  

appo in t ing  VR Laser  as  a  pre fer red  supp l ie r  fo r  the  

supp ly  o f  s tee l  components  and fabr ica t ions,  20 

amongst  o ther  i r regu lar i t ies  there  was no RFQ o r  

tender  i ssued fo r  the  award  o f  the  cont rac t .   In  th is  

regard  I  be l ieve  DLS shou ld  have  approached the  

market  to  ensure  good governance” .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now go ing  back  to  the  paragraph  where  

you re fe r  to  the  CEO of  VR Laser  you were  te l l ing  Mr  

Burger  here  –  you were  te l l ing  Mr  Burger  someth ing  tha t  Mr  

P ie ter  van de r  Merwe had sa id  in  your  p resence on the  19 t h  

o f  Apr i l  2016 as  re f lec ted  here .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  i t ’s  someth ing  tha t  he  had sa id  

in  you r  p resence? 

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Then i f  you wou ld  re fer  to  the  las t  

parag raph on th i s  page,  what ,  essent ia l l y,  were  you  ask ing  

Mr  Burger  to  do?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  was ask ing  h im to  recons ider  the  

arguments  tha t  we had w i th  VR Laser  and te rm inate  them.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You gave cred i t  to  h im fo r  showing  

great  leadersh ip  and hav ing  ach ieved a  tu rnaround  in  the  

d iv is ion  f rom R300mi l l ion  tu rnover  to  over  R2b i l l i on  

tu rnover  over  less  than f i ve  years .   So you compl imented 20 

h im fo r  tha t  and you expressed the  fee l ing  tha t  you  had as  

a  Dene l  employee,  a  p roud Dene l  employee but  what  you 

say a t  the  end o f  th is  page,  the  second last  l ine ,  

“Wi th  the  ra te  tha t  th is  cont roversy  i s  un fo ld ing ,  I ’m 

not  ce r ta in  tha t  th is  company w i l l  even surv ive  long 
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enough fo r  my ch i ld ren  to  see i t .   We ought  to  be  

proud o f  what  we have accompl i shed,  equa l l y  so ,  

we shou ld  do  whatever  i t  takes to  p ro tec t  th is  g rea t  

legacy” ,  

 Those a re  very  f i rm and s t rong words.   Why d id  you  

express your  op in ion  i n  te rms  such as  these,  Ms 

Malah le la?  

CHAIRPERSON:    And maybe,  Mr  Kennedy,  i f  you  don ’ t  

m ind,  we need to  take  a  few minutes  i f  we –  i f  i t ’s  

necessary  –  sor ry  Ms Malah le la  bu t  I  wou ld  l i ke  you,  in  10 

your  own words  to  read tha t  who le  parag raph in to  the  

record ,  I  th ink  i t ’s  a  very  impor tan t  parag raph.  

MS MALAHLELA:    The las t  paragraph?  

CHAIRPERSON:    The las t  paragraph,  bu t  maybe you need 

a  few minutes  to  d r ink  water?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  th ink  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay r igh t ,  then le t ’s  take  a  few 

minutes  –  f i ve  m inutes  ad journment .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May we ask,  th rough your  assoc ia te  

or  may we ind ica te  when the  w i tness has composed  20 

herse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  tha t ’s  f ine .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 
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INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’ ve  changed my mind Ms Malah le la ,  

ra the r  than read the  las t  parag raph I  want  you to  read the  

who le .  

MS MALAHLELA:   The who le  emai l?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS MALAHLELA:    “H i  S tephan,  hav ing  s igned the   

p re fe r red  supp l ie r  agreement  w i th  VR Laser,  Dene l  

hav ing  been in  the  med ia  w i th  regards to  i ts  

s t ra teg ic  a l l iance w i th  VR Laser,  hav ing  read  10 

severa l  med ia  repor ts  about  a l legat ions o f  s ta te  

capture  by  the  Gupta  fami ly,  more  concerns are  

ra ised about  the  v iab i l i t y  o f  the  pa r tnersh ip  and the  

r i sks  tha t  Dene l  w i l l  be  exposed  to  shou ld  Dene l  

dec ide  to  cont inue i t s  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  VR Laser.   I  

am s t rugg l ing  to  tu rn  a  b l ind  eye to  th is  

phenomenon.   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  re i te ra te  tha t ,  i t  i s  my 

humble  op in ion  tha t  DLS fa i led  to  fo l low the  cor rec t  

p rocess when appo in t ing  VR Laser  as  the  pre fer red  

supp l ie r  fo r  the  supp ly  o f  s tee l  components  and  20 

fabr ica t ions.   Amongst  o ther  i r regu lar i t ies  there  was  

no RFQ o r  tender  i ssued fo r  the  award  o f  th is  

contac t .   In  th is  regard  I  be l ieve  tha t  DLS shou ld  

have approached the  market  to  ensure  good 

governance.   I  wou ld  a l so  l i ke  to  b r ing  i t  to  you r  
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a t ten t ion  tha t  the  cur ren t  CEO of  VR Laser  has  

acknowledged tha t  there  are  t ies  w i th  the  Gupta  

fami ly  and the  Pres ident ’s  son ( th rough ind i rec t  

shareho ld ing )  as  a l leged by  the  med ia  in  the  

meet ing  we had yesterday,  the  19 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016 a t  

3  o ’c lock  in  the  a f te rnoon.   In  l igh t  o f  a l l  these fac ts  

I  wou ld  l i ke  to  request  tha t  DLS,  ca re fu l l y  

recons iders  the  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  VR Laser  as  a  

pre fe r red /s t ra teg i c  supp l ie r.   Dene l  i s  a  s t ra teg i c  

asset  o f  th is  count ry  and I ’m  p roud to  be  assoc ia ted  10 

w i th  i t .   I t  g ives  me great  p leasure  to  wake up each  

morn ing  to  serve  th is  count ry.   I  have had the  

pr iv i lege o f  see ing  you tu rn  th i s  d iv is ion  f rom a  

R300mi l l ion  tu rnover  to  over  R2b i l l i on  tu rnover  in  

less  than f i ve  years .   We are ,  no  doubt  a  g rea t  

company,  fu r thermore  I  have grea t  conf idence tha t ,  

under  your  g reat  leadersh ip  we w i l l  ach ieve even 

more  greate r  success.  However,  w i th  the  ra te  tha t  

th is  cont rove rsy  i s  un fo ld ing  I  am not  cer ta in  tha t  

th is  company w i l l  even surv ive  long enough fo r  my  20 

ch i ld ren  to  see i t .   We ought  to  be  proud o f  what  we 

have accompl ished,  equa l ly  so ,  we shou ld  do  

whatever  i t  takes  to  p ro tec t  th is  g rea t  legacy.   K ind  

regards” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  



27 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 292 
 

Page 179 of 260 
 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    How do you fee l  now,  some years  

a f te r  you sent  th is  le t te r  about  what  ac tua l l y  happened? 

MS MALAHLELA:    I  th ink  tha t ,  ac tua l l y  what  b rought  me 

to  tears ,  because  i t ’s  ac tua l l y  what  i s  happen ing  r igh t  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was your  p lea  in  th is  emai l  no t  heeded 

by  Mr  Burger…[ in tervenes] .  

MS MALAHLELA:    He responded harsh ly,  there ’s  an  emai l  

to  tha t  e f fec t  where  i t  was a lso  par t  o f  a  repor t  tha t  was 

issued –  I ’m  not  sure  i f  i t  fo rmed par t  o f  the  newspaper  

a r t i c le  tha t  was…[ in tervenes] .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  take  the  w i tness to  the  foo t  o f  page 

697 and onto  page 698.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  found i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  tha t  the  emai l  tha t  you ’ re  re fer r ing  

to?  

MS MALAHLELA:   That ’s  the  emai l ,  tha t ’s  the  response.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That ’s  an  emai l  f rom Stephan Burger  

h imse l f  and he w i l l  be  g iven the  oppor tun i ty  to  g ive  h i s  

ev idence before  th is  Commiss ion  in  due course ,  we have 20 

h im l ined up to .   May I  jus t  read some re levant  pa r ts ,  Ms  

Malah le la  so  tha t  you can respond .   Can you jus t  conf i rm,  

th is  i s  the  response to  the  le t te r  tha t  you ’ve  jus t  read out  

in  fu l l ,  a t  the  Cha i r ’s  request?  

MS MALAHLELA:    20 t h  Apr i l  –  yes ,  i t  i s .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  says ,  

“Dear  Ce l ia ,  I  must  say  I ’m  very  surpr ised and 

d isappo in ted  in  hav ing  to  rece ive  an  emai l  o f  th is  

g rav i t y  wh i ls t  I ’m  abroad and a l so  g i ven the  fac t  

tha t  the  appo in tment  o f  VR was  done a  ve ry  long 

t ime ago and in  a  t ime you were  in t imate ly  invo lved  

in  the  process o f  the  se lec t ion  o f  VR Laser  as  ou r  

s t ra teg ic  supp l ie r  o f  complex  fabr i ca ted  

components” .  

 Was th is  the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  you had ra ised th is  –  10 

these concerns?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I f  you  look a t  the  m inutes ,  there ’s  

ev idence tha t  I  had been ra is ing  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ac tua l l y,  i sn ’ t  the  pos i t ion  tha t ,  ear l ie r  

on ,  we went  th rough even emai ls  where  you po in ted  th is  

ou t  t ime and aga in  tha t  p roper  p rocedures were  no t  

fo l lowed?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  so  d i rec t l y  I  ra ised i t  w i th  Mr  

Teubes when he was send ing  me the  submiss ion  bu t  f rom 

la te  –  I  th ink  i t ’s  2015,  yes  2015,  la te  2015 I  was ra is ing  i t  20 

in  the  commi t tee  w i th  regards to  conf l i c t  and Mr  Mlambo 

was a lso  respond ing  to  a  lo t  o f  i ssues re la t ing  to  th is  MOU 

– MOA.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t ,  he  m ight  be  

r igh t  in  say ing  he  on ly  heard ,  recent ly  o f  your  concern  
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because you had ra ised i t  in  communica t ion  w i th  o ther  

peop le ,  no t  h im o r  i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  he  had ra i sed  i t  w i th  

h im,  he  was aware  o f  you r  i ssues in  th is  regard?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  had not  ra ised i t  d i rec t l y  w i th  h im,  I  

had  ra i sed i t  w i th  Reenen when he  was ask ing  me to  do  the  

mot iva t ion  and I  ra ised i t  in  the  EXCO meet ing  wh ich  we 

have minutes  o f  in  the  package and we ’ve  read a l ready.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  he  have been pa r t  o f  EXCO? 

MS MALAHLELA:    He ’s  par t  o f  EXCO,  he ’s  ac tua l l y  the  

Cha i r  o f  EXCO…[ in tervenes] .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  he  cer ta in ly  knew you had  ra ised  

those.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  leas t  a t  the  EXCO meet ing?  

MS MALAHLELA:    The minutes  are  there ,  i t  was 

d iscussed in  the  meet ings…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  bu t  your  reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  he  was 

there  a t  EXCO meet ings where  you ra ised i t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  20 

MS MALAHLELA:    As  fa r  as  I  can reca l l ,  and the  m inutes  

are  the re  wh ich  a re  c i r cu la ted  to  h im as we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   Can you comment  on  h is  

remark ,  tha t  you had been in t imate ly  invo lved  in  the  
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p rocess o f  the  se lec t ion  o f  VR Laser,  i t  appears  to  suggest  

th is ,  tha t  you were  par t  o f  tha t  p rocess,  you went  a long 

w i th  i t  and are  now ra i s ing  i t  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime a long t ime 

la te r,  wh i le  he ’s  t rave l l ing ,  he ,  Mr  Burger,  he ’s  t rave l l ing  

overseas.   In  o ther  words,  you seem to  be  happy  w i th  i t  

now,  you haven ’ t  ra ised i t  be fore  you ’ re  ra is ing  i t  now,  any  

comment  on  tha t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    As  you have a l ready –  sor ry  what  was  

the  –  I ’m  los ing  my t ra in  o f  thought ,  what  was the  quest ion  

aga in?  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    He seems to  be  suggest ing  tha t  th is  

i s  an  a f te r thought  by  you because you were  invo lved,  

p rev ious l y  in  the  process o f  VR Laser,  so  why a re  you 

compla in ing  abou t  i t  now i f  you were  pa r t  o f  tha t  p rocess?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  co l lec ted  my thoughts .   So,  as  you  

know I  was not ,  a t  th is  s tage,  you ’ve  seen the  document ,  I  

was not  invo l ved in  the  process o f  appo in t ing  VR Laser  as  

the  pre fe r red  supp l ie r  o f  fabr ica ted  components .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i s  the  pos i t ion  –  as  I  unders tand the  

pos i t ion  is  tha t  you had a  ro le  to  p lay  in  a  process tha t  20 

ended up w i th  VR Laser  be ing  appo in ted  but  you were  no t  

invo l ved in  the  appo in tment ,  ac tua l  dec is ion  to  appo in t  and 

you d id  no t  suppor t  tha t ,  you appo in tment  was ear l ie r,  

tha t ’s  why you took the  po in t  tha t  there  shou ld  be  an open 

tender?  
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MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t  I  sa id  ou t ,  r igh t  a t  the  

beg inn ing  tha t ,  due process shou ld  be  fo l lowed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  is  –  so  the  pos i t ion  is ,  no t  tha t  

you had no invo l vement  in  the  process.  Where  you had no 

invo l vement  i s ,  in  the  dec is ion  to  appo in t  bu t  in  the  

process tha t  p receded tha t  the re  was some invo lvement  

and you took the  pos i t ion  tha t  there  shou ld  be  an open  

tender,  you made i t  known,  i t  was not  suppor ted  and  

w i thout  you r  knowledge,  VR Laser  was appo in ted?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MS MALAHLELA:    So ,  i t  a lso  depends –  I  don ’ t  want  to  

waste  t ime,  i t  a lso  depends on how you in te rpre t  i t .   I  was 

not  invo lved in  the  appo in tment  o f  VR Laser.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no  I  th ink  we are  agree ing  tha t  

on  tha t ,  you were  no t  invo lved in  t he  appo in tment  bu t  there  

is  a  s tage…[ in te rvenes] .  

MS MALAHLELA:   When the  process s ta r ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  wh ich  you were  invo l ved,  and tha t  

s tage a l lowed you the  oppor tun i ty  to  say,  what  p rocess,  in  20 

your  v iew,  shou ld  be  fo l lowed.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You ar t i cu la ted  tha t  –  your  v iews to  

those to  whom you ’ re  supposed to  a r t i cu la te  i t ,  they  d id  no t  

fo l low your  op in ion  and w i thout  your  knowledge,  VR Laser  
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was appo in ted .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  Mr  Kennedy? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   Then he says a t  the  foo t  

o f  the  page,  697,  Mr  Burger  says,  

“ I  a lso  quest ion  the  fac t  tha t  you want  to  re i te ra te 

tha t  the  co r rec t  p rocesses were  no t  fo l lowed.   The 

f i rs t  t ime I  heard  you say tha t  was ve ry  recent ly  i n  

the  pass ing  and was a f te r  the  med ia  was  

quest ion ing  the  Gupta ’s  invo lvement  and pa in t ing  a  10 

negat ive  p i c tu re  o f  Dene l ” ,  

 So,  aga in ,  he  seems to  be  mak ing  the  po in t ,  you ’ re  

ra is ing  th is  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime very  la te .    You ra ised i t  in  

pass ing  a f te r  there  was media  coverage but  tha t  was ve ry  

recent  –  a  very  recent  comment  by  you and you d idn ’ t  ra ise  

i t  a t  the  t ime o f  the  ac tua l  p rocurement  p rocess.   Do you  

have anyth ing  to  add to  what  you ’ve  sa id  a l ready? 

MS MALAHLELA:    I  th ink  I ’m  go ing  to  be  repeat ing  

myse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  i f  i t  i s  t rue  tha t  he  was present  20 

a t  the  EXCO meet ings,  I  don ’ t  know i f  i t  was mee t ings o r  

meet ing  where  you ra ised your  i ssues w i th  th is ,  then he 

cannot  be  genu ine  in  say ing  he ’s  hear ing  fo r  the  –  he  on ly  

heard  recent ly.  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  my po in t  exact ly  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  tha t ’s  you r  po in t .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  obv ious l y  i f  he  was not  p resent ,  tha t  

m ight  change the  p ic tu re ,  bu t  you r  reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  he  

was present  and he was Cha i r ing  the  EXCO.  

MS MALAHLELA:    And the  m inu te  was c i r cu la ted  to  h im 

as we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   The top  o f  page 698,  

 “However,  I  do  agree tha t  i t  i s  no t  p leasant  to  hear  10 

the  Dene l  name in  a  negat ive  connota t ion  and I ’m equa l ly  

p roud o f  the  successes o f  DLS” ,  

 That  seems to  be  a  re ference to  your  s ta tement  in   

your  le t te r  tha t  he  was rep ly ing  to ,  tha t  you were  p roud to  

be  an  employee o f  DLS and Dene l ,  bu t  he  then proceeds to  

say th is ,  

“But  I  want  to  ca tegor ica l l y  s ta te  tha t  I  do  no t  agree 

w i th  your  s ta tement ,  tha t  p roper  p rocesses were  no t  

fo l lowed.   Sure ly,  we d id  no t  send out  an  RFP for  

the  appo in tment  o f  a  s t ra teg i c  supp l ie r ” ,   20 

 So,  he  agrees tha t  the  company d idn ’ t  go  ou t  as  you  

had recommended to  go  ou t  in  a  compet i t i ve  process.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  then he says,  

“But  we d id  iden t i f y  the  most  complex  o f  complex  
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fabr ica ted  sys tems and went  ou t  on  open tender 

and we d id  th is  tw ice ,  

 Do you know what  open tenders  he ’s  re fe r r ing  to  

there?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I . . .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And he says,  

“And th i s  VR –  and th i s ,  VR won by  fo l low ing the  

cor rec t  p rocesses,  on ly  thereaf te r,  VR was se lec ted 

and mot iva ted  as  a  s t ra teg ic  supp l ie r.   The approva l  

thereof  a t  DCO was done by  fo l low ing due 10 

processes” ,  

 Now perhaps Mr  Burger,  you ’ re  no t  sure  what  he ’s  

mean ing  but  le t ’s  jus t  assume fo r  the  moment  tha t  I ’m  r igh t  

when I  ra ise  th is  as  a  poss ib le  suggest ion  tha t  Mr  Burger  

may have been t ry ing  to  ra i se .   He  may have been re fer r ing  

to  the  or ig ina l  cont rac t  be fore  the  s ing le  supp l ie r  cont rac t .   

S ing le  supp l ie r  cont rac t ,  you sa id ,  has to  go  ou t  on  open 

tender  and he ’s  conf i rmed in  h is  le t te r,  they  d idn ’ t  –  you 

d idn ’ t  go  ou t  –  your  company d idn ’ t  go  ou t  on  open tender  

then.   Perhaps he ’s  re fe r r ing  to  the  prev ious process in  20 

wh ich  there  was a  RFO where  LMT submi t ted  p roposa ls ,  so 

d id  VR Laser,  so  d id  the  o ther  company.  I f  tha t  suggest ion  

tha t  I ’m  put t ing  to  you is  r igh t ,  do  you have a  comment  on  

what  he ’s  seems to  be  say ing?  

MS MALAHLELA:    So  as  par t  o f  my emai l  tha t  I  had 
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wr i t ten  to  Reenen,  I  had c lear l y  sa id  tha t  we  cannot  

p iggyback on prev ious processes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:    So  tha t  i s  no t  due process.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  your  answer  wou ld  be  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MALAHLELA:   I f  tha t  i s  what  you are  re fer r ing  to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Your  answer  wou ld  be  a t  a  fac tua l  leve l  

w i th  regard  to  th is  par t i cu la r  appo in tment  tha t  we are  

ta lk ing  about  no  open tender  had been fo l lowed,  and your  

v iew is  and was a t  the  t ime there  was no jus t i f i ca t ion  fo r  10 

no t  fo l low ing an  open tender  in  regard  to  th is  par t i cu la r  

appo in tment .  

MS MALAHLELA:    There  was no jus t i f i ca t ion  and not  

fo l low ing due process.   Remember  the  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  due p rocess wou ld  mean the  

open tender  p rocess.  

MS MALAHLELA:    In  some cases i t  wou ld  be  a  c losed  

tender  under  the  cond i t ions  tha t  a re  s t ipu la ted  in  the  20 

po l i cy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  in  th is  case do you know 

whethe r,  wh ich  one wou ld  have app l ied?  

MS MALAHLELA :    I t  wou ld  have most  p robab ly  been 

c losed tender.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    C losed tender.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Because o f  the  na ture  o f  the  bus iness.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  wou ld  be  what ,  ask ing  fo r  

quota t ions?  

MS MALAHLELA:    The IP tha t  i s  invo l ved th is  –  we d idn ’ t  

ge t  to  tha t  po in t  so  now I  am jus t  –  so  there  is  a  who le  lo t  

o f  th ings tha t  you  need to  take  in to  cons idera t ion ,  then you  

mot iva te  to  Mr  Mlambo.   The po l i cy  ca l led  fo r  mot iva t ion  to  

Mr  Mlambo.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  on your  unders tand ing  o f  the  po l i c ies  10 

o f  the  company a t  the  t ime,  i t  wou ld  be  wrong to  say what  

shou ld  have been fo l lowed wou ld  have been an open  

tender  p rocess.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  what  you  say shou ld  have been 

fo l lowed is  a  c losed tender  p rocess,  i s  tha t  r igh t?     

MS MALAHLELA:    Most  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i t  was not  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes,  most  l i ke ly  because o f  the  na ture .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Most  l i ke ly  yes .    But  no t  what  was  20 

done?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MS MALAHLELA:    And i f  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    On what  was done you say there  was no 
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due process?  

MS MALAHLELA:    There  was no due process.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MS MALAHLELA:    And i f  I  may,  i f  Mr  Burger  i s  re fe r r ing  to  

–  i f  he  is  say ing  tha t  an  open tender  p rocess was fo l lowed 

we a l l  know tha t  open tender  p rocess was not  fo l lowed fo r  

the  prev ious p rocesses hence  I  am shrugg ing  my  

shou lders ,  i f  he  is  ta lk ing  about  open tender,  un less  he  is  

ta lk ing  about  a  p rocess wh ich  i s  an  RFQ or  an  RFO,  tha t  i s  

a  d i f fe ren t  case a l togethe r,  bu t  I  had a lso  c lear ly  s ta ted  10 

tha t  you cannot  p iggy-back on  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja ,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Jus t  c la r i f y  i f  you  wou ld  p lease what  

you mean by  the  p iggy-back,  don ’ t  p iggy-back on  tha t .  

MS MALAHLELA:    So  essent ia l l y  what  they are  –  i t  i s  a lso  

sa id  here  to  say  tha t  we have gone out  on  a  process to  

appo in t  the  supp l ie r  fo r  th is  and  th is  and th i s  and th i s ,  

because o f  tha t  p rocess tha t  we fo l lowed we now appo in t  

the  same supp l ie r  fo r  add i t iona l  work ,  wh ich  was not  par t  

o f  the  or ig ina l  scope.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you cannot  re ly  on  the  p rev ious 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MALAHLELA:    Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you can ’ t  re ly  –  you can ’ t  have a  

s i tua t ion  where  i f  you  have had an  open tender  p rocess in  
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regard  fo r  –  in  regard  to  the  p rov is ion  o f  ABC products  to  

the  company . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MALAHLELA:    And you add . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  p rocess has been comple ted  

you cannot  la te r  on  when you want  a  serv ice  prov ider  

wh ich  w i l l  g ive  you o r  p rov ide  you  w i th  DEF produc ts  say I  

w i l l  take  the  one who succeeded in  the  o ther  o r  in  the  

prev ious tender  p rocess because  i t  won in  tha t  p rocess,  

you can ’ t  say  tha t .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    You have to  embark  upon a  new process.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  what  you  say.  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes and  fu r thermore  there  are  

prov is ions w i th  regard  to  ex tens ions o f  cont rac ts  under  

what  c i rcumstances you can ex tend cont rac ts  and the  

percentages.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS MALAHLELA:    So  in  th is  case we are  ta lk ing  about  a  

to ta l l y  d i f fe ren t  scope and yes i t  was the  a rmour  p la te  and  20 

a l l  bu t  i t  was fo r  d i f fe ren t  veh ic les  and d i f fe ren t  –  i t  was fo r  

veh ic les ,  i t  was fo r  a  who le  lo t  o f  d i f fe ren t  s tu f f  tha t  we 

have seen in  the  documenta t ion ,  bu t  on  top  o f  tha t  as  i t  

was obv ious tha t  i t  was a lso  go ing  to  exceed the  th resho ld  

tha t  you a re  a l lowed to  ex tend the  cont rac t  fo r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  i f  I  can  cont inue  then in  

th is  paragraph o f  Mr  Burger  a t  page 698,  i t  i s  the  second 

paragraph there ,  the  th i rd  l ine ,  i t  i s  to  over lap  w i th  what  we 

ra ised ea r l ie r,  bu t  we d id  ident i f y  the  most  complex  o f  

complex  fabr i ca ted  sys tems and went  ou t  on  open tender 

and we d id  th is  tw ice  and th is  VR1 by fo l low ing the  cor rec t  

p rocesses on ly  t hereaf te r  VR was se lec ted  and mot iva ted  

as  a  s t ra teg ic  supp l ie r,  s t ra teg ic  supp l ie r  in  the  contex t  o f  

th is  le t te r  appears  to  be  a  s ing le  source  supp l ie r,  i f  you  10 

look a t  o ther  pa r ts  o f  the  le t te r.  

 He then says the  approva l  thereof  a  DCO,  tha t ’s  

corpo ra te  leve l ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Was done by  fo l low ing due 

processes,  do  you agree w i th  tha t  asse r t ion  by  h im? 

MS MALAHLELA:    No I  sa id  in  my prev ious s ta tement  I  

w i l l  use  the  p iggy-back aga in ,  you cannot  la tch  on to  

another  p rocess tha t  was done.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  and then he says to  now say  20 

tha t  p rocesses were  no t  fo l lowed jus t  because we don ’ t  

l i ke  the  owners  or  what  i s  wr i t ten  in  the  papers ,  

p resumably  the  newspapers ,  o r  tha t  the  CEO of  VR is  

acknowledg ing  cer ta in  connect ions w i th  the  Gupta  Fami ly   

i s  a lso  a  concern  to  me.    Now may I  jus t  s top  fo r  a  
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moment  and ask  your  comment ,  you ra ised in  your  le t te r,  I  

took  you to  tha t  ear l ie r,  there  were  two main  i ssues tha t  

you ra i sed,  the  one was tha t  you fe l t  p roper  p rocesses fo r  

p rocu rement  had not  been fo l lowed .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And second ly  you ra i sed concerns 

about  t ies  w i th  the  Gupta  Fami ly  and the  consequent  

p rob lem,  po tent ia l  p rob lem for  Dene l  and i t s  reputa t i on .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  what  he  seems to  be  10 

suggest ing  here  is  tha t  you were  us ing  the  Gupta  Fami ly  

connect ions as  a  reason fo r  on ly  now,  as  he  puts  i t ,  

compla in ing  tha t  p rocesses were  no t  fo l lowed,  he  says to  

now say tha t  p rocesses were  no t  fo l lowed jus t  because we  

don ’ t  l i ke  t he  owners ,  o r  what  i s  wr i t ten  in  the  papers  o r  

what  the  CEO has acknowledge is  o f  concern  to  you.   What  

do  you say about  tha t  concern?  

MS MALAHLELA:    So what  I  see here  he  is  a l leg ing  tha t  I  

d idn ’ t  l i ke  the  owners  o f  VR Laser  and i t  was –  f o r  me i t  

was not  necessar i l y  the  peop le  beh ind ,  i t  was –  how do I  20 

pu t  th is  –  i t  was  more  how bus iness was be ing  done and  

the  connect ions tha t  were  be ing  a l leged.   Everybody knows 

about  i t ,  i t  was in  the  med ia ,  and i t  was not  because  i t  was 

in  the  med ia  tha t  I  had a  prob lem –  how do I  –  I  am t ry ing  

to  f ind  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    I t  has  to  be  tha t  i f  you  have the  in te res t  

o f  the  company a t  hear t  you wou ld  be  concerned i f  you f ind  

tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

MS MALAHLELA:    Abso lu te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . the  company  is  do ing  bus iness w i th  

en t i t ies  who damage the  reputa t ion  o f  the  company.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Abso lu te ly,  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Apar t  f rom processes i f  you  f ind  ou t  tha t  

the  type o f  en t i ty  tha t  you have  cont rac tua l  re la t ionsh ip  

w i th  i s  no t  the  type o f  en t i t y  tha t  you wou ld  l i ke  to  be  10 

assoc ia ted  w i th ,  obv ious ly  tha t  must  be  a  concern  i f  you  

have the  in te res t  o f  the  company a t  hear t .   

MS MALAHLELA:    Abso lu te ly,  what  I  wanted to  h igh l igh t  I  

be l ieve  tha t  d id  no t  l i ke  or  I  wou ld  jus t  use  hate ,  i t  i s  a  

s t rong word ,  I  d id  no t  ha te  VR Laser  and I  d id  no t  d is l i ke  

VR Laser,  i t  was what  was happen ing  tha t  I  had a  p rob lem 

wi th .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Ms Malah le la  h is  next  pa rag raph 

s tar ts ,  and I  am not  go ing  to  read the  who le  th ing  he  says:  

“ I  am conv inced  tha t  the  successes DLS recent ly  20 

had was amongst  o thers  a lso  due to  VR Laser  

s te r l ing  per fo rmance as  s t ra teg ic  supp l ie r. . . ”  

And here  I  am jus t  go ing  to  paraphrase i f  I  may Cha i r,  he  

re fers  to  the  Tar ra te l  cont rac t  in  Malays ia  invo lv ing  VR 

go ing  ex t remely  we l l ,  he  doesn ’ t  be l ieve  any o ther  cur ren t  
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supp l ie r  cou ld  have ach ieved th is ,  he  re fe rs  to  the  UN for  a  

cont rac t  fo r  the  supp ly  o f  Caspers  tha t  they requ i red  tha t  

when the  mat te r,  when the  cont rac t  was awarded to  DLS i t  

was on cond i t ion  VRU was used to  fabr ica te  because o f  

the i r  vas t  exper ience and a l so  he  re fe rs  to  Pat r ia  in  

F in land f ind ing  tha t  VR was the  most  competent .    

 So  in  o ther  words  he  is  say ing  we d id  the  r igh t  th ing  

by  appo in t ing  VR Laser  because they are  exce l len t  a t  the i r  

job   Any react ion  to  tha t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    So  as  I  jus t  sa id  p rev ious l y  I  d id  no t  10 

ha te  o r  d i s l i ke  VR Laser,  i t  was the  way o f  do ing  bus iness 

tha t  I  had a  prob lem wi th .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Then he conc ludes h is  le t te r  by 

say ing  th is :  

“There fo re  Ce l ia  what  I  am t ry ing  to  say is  tha t  VR 

Laser  i s  w ide ly  acknowledged as  one o f  our  very  

best  supp l ie rs .   They are  b lack-owned and I  be l ieve  

tha t  p roper  p rocesses were  fo l lowed in  the i r  

se lec t ion .   We cannot  now cance l  the i r  cont rac t s  

jus t  because the  papers  pa in t  a  negat ive  p ic tu re  o f  20 

the i r  invo lvement  w i th  the  Guptas  and a  poss ib le  

r i sk  on  our  reputa t ion  in  dea l ing  w i th  the  VR is  no t  

someth ing  we are  supposed to  take  a  v iew on. ”  

What  he  seems to  be  suggest ing ,  i f  I  m igh t  jus t  s top  there ,  

i s  tha t  i t  i s  no t  appropr ia te  fo r  you as  the  head o f  
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p rocu rement  w i th in  the  DLS D iv is ion  to  be  t roub l ing  

yourse l f  o r  t roub l ing  o thers  in  re la t ion  to  repu ta t iona l  

damage to  Dene l  because o f  pub l i c i t y  a t tached to  l inks  

w i th  the  Guptas  wh ich  cou ld  imp ly  someth ing  improper.   

What  do  you say about  tha t?  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  i s  my unders tand ing  as  we l l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes was tha t  c r i t i c i sm o f  you va l id?  

MS MALAHLELA:    That  I  shou ld  no t  be  concern ing  

myse l f?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:      Yes.  10 

MS MALAHLELA:    As  a  manager  i n  the  company tha t  I  am 

proud o f  and is  a  S ta te  owned  company I  ought  to  be 

concerned about  such mat te rs .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Then he . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Because –  the re  may be many reasons 

fo r  tha t  bu t  s imp ly  a t  a  pure  leve l  you were  say ing  in  your  

emai l  to  h im how proud you were  to  be  assoc ia ted  w i th  

Dene l  –  then sys tems and Dene l ,  obv ious ly  i f  because o f  

the  company do ing  bus iness w i th  peop le  who have very  

bad reputa t ion  tha t  may impact  on  the  reputa t ion  o f  the 20 

company you work  fo r  as  we l l ,  you  might  no t  be  so  proud in  

the  fu tu re  to  be  assoc ia ted  w i th  Dene l  i f  whenever  Dene l ’s  

name is  ment ioned i t  i s  ment ioned in  the  same sentence as  

an  ent i t y  tha t  has  a  bad reputa t ion .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Abso lu te ly  and i t  m igh t  ac tua l l y  go  
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beyond tha t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  our  cus tomers  or  bus iness  

peop le  tha t  we do bus iness w i th  a l l  ove r,  peop le  mean ing  

compan ies  and d i f fe ren t  peop le  tha t  we dea l t  w i th  a round 

the  wor ld  wou ld  have a  prob lem do ing  bus iness w i th  us  

because o f  the  reputa t ion ,  they  wou ld  no t  wan t  to  be  

assoc ia ted  w i th  us .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  they m igh t  no t  want  to  dea l  w i th  

you,  ac tua l l y  I  heard  ev idence las t  year  banks migh t  –  they 

look a t  the i r  c l ien ts  reputa t ion  and i f  you are  assoc ia ted  

w i th  negat ive  th ings and negat iv i t y  they don ’ t  want  you as  10 

a  c l ien t ,  so  i t  i s  maybe Mr  Burger  when he comes here  w i l l  

exp la in  th is  and maybe when he does we w i l l  unders tand  

h is  po in t  o f  v iew  but  fo r  now I  wou ld  have thought  tha t  

everybody wou ld  want  the i r  company not  to  be  impacted  

negat ive l y  in  te rms o f  the i r  reputa t ion  because o f  who they 

do  bus iness w i th .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Abso lu te ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you .   Now how d id  you fee l ,  

we w i l l  ge t  to  your  response in  a  moment ,  in  fac t  can I  jus t ,  

perhaps I  must  jus t  f in ish  o f f  read ing  the  le t te r  f rom Mr  20 

Burger,  he  says a f te r  say ing  i t  i s  no t  someth ing  we are  

supposed to  take  a  v iew on –  

“Th is  i s  someth ing  fo r  DCO to  cons ide r  and I  wou ld  

take  i t  up  w i th  them. ”  

You ind i ca ted  ear l ie r  tha t  i s  the  co rpo ra te  o f f i ce ,  tha t  i s  a t  
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head o f f i ce  leve l  o f  Dene l ,  above the  D iv is ion .  

MS MALAHLELA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And so  he  sa id  i t  i s  no t  for  you to  

t roub le  yourse l f  w i th  th is ,  he  w i l l  ra ise  i t  w i th  DCO and 

then he says:  

“So Ce l ia  may I  p lease request  tha t  we d iscuss th is  

mat te r  when I  am back in  the  o f f i ce  on  Monday. ”  

How d id  you fee l  though when you got  th is  response f rom 

h im?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  was in t im ida ted to  say the  least  and I  10 

was wonder ing  what  he  was go ing  to  say to  me when he 

gets  to  the  o f f i ce .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    D id  you have  a  meet ing  w i th  h im? 

MS MALAHLELA:    We d id  and the  meet ing  he  jus t  kept  on  

go ing  round and  round,  we d id  no t  ge t  to  the  so lu t ion  

where  we get  to  –  as  you know today the  cont rac ts  were  

never  te rm inated.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    D id  he  g ive  you any feedback  to  the 

e f fec t  tha t  he  had or  had not  ra ised i t  w i th  DCO,  w i th  Head 

Off i ce?  20 

MS MALAHLELA:    No.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    D id  you  a t  any s tage cons ider  

yourse l f  ra i s ing  your  concerns a t  a  leve l  h igher  than Mr  

Burger?  

MS MALAHLELA:    I  d id .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    And d id  you take  any s teps in  tha t  

regard?  

MS MALAHLELA:    Yes I  spoke to  the  Group CFO as I  

ment ioned a  b i t  ear l ie r  and un for tunate l y  he  l e f t  the 

company a f te r  tha t  and I  fe l t  tha t  I  was runn ing  out  o f  

avenues and I  s ta r ted  sav ing  money so  tha t  I  wou ld  be  

ab le  to  leave the  company and be  se l f -sus ta inab le  and be  

ab le  to  pay my b i l l s ,  even i f  I  res ign  w i thout  a  job .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  is how strongly you fel t  about  what  

you – these issues? 10 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:   But  I  needed to be – should I  say – I  am 

looking for the word i t  is r ight  on top of  my – I  needed to 

ensure that  I  am not  taking a r isky decision.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  say that  again? 

MS MALAHLELA:   I  needed to ensure that  I  am not  taking a 

– too much r isk when i t  comes to my personal  f inances.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh in terms of  leaving before you made 

proper… 20 

MS MALAHLELA:   Before I  have a job then I  end up in… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Financial  d i ff icul t ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Did you stay in Supply Chain at  DLS for 
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the rest  of  your t ime at  Denel? 

MS MALAHLELA:   No I  lef t  Denel  in 2016.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sorry when did you leave Denel? 

MS MALAHLELA:   I  lef t  – sorry I  lef t  DLS in 2016.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   DLS in 2016.  Where did you go to? 

MS MALAHLELA:   I  resigned without  a cont ract  at  the t ime 

and on … 

CHAIRPERSON:   You said you lef t  at  the end of  2016? 

MS MALAHLELA:   At  the end of  the same year.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

MS MALAHLELA:   [ Inaudible] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja same year ja.  

MS MALAHLELA:   During the t ime when I  was serving not ice 

I  was then asked what happened.   I  d id not  want to go into a 

lot  of  deta i ls but  essent ia l ly I  was asked to come and work at  

DCO and I  worked wi th Mr Mlambo and the COO. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay let  me understand that .   At  a  certain 

stage towards the end of  the year or  2016 you decided you 

were going to leave Denel .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  before you could leave you were asked 

to work at  Denel  Corporate Off ice.  

MS MALAHLELA:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  request  had noth ing to do wi th your  

impending departure at  the t ime.  
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MS MALAHLELA:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh they just… 

MS MALAHLELA:   The request  did not  exist .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh they did not  know any – about your  

plans.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

MS MALAHLELA:   And… 

CHAIRPERSON:   And then what happened?  How long did 

you work DCO – DCO? 10 

MS MALAHLELA:   I  may just  add on that  maybe something – 

maybe this point  i t  is also important .   So on the day of  my 

farewel l  at  DLS as I  was dr iv ing back to the off ice Stephan 

gave me – Mr Burger gave me a cal l  that  I  should come to 

his off ice.  

CHAIRPERSON:   This is now on the last  day at  DLS? 

MS MALAHLELA:   On the last  day.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  as you were arr iv ing in the 

morning? 

MS MALAHLELA:   We went to go and have a farewel l  20 

breakfast .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh and then when you came back.  

MS MALAHLELA:   When I  was now dr iv ing back.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MS MALAHLELA:   So he asked me to have a meet ing wi th  
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h im. 

CHAIRPERSON:   So you made a decision you were going to 

leave Denel .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you made that  decision in  

ci rcumstances where you had not  obta ined another 

employment? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Correct  I  d id not  have a new cont ract .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You did not  have any cont racts? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you had reached a point  where you 

said you could not  cont inue.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  Denel .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:   So the intent ion at  the t ime was that  I  

would do volunteer work and I  wi l l  ta lk to di fferent  people 

and see who is wi l l ing to … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

MS MALAHLELA:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   So he asked you to come 

and see him? 

MS MALAHLELA:   He asked me to come and see him and 

when I  got  to his off ice he actual ly made me an offer  to stay.   
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And I  bel ieve – th is is what I  heard later on that  he had gone 

and asked HR – so I  – I  do not  have evidence I  heard f rom 

di fferent  people – f rom somebody e lse that  he had gone and 

asked HR the salar ies of  the other EXCO members that  were 

highly paid.   And he used this as the benchmark as to how 

much he can offer me to stay.   But  now he was bidding 

against  corporate people now which was… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   DPO.  10 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wanted you at  a certain salary as wel l .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Exact ly.   No,  no D – I  lef t  wi thout  an 

increase in my salary.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh DCO was going to take you wi thout  an 

increase on your salary.  

MS MALAHLELA:   I  d id not  get  an increase.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  he was offer ing you.  20 

MS MALAHLELA:   More.  

CHAIRPERSON:   More.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.   And what d id you do? 

MS MALAHLELA:   And I  to ld him I  wi l l  th ink about  i t  and 
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there was nothing to th ink about.   I  just  wanted to appease 

him.  I  went  back and I  to ld him I  cannot take i t  and I  lef t .   

And fol lowing that  the envi ronment or rather the re lat ionship 

has not  been – the greet ings were less – we would meet at  

DCO somet imes i t  wi l l  be l ike – ja anyway.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To what extent  did the tone and content  of  

h is response to you in terms of  th is emai l  at  –  star t ing at  

697?  Contr ibute to your decision to  leave.  

MS MALAHLELA:   I  fe l t  powerless and I  bel ieve that  i f  you 

can no longer make a contr ibut ion in  a company then you 10 

should not  be there just  for the sake of  just  s i t t ing there 

doing what? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Your role in  a company is to  make a 

meaningful  cont r ibut ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:   And i f  the company does not  serve you or 

provide you wi th  that  k ind of  environment anymore then you 

should not  be there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And how long did you work at  DCO? 20 

MS MALAHLELA:   I  worked there roughly for about  seven 

months wi thout  being in any part icu lar role and around 

August  I  was asked to act  in a posi t ion and when I  lef t  I  was 

act ing in th is posi t ion.   I  had no real  posi t ion that  I  was 

appointed in.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   So the not ice that  you had served or you 

were serving at  the t ime you went to have break – a farewel l  

breakfast  or whatever that  was a not ice of  resignat ion f rom 

DLS.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Which was revoked.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which was revoked.  

MS MALAHLELA:   When I  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   When you went to  DCO? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes i t  was handled as a t ransfer.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh and then you had to do a f resh 10 

res ignat ion later on f rom DCO? 

MS MALAHLELA:   In 2017 – 2017 I  then lef t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Was i t  in  2017 I  have got  the – the facts 

in here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay.   So ear l ier on you said you lef t  

them.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Sorry not  in 2017 I  started at  DCO in 

2017 I  lef t  Denel  in 2019 sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh you lef t  DLS towards the end of  2015.  20 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And went to DCO. 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then you le f t  DCO and Denel  in i ts  

ent i rety in 2019? 
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MS MALAHLELA:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay al r ight .   Okay al r ight .   Ms Kennedy I  

cont inued because I  thought you were st i l l  – so you can – 

you can cont inue or f in ish off .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or whichever.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you very much.  I  just  have one 

further quest ion of  the wi tness and i t  re lates to a problem 

that  arose ear l ier in her evidence.   Because and we 

apologise for th is the annexure was omit ted.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Ms Malahlela I  am going to – just  going 

to read out  the paragraph i f  I  may of  your aff idavi t  where this 

arose just  for the Chai rperson’s assistance.   I t  is  at  page 

161 paragraph 5.17 and 5.18.   What  you said is th is:  

“As is apparent  f rom the draf t  let ter the 

Group Supply Chain Execut ive and you 

ment ioned that  was Mr Mlambo was 

requested a grantees’ approval  in the imple – 

for the implementat ion of  the DLS EXCO 20 

decision of  29 October 2015” 

That  was the memorandum of  agreement wi th VR Laser and 

that  that  took precedence over the procurement pol icy.   And 

then you said:  

“Mr Mlambo did not  co-sign the let ter. ”  
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And you at tach a copy of  the let ter and you may recal l  Chai r  

that  that  is the unfortunately  in a copy in process that  was 

not  apparent ly  avai lable and that  you wi l l  f ind Chai r  at  page 

5 – sorry 680.   680 of  the same bundle.   And we indicated 

that  we would deal  wi th that  in evidence of  Mr Mlambo but  

when the document became avai lable we would refer to i t  to 

your at tent ion.   My learned col leagues have eff ic ient ly found 

the document in the very same bundle as an annexure to Mr 

Mlambo’s aff idavi t .   I  am not  going to take the wi tness to the 

aff idavi t  but  i f  I  may refer her to the relevant  page and just  10 

ask her to conf i rm is th is the let ter that  she had in mind that  

Mr Mlambo was not  prepared to approve.   Can I  take you 

please Ma’am to page number 840.   Do you have that? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Page 840? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   840.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Oh that  is now beyond my sect ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  is correct .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Ja.   Yes that  is the one.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   This is the let ter that  we looked at  

ear l ier in draf t  form I  bel ieve which here is s igned by you 20 

and am I  correct  in understanding i t  was then sent  for  

approval  by Mr Mlambo.  Are you able to say there appeared 

to be two signatures further down the page – there is a note 

– a handwri t ten note that  starts NB and that  is fo l lowed by a 

signature and then further on i t  appears to be a di fferent  
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handwri t ing and another signature f rom Mr Nsepe.[?]   The 

f i rst  s ignature do you recognise that? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes I  do.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Whose signature is that? 

MS MALAHLELA:   I t  is looks l ike Mr Mlambo’s signature just  

af ter the comment .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R ight .   So did he sign where you typed 

approval  – was he meant to s ign there i f  he did approve i t?  

MS MALAHLELA:   That  was my understanding.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Did he sign i t?  10 

MS MALAHLELA:   No as… 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And what is  –  what his  note says is  a 

DVS and LMT must submit  proof  that  they cannot meet the 

requi rements pr ior to the contract  being awarded to VR 

Laser.  

MS MALAHLELA:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Mr Kennedy.   I  am trying to 

fo l low what he is  saying here.   What you had said in the 

let ter that  he is not  s igning is that  you had expressed your  20 

view that  th is should fol low due process but  EXCO had 

decided that  i t  was not  going to happen and that  they had 

asked you to draf t  a let ter to him.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which you had done.  
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MS MALAHLELA:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now you expected him s ign approval  he 

does not .  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes I  thought.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So what is the context  of  saying DVS and 

LMT must submit  proof  that  they cannot meet the 

requi rements.   What is he talk ing about? 

MS MALAHLELA:   As you may recal l  ear l ier we spoke about 

inter group procurement.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

MS MALAHLELA:   So LMT and DVS are in – yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are they group ent i t ies? 

MS MALAHLELA:   So he was saying that  they must  then say 

that  they cannot  do the work before we can approach 

somebody e lse to do the same work.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  they are both group ent i t ies.   I  

know that  you said LMT is somet imes… 

MS MALAHLELA:   LMT – yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Regarded as group ent i ty somet imes not .  

MS MALAHLELA:   With that  understanding then.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MALAHLELA:   You can say they are group ent i t ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MS MALAHLELA:   And I  say wi th regard to LMT [00:12:23] .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  he was addressing a concern you had 
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not  raised here.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  was just  his own issue.  

MS MALAHLELA:   So conf l icts between pol icy and signed 

MOU’s.   So pol icy said inter group you must go to inter 

group companies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

MS MALAHLELA:   So i t  was related to what I  had raised in 

here – what I  sought guidance on.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.    10 

MS MALAHLELA:   Because we are referr ing now on 

paragraph 2.  

“Under no ci rcumstances shal l  products or 

serv ices that  can be procured f rom group 

ent i ty or d iv is ion be procured f rom an 

external  suppl ier  on non-Denel  companies 

unless there is an approval  by the Group 

Supply Chain Execut ive based on sound 

reasons.”  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So this would address the 20 

requi rement that  group ent i t ies must  be given an opportuni ty 

to do the job.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Absolutely.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And only i f  they cannot do i t  do you go 

outside? 
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MS MALAHLELA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  would have addressed that  issue what he 

is ta lk ing about.  

MS MALAHLELA:   I f  they have sound reason.   Absolutely.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i t  would not  have addressed your  due 

process concerns.  

MS MALAHLELA:   Concerns.   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  would not  have addressed that .  

MS MALAHLELA:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  10 

MS MALAHLELA:   I  bel ieve but  I  am sure Mr Mlambo wi l l  

speak to i t .   There was a point  where he addressed the MOU 

i tsel f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   He? 

MS MALAHLELA:   He addressed the MOU i tsel f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS MALAHLELA:   But  I  am sure he wi l l  speak to that  in his  

test imony.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   And just  to provide clar i ty  20 

to a quest ion that  the Chair  ra ised ear l ier.   You have 

conf i rmed LTN was a group ent i ty.   DVS stands for what? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Denel  Vehicle Systems.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And that  is – was also a group ent i ty? 

MS MALAHLELA:   Yes which is the previous BAE.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Thank you Chai r  there are no 

further quest ions f rom us.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  know that  Mr Kennedy we have taken 

much longer wi th th is wi tness than we thought.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We have.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja but  I  th ink that  i t  was necessary and 

issues have been deal t  wi th.   We have done just ice to the 

issues there – there were important  issues that  her evidence 

covered.   Thank you very much Ms Malahlela for  avai l ing 

yoursel f  and i t  – f rom what I  am told i t  looks l ike you may 10 

have had to shi f t  your t ravel l ing arrangements in order to be 

able to give the commission adequate t ime.  Thank you very 

much.  We appreciate that .   Thank you for coming to give 

evidence.   You are now excused.  Thank you.   Mr Kennedy I  

am avai lable for us to use whatever t ime we can wi th the 

next  wi tness i f  that  is – that  is f ine wi th you? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes may we proceed with the next  

wi tness? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   He has been wai t ing for some hours.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So i t  would be useful  i f  we could to at  

least  start  h is evidence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja at  least  we can use the hour and then 

we can talk about  whether he is avai lable tomorrow morning 
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to cont inue before we go to the next  wi tness or whatever 

arrangements … 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   May I  then ca l l  to the 

wi tness stand Mr Mandla Denis Mlambo.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes thank you.   The f i les for the wi tness?  

I  th ink – I  th ink nobody told Ms Malahlela that  they should 

remain here – the bundles.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am sorry I  d id not  hear you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am saying nobody seems to have told Ms 

Malahlela that  the bundles should remain here.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Oh I  am sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  she is st i l l  around.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Oh dear I  am sorry about that  Chai r.   

The at torneys are also… 

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease administer  the oath or aff i rmat ion.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your fu l l  names for the record.  

MR MLAMBO:   Mandla Nkosi  Denis Mlambo.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  taking the 

prescr ibed oath? 

MR MLAMBO:   No I  do not .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Do you consider the oath to be binding 

on your conscience? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes I  do.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you swear that  the evidence you wi l l  g ive 

wi l l  be the t ruth;  the whole t ruth and nothing else but  the 
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t ruth;  i f  so please ra ise your r ight  hand and say,  so help me 

God. 

MR MLAMBO:   So help me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay thank you;  you may seated.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Perhaps for you 

Chair  may I  just  ask the wi tness perhaps to remove h is mask 

so that  i t  wi l l  be… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   More comfortable for him and more 

audible for us.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Thank you.    You may be seated.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Good af ternoon Mr Mlambo.  

MR MLAMBO:   Good af ternoon.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And I  th ink just  lower your microphone a 

l i t t le bi t .   Yes,  yes.   Are you comfortable? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes I  am.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Can I  suggest  some guidance so that  

the Chai r  wi l l  be able to hear your voice clear ly and the 

microphone wi l l  as wel l .   I  know normal ly when people ask 20 

you quest ions you wi l l  look at  the person who is asking the 

quest ion.   I  am going to ask you to act  contrary to that  for  

th is af ternoon.  When you hear my quest ions wi l l  you please 

di rect  your face towards the Chai r  and the microphone so 

that  he and the microphone pick up your evidence clear ly? 
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MR MLAMBO:   Hm.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  you could please t ry and remember 

that .   Thank you Mr Mlambo.  I  know i t  is not  al l  that  

comfortable but  i t  wi l l  help.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  see that  he is set t l ing himsel f  to 

look this side.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Indeed. 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  let  us see he wi l l  manage.  I  –  i t  is  

important  that  I  hear what you say Mr Mlambo, you 

understand? 10 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or i t  might  be the chai r.   I t  looks l ike you 

are not  very comfortable in that  chair.   You wi l l  manage? 

MR MLAMBO:   Ja I  wi l l  – I  wi l l  manage.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay al r ight .  

MR MLAMBO:   There is not  much I  can do.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   So when you give answers t ry and 

look this side.  

MR MLAMBO:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  20 

MR MLAMBO:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   Mr Mlambo is i t  correct  that  

you have consul ted wi th us as the legal  team for  the 

commission deal ing wi th Denel? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes I  have indeed.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   And also wi th the invest igators and you 

have produced an aff idavi t ,  is that  correct? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   May I  ask you in the f i le in f ront  of  you.   

Do you have – do you have the document that  bears your 

name?  I f  I  can ask you please to  look at  page numbers that  

are made on the top lef t  of  each page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  for the record Mr Kennedy you conf i rm 

that  for th is wi tness too we are using the same bundle that  

we were using for  the previous? 10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  is correct  so.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Witness which is Denel  Bundle 01.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   01 that  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And i t  appears Chai r  as Exhibi t  W11. I  

wi l l  ask to have that  admit ted once I  have had h im conf i rm 

that  i t  is his signature etcetera.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Hm.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr Mlambo do you have page 704?  Mr  

Mlambo wi l l  you please just  look at  the page number on the 20 

top and see i f  you have got  page 704? 

CHAIRPERSON:   The black numbers.  

MR MLAMBO:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  and is that  the f i rst  page of  what 

is referred to as a statement bear ing your name,  Mandla 
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Denis Mlambo? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is th is  the aff idavi t  that  you signed as 

requested by the commission’s invest igators? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes i t  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   Can I  ask you please now 

to turn to the end of  that  aff idavi t  a t  page 733.   Do you have 

that? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes I  do.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is that  your signature that  appears 10 

there above the signature of  the Commissioner of  Oaths? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes i t  is indeed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Do you – do you conf i rm Mr Mlambo 

that  th is is your aff idavi t  and that  i ts contents are t rue and 

correct? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes I  do.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   Chair  may we then formal ly  

ask for the admission of  th is exhib i t  that  is Exhib i t  W11 in 

Denel  Bundle 01 as an exhibi t  of  th is commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you the statement or aff idavi t  by Mr 20 

Mandla Denis Mlambo start ing at  page 704 is admi t ted as 

Exhibi t  W11.  Is that  r ight? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   W11 that  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Mr Mlambo I  am 
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going to take you through some parts of  your aff idavi t  and 

the annexures that  require part icu lar focus.   Now you were 

previously employed by Denel ,  is that  correct? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   When did you start  there? 

MR MLAMBO:   In 2004.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  I  can take you to page 706 you have 

referred to your  var ious qual i f icat ions which inc lude a 

Bachelor of  Commerce Degree f rom Unisa.  

MR MLAMBO:   Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And var ious diplomas and other  

qual i f icat ions,  Correct? 

MR MLAMBO:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And now are you st i l l  working for 

Denel? 

MR MLAMBO:   No I  am not  I  am actual ly in the consul t ing 

business now.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  when d id you leave Denel? 

MR MLAMBO:   I  lef t  Denel  in June 2019.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   2019? 20 

MR MLAMBO:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And what posi t ion did you hold at  that  

stage that  when you lef t?  

MR MLAMBO:   When I  lef t  I  was st i l l  Group Supply Chain 

Execut ive.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   And when did you take up that  

posi t ion? 

MR MLAMBO:   I t  was in 2012.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now i f  I  can take you to your paragraph 

2.5 on page 706 you make reference to your role previously 

as Execut ive manager for Supply Chain and then you make 

reference to developing and implement ing var ious systems.  

Did those systems relate to procurement in part icular? 

MR MLAMBO:   No they actual ly re late to business systems 

and processes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   As Group Supply Chain – Group Execut ive 

Supply Chain Management were the people who would report  

to you be people who were in d i fferent  div is ions or  

subsidiar ies of  Denel  but  those who were Supply Chain 

Management posi t ions in Supply Chain Management  – l ike 

managers.  

MR MLAMBO:   Yes i t  was essent ia l ly the Supply Chain Head 

at  the var ious divis ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MLAMBO:   In Denel .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   And – so in the context  of  the evidence of  

Ms Malahle la would that  have been Mr Teubes who would 

have reported to you? 

MR MLAMBO:   So there was actual ly  a  dot ted l ine.   I t  – the 

Supply Chain divis ional  heads actual ly reported ei ther  to the 
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CEO or the COO or  the CFO at  the divis ion and there was a 

dot ted l ine to. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh to you?  Okay.  

MR MLAMBO:   That  is to my posi t ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So your posi t ion was that  o f  Group 

Supply Chain Execut ive for the group as a whole.  

MR MLAMBO:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is that  correct? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then the group comprised var ious 

ent i t ies head off ice and a whole lot  of  d iv is ions.  

MR MLAMBO:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And was DLS one of  those divis ions? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes i t  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And DVS another? 

MR MLAMBO:   And yes DVS as wel l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And did each of  those have thei r  own 

procurement sect ion as wel l?  

MR MLAMBO:   Yes each of  the div is ions had a supply chain 20 

funct ion f rom the people prepared to cal l  that  a procurement 

funct ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And would you l ia ise wi th  those 

people? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes we had regular meet ings and they were 
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a lso at  l iberty to consul t  wi th me i f  they had chal lenges.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R ight .   Now – so was – did you have 

contact  wi th Ms Malahlela who gave evidence before you 

today? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes I  d id probably more so than wi th other 

div is ions.   I  suppose that  would have been because of  the 

Hoefyster contract .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   Now let  us get  immediately to 

that  Hoefyster contract  and you deal  f i rst  wi th the Hoefyster 

contract  i t  was speci f ical ly for  the product ion of  217 10 

armoured hul ls.   Is that  r ight? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And you deal  wi th that  in your aff idavi t  

f rom – in paragraph 3 f rom the top of  page 708.   Now you 

refer f i rst  to the procurement pol icy;  were you involved in a 

formulat ion of  that  procurement  pol icy once you were 

appointed as Group Execut ive? 

MR MLAMBO:   No the 2008 version I  was not  involved in the 

draf t ing thereof  and giving inputs to that .   I  actual ly  inheri ted 

i t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Inheri ted that? 

MR MLAMBO:   That  the 2008 version.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Was that  then rev ised? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes i t  was revised.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   When was that? 
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MR MLAMBO:   In  2014.   Wel l  i f  the process actual ly started 

in 2013 but  i t  was ul t imately approved in 2014 in November.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MR MLAMBO:   Because i t  had to be ul t imate ly approved by 

the Denel  board.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Can I  take you please in th is 

bundle to page 742.   Do you have that? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Just  te l l  the Chai r  p lease what th is 

document is? 10 

MR MLAMBO:   This is a Delegat ion of  Author i ty that  was 

issues in November 2012 but  that  was for the whole group of  

Denel .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So would that  have to be fol lowed and 

appl ied in a divis ion such as DLS and DVS? 

MR MLAMBO :    Oh,  yes across the group with the provision 

that  div is ions were actual ly given the r ight  to customise,  so 

long as they did not  deviate f rom ensuring that  there was 

al ignment wi th the group delegat ion of  author i ty.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Now I  may I  ask you please to  20 

refer to page 757.   I  apologise,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now may I  draw your at tent ion to 

paragraph 5.1?  Just  explain to the Chai r  very br ief ly what 

th is provides,  5.1? 
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MR MLAMBO :    5.1 essent ia l ly st ipu lates . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   5.1 at  what page? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Page 757,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    757.   Yes,  okay.  

MR MLAMBO :    This deals wi th the normal procurement of 

product  and serv ices.   And of  course,  i t  a lso st ipulates 

approval  levels associated wi th th is delegat ion of  author i ty  

depending on the value of  the t ransact ion.    

 Then there is  a certain execut ive or individual  

author ised to approve.   I f  you look at  the f i rst  one.   Anything 10 

below 50 mi l l ion and equal  to 50 mi l l ion would have had to 

be approved.    

 The t ransact ion would have had to be approved by the 

divis ional  CEO.  And then between 50 mi l l ion and 

200 mi l l ion,  the Group CEO and anything above 200 mi l l ion 

had to be approved by the board.    

 But  in al l  instances,  I  had to be consul ted to sat isfy  

mysel f  that  the processes were fol lowed were consistent  wi th  

the pol icy and the relevant  leg islat ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And where do we f ind that  in re ference 20 

to that  in th is table? 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry,  Mr Kennedy.  

MR MLAMBO :    I t  is in the remarks,  the last  columns.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .  

CHAIRPERSON :    One second.  I  am sorry Mr Kennedy.   I  
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just  want us to connect  th is wi th what we were deal ing wi th 

ear l ier.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You remember when we were deal ing wi th 

Ms Malahlela that  reduced pr ice of  the . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am sorry? 

CHAIRPERSON :    That  reduced pr ice of  VR Laser.   You 

know, they reduced the pr ice and we were wondering 

whether the reduct ion of  the pr ice meant that  the deal  could 

be approved by the GCO, GCE or by the board.    10 

 I t  appears now that  we have gone back to these 

delegat ions that  i f  i t  was 200 or  more than 200,  i t  should 

have gone to the board.    

 I  am under the impression that  the reduced pr ice was 

st i l l  over 200.   I  may be mistaken but  I  thought i t  was 200 

and something mi l l ion,  the one that  VR Laser used af ter  

reducing i t .   I t  was . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    [microphone not  switched on]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay,  okay.   No,  that  is f ine.   I t  is 

just  that  I  remembered that  we were not  sure when 20 

Ms Malahlela was given evidence and I  was interest  in  

seeing whether i t  was an amount should have gone to the 

board or the Group CEO.  Okay al r ight .   Cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr Mlambo, so you have deal t  wi th  

who has to  approve i t  in a case of  a contract  wi th over 
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200 mi l l ion.   Only the board could approve that ,  correct? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then you were just  taking. . .  

start ing to take the Chai r  to the f ina l  co lumn of  th is table and 

you said that  in al l  three categories,  your approval  – you are 

the Group Supply Chain Manager referred to in that  last  

column.  Is that  r ight? 

MR MLAMBO :    That  is r ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   Is Group Supply Chain 10 

Manager the same as Group Supply Chain Execut ive or 

something? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  i t  is.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  I  thought the manager would be lower.   

Execut ive would be higher.   [ laughing]    

MR MLAMBO :    Ja,  unfortunately,  I  d id not  proof read this 

delegat ion of  author i ty before i t  was issued.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay al r ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You did not  demote yoursel f  

Mr Mlambo.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]    

MR MLAMBO :    No,  I  was not  party to the draf t ing.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Oh.   But  i t  seems that  f rom the i tem 

that  starts wi th less or equal  to  50 mi l l ion,  in the last  

column, we see Group Supply Chain Manager pr ior 
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consul tat ion on procurement above 20 mi l l ion.    

 So am I  r ight  in  understanding that  i f  i t  is less than 

20 mi l l ion,  the Provisional  Procurement people do not  need 

to consul t  you pr ior to giv ing. . .  to recommending for approval  

by their  CEO but  i f  i t  is between 20 mi l l ion and 50 mi l l ion,  

they do? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  anyth ing f rom 20 mi l l ion had to go 

through my off ice.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And then the same point  is in 

the next  i tem in that  last  column.   10 

“And then for contract  above 200 mi l l ion,  a report  

out l in ing the process fo l lowed to invi te a short l isted 

of  suppl iers and evaluat ion of  scores of  the 

short l isted suppl ies and recommendat ions of  the 

Tender Commit tee must  also be tab led to the board 

for approval . ”  

MR MLAMBO :    Ja,  that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And so for those contracts 

. . . [ intervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry again Mr Kennedy.   I  just  want 20 

to make sure that  I  understand what I  ta lked ear l ier about  

the t i t le.   Is the posi t ion that  where i t  says Group Supply 

Chain Manager,  i t  is  correct?  Or is  the posi t ion that  there is  

something wrong,  i t  should have said execut ive? 

MR MLAMBO :    I t  should have said execut ive but  
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. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    So the correct  posi t ion is that  the person 

who was supposed to be referred to here is Group Supply 

Chain Execut ive.   I t  was a mistake that  i t  was said manager? 

MR MLAMBO :    Ja,  because I  was the only one in the group 

in that  posi t ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay al r ight .   So i f  I  make a note to 

say execut ive,  i t  is actual ly correct? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  i t  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Thank you,  Mr Kennedy.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Just  to  complete 

that  wi th you,  Mr Mlambo.  Which Divis ional  Procurement 

and other  off ic ia ls such as Ms Malahlela have understand 

this delegat ion,  when they read i t ,  i f  st i l l  Group Supply Chain 

Manager,  would you expect  them to understand that  to mean 

you as Group Supply Chain Executor? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  because this was actual ly at  group level  

and there could not  be any other  Group Supply Chain 

Execut ive or Manager except  me at  the t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In terms of  the t i t les,  at  group level ,  would 20 

you have anybody that  could be referred to as manager? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You could have? 

MR MLAMBO :    Ja,  you could st i l l  f ind that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   But  certa inly,  wi thin Group Supply 
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Chain at  group level ,  there was no person who was manager.   

There was just  the execut ive which was you.  

MR MLAMBO :    Wel l ,  there was a Group Supply Chain 

Support  Manager.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Manager.  

MR MLAMBO :    That  was report ing to me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR MLAMBO :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So this Group Supply Chain Manager 

could actual ly cause confusion? 10 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because the other one would not  know 

whether they lef t  out  supply,  to say Group Supply Chain 

Manager or whether they meant Group Supply Chain 

Execut ive? 

MR MLAMBO :    Ja,  i t  could def in i te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja.  

MR MLAMBO :    I  th ink the people were just  not  met iculous 

enough in draf t ing and put t ing a document l ike this.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay al r ight .   Okay Mr Kennedy. 20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Now your aff idavi t  

then refers to a submission that  you received f rom the DLX 

Exco.   I  just  want  to get  the page for  you.   May I  just  have a 

moment,  Chai r? 

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    In the same bundle,  i f  you can turn 

please to page 772? 

MR MLAMBO :    Ja,  772? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  I  have found that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now what  is that  document?  I t  is  

headed:  Group Chief  Execut ive Off ices Supply Chain 

Submissions.   And i t  is  dated the 1s t  of  July 2014.   And i t  is  a 

note addressed to Exco.   Would that  be Group Exco or DLS 

Exco? 10 

MR MLAMBO :    This  was actual ly  f rom DLS and i t  was a 

submission for approval  of  VR Laser for the supply 217 

plat form house.   Al though, here i t  refers to 183 plat form 

house.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  we have. . .   The Commission has 

al ready heard evidence of  a previous wi tness.   I f  I  can just  

take you to page 774.   There is an explanat ion for how the 

217 was reduced to 183.    

MR MLAMBO :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And was i t  sent  to you simply to give 20 

your views or to approve i t  or reject  i t?  

MR MLAMBO :    Wel l ,  th is one,  i f  I  look at  the signature,  i t  is  

on the last  page.   I t  actual ly  bypassed my off ice and what 

should have happened before i t  went  to the Group CEO, i t  

should have gone through my off ice so I  could actual ly ver i fy 
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whether the process that  was fol lowed was clean and 

compl iant  wi th our  pol icy and re levant  p ieces of  leg islat ion.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   Where. . .  on what page are 

you looking at ,  what you are saying,  you say i t  had bypassed 

your off ice?  I  assume that  is because you see somebody’s 

signature or what? 

MR MLAMBO :    Wel l ,  th is one is not  s igned.   I  th ink there is  

one that  has got  my name but  that  is the one we wi l l  

probably ta lk about  later that  I  re jected later.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    But  what  makes you say i t  has bypassed 

your off ice?  What  is that  you see that  makes you say that? 

MR MLAMBO :    Ja,  the Group CEO could not  possibly have 

known that  the process was compl iant  and for a big 

t ransact ion l ike th is one,  i t  was a huge r isk for him to simply 

append his s ignature because that  ent i re  t ransact ion could 

be deemed i r regular.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  but  I  would understand i f  you say that  

when we see where he has a lready signed before wi thout  

you signing.   So I  am looking and I  wondering whether there 20 

is a page l ike that  where you say:   I  can see i t  bypassed me 

because on this page there is Group CEO’s signature but  

there is my s ignature.    

MR MLAMBO :    Ja,  okay th is one is not  s igned 

. . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    But  you say there is another  one that  is 

s igned.  

MR MLAMBO :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Which is basical ly the same thing? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  that  is the same thing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .    

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay so you. . .  so that  is why you say, 

bypassed your off ice? 

MR MLAMBO :    H’m.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   Now Mr Mlambo, your 

aff idavi t  indicates that  you had di ff icul t ies wi th th is proposed 

t ransact ion and you raise some of  the reasons in your 

aff idavi t  and you refer to a number of  emai ls that  we wi l l  

come to in a moment.   May I  take you. . .   Yes,  let  me take 

you immediately to page 787.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Did you say . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    787.  

CHAIRPERSON :    787.    20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    In fact . . .   No,  i t  starts at  788.   I t  is an 

emai l  f rom Reenen.  Is that  Mr Reenen Thebus?   

MR MLAMBO :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    At  the top.   In fact ,  let  us star t  in the 

middle.   That  seems to be your f i rst  emai l .   I t  comes f rom 
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you on the 2n d of  September to Cel ia and Reenen.   Is that  

Cel ia Malahlela and Reenen Thebus?   

MR MLAMBO :    Ja,  that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then you refer to LMT having a 

val id BBBEE cert i f icate.    

“ I  am baff led as to why i t  was not  submit ted as per  

your claim at  th is  evening’s meet ing.   I  wi l l  request  

detai ls f rom Stephan Nel  about  the pr ic ing and proof  

of  shareholding of  VR Laser as issued.”  

 So there are two issues that  you ra ise here in th is br ief  10 

emai l  and that  is LMT whether  i t  has a val id  BBBEE 

cert i f icate.    

 And then,  the second issue is the sharehold ing of  VR 

Laser.   And you. . .  that  seems to have been raised in a 

meet ing that  you held wi th your col leagues f rom DLS.  Was 

there such a meet ing? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  there was a meet ing.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And what was the purpose? 

MR MLAMBO :    The purpose was actual ly to convince me to 

approve this t ransact ion to  award the contract  for  183 20 

plat form house to VR Laser.   And af ter having looked at  the 

ent i re submission,  the scor ing.    

 The way the ent i re process was handled,  I  was actual ly 

not  just  angry but  I  fe l t  that  th is is a process that  is being 

manipulated in order to favour VR Laser.   There were two 
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cr i t ical  th ings that  I  was actual ly angry over.    

 The f i rst  one was that  this should not  have actual ly even 

gone out  to external  part ies or companies to quote because 

we had acqui red LMT in part icular to actual ly design and 

manufacture the same products so that  we could meet our  

contractual  obl igat ions on the Hoefyster cont ract .   So i t  

baff led me.   

 And the other issue is that  Mr Burger – because I  was 

actual ly s i t t ing on the board of  DLS at  the t ime.  He was 

actual ly at  pains to convince the DLS Board about the 10 

importance,  the st rategic importance of  LMT.   

 And he pointed out  that  i f  we did not  save LMT because 

i t  was going through some f inancial  d i ff icul t ies.    

 And there were also some governance lapses as wel l  

which we could address as a group.   He pointed out  that  we 

would not  be in a posi t ion to execute the Hoefyster contract  

wi thout  LMT.  So this real ly shocked me.   

 But  the same person now was actual ly punt ing the 

importance of  VR Laser to actual ly  be a st rategic suppl ier,  

replacing a company that  is 51% owned by Denel .    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    So in other words,  the job that  VR Laser  

was being asked to do was going to be asked to do i t ,  a l l  of  

these was approved,  was a job that  could be done by a 

company that  is 51% owned by Denel? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  that  is correct .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    That  was one of  your points? 

MR MLAMBO :    That  is correct ,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr Mlambo, can I  take you there.   

There are a whole number of  paragraphs.   Oh, sorry.   

Emai ls.   And I  am not  going to take you through them al l  but  

I  just  l ike to take you now to the one at  page 787.  

MR MLAMBO :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    In fact ,  on top of  page 788,  Mr Reenen 

Thebus was responds to you,  to your ear l ier emai l  that  we 10 

have just  looked at .   And then you reply to him, i t  seems, on 

the 3r d of  September on page 787.    

 And you say the fol lowing:  

“Hi ,  Reenen.  Thanks for the prompt response.   As I  

d id not  have an opportuni ty to do a thorough study 

of  al l  the tender submissions,  I  cannot categorical ly  

c la im that  the process was suff ic ient ly object ive and 

the conf idence level  is high enough to place i t  

beyond reproach.  

Nonetheless,  the fol lowing are key- issues that  meri t  20 

a ser ious review of  the adjudicat ion process and 

outcome.  

1.  The capabi l i ty assessment of  the three tenderers.   

Al though LMT is  the only one of  the three 

tenderers that  has manufactured the same hul l s  
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under contract  f rom Patr ia,  i t  obtained the lowest  

score.   DCD has never manufactured the same 

hul ls and yet  i t  obtained a higher score.   The 

Score Adjudicat ion Team came up wi th  these,  

based on the manufacturer of  a di fferent  pro ject .   

VR Laser wi l l  be manufactur ing th is type of  hul l  

for the f i rst  t ime and yet  i t  has the h ighest  score.”  

 Was that  concern you ra ised,  was i t  ra ised as part  of  

your dut ies as Group Supply Chain Execut ive? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  Chai r.   I t  is t rue.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Then you ra ise in paragraph 2 the 

pr ice di fference between the VR Laser and LMT off ice being 

almost  100 mi l l ion.  

“ In my invest igat ion,  I  was informed by Stephan that  

the LMT quote was based on factual  f igures since 

LMT has manufactured the hul l  before.  

I f  Stephan is r ight ,  i t  would not  make business 

sense to pay so much more since LMT is  a s ister  

company.  

I  bel ieve someone at  DLS should have demanded 20 

support ing evidence before assuming that  LMT 

under-quoted.  

I  bel ieve this anomaly warrants further  invest igat ion 

and val idat ion.”  

 Now, who had referred to LMT as having under-quoted? 
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MR MLAMBO :    Wel l ,  th is is captured in some of  the emai ls 

that  are here and i t  was also raised dur ing the meet ing that  

we have had that  evening.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    When you . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MLAMBO :    Or the evening before.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    In the meet ing? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And then you deal  wi th  BBBEE 

credent ia ls which were also referred to in the emai ls you 

ment ioned.   Paragraph 3.  10 

“LMT was g iven a zero score on t ransformat ion due 

to i ts expi red cert i f icate.   The two elements of  

t ransformat ion,  namely ownership and EE 

(Employment Equi ty) could have been assessed 

without  a val id BBBEE cert i f icate.  

Such date should be readi ly avai lable f rom the HR 

department. ”  

 Would HR department be the HR department of  Denel  

Group head off ice? 

MR MLAMBO :    LMT HR Department.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    LMT HR Department? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And LMT, as you descr ibed i t ,  was a 

sister company.  

MR MLAMBO :    That  is r ight .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    In  fact ,  the Commission has heard 

evidence that  i t  was 51% owned by Denel .  

MR MLAMBO :    That  is correct ,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So you refer to that  being readi ly 

avai lab le f rom the HR.  And then you cont inue.  

“BBBEE cert i f icate.   Unless a company by a detai led 

report  do not  g ive enough deta i l  to be able to score 

the two elements accurately,  i f  the t ransformat ion 

aspects of  LMT were considered in  the evaluat ion,  i t  

could have been rated number 1.”  10 

 So i t  could have gone up i f  i t  had been given some 

BBBEE points?  Is  that  your point  here? 

MR MLAMBO :    Ja,  that  is why. . .  that  is correct ,  Chai r.   That  

is why I  suspected that  there was something amiss here.   I t  

was just  a  del iberate act ion on the part  of  DLS to simply 

disregard the BBBEE cert i f icate of  LMT.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  now how would LMT’s people BE 

prof i le or points have been assessed in the absence of  a  

val id BE cert i f icate?  How does that  happen?  How does that  20 

work? 

MR MLAMBO :    Wel l ,  in our evaluat ion,  the focus was on 

ownership.   And ownership had actual ly improved by vi r tue 

of  the fact  that  i t  was a major i ty owned by a state owned 

company that  is  an added benef i t  that  i t  increases i t  score.  
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Pr ior to us acquir ing LMT, i t  was a BBBEE Level  4 company.   

So i t  was def in i te ly going to be bet ter than a BBBEE 4,  Level  

4.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MLAMBO :    And then we would also look at  the employee 

prof i le,  which is the Employment Equi ty,  a breakdown of  the 

organisat ion.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i f  a  val id BEE or BBBEE cer t i f icate 

is a requirement,  what is the effect  i f  a company does not  

have a val id BBBEE cert i f icate in terms of  scor ing.  10 

MR MLAMBO :    Wel l ,  i f  the company is not  in the process of  

being ver i f ied,  then you would score that  company a zero.   

But  i f  a  company has already communicated that  they are in 

the process of  being ver i f ied for  BBBEE, as a potent ia l  

c l ient ,  you are actual ly expected to g ive that  company an 

opportuni ty  to complete that  ver i f icat ion process provided 

that  i t  is not  going to be a prolonged process.   Normal ly,  i t  is 

something that  is done within a week.    

CHAIRPERSON :    But  is the posi t ion not  when you do these 

things in terms of  processes that  the closing date that  is 20 

given where you now going to ta lk general ly,  that  c losing 

date means each bidders,  where you were talk ing about 

bidders,  is supposed to ensure that  i ts bid,  that  i ts bid is in  

and i t  sat isf ies a l l  the requi rements that  i t  is supposed to 

sat isfy?   
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 Therefore,  i f  one of  the requi rements is a val id BE 

cert i f icate and you do not  f i le  i t ,  and by the closing date,  that  

means you do not  meet those requi rements unless you move 

as a company.   You extent  the c losing date for everybody,  I  

would imagine.  

MR MLAMBO :    Ja,  that  is correct  Chai r.   That  is what  

typical ly happens.   And the standard pract ise is that  you do 

not  start  wi th the evaluat ion unt i l  such t ime that  – i f  you 

have g iven a company f ive days to submit  that  BBBEE 

cert i f icate or a tax clearance cert i f icate for that  matter,  then 10 

you only start  af ter the company has fa i led to submi t  that  on 

t ime.  I f  your . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MLAMBO :    . . .be given a zero score for . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  my point  is th is.   Is i t  not  the effect  of  

a clos ing date that  you want to see those who compl ied wi th  

the requi rements by the clos ing date and those who do not  

comply and they are al l  going to  be judged accord ing to 

whether as at  the closing t ime they compl ied or t ime?   

 In other words,  i f  I  put  in my bid by four o’c lock today 20 

and today is the c losing date,  four o ’c lock.   And I  have put  in 

my tax cert i f icate and you have put  in your b id but  you lef t  

out  the tax cert i f icate,  you do not  comply wi th the tax 

cert i f icate requi rement and therefore,  you should be 

disqual i f ied.  



27 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 292 
 

Page 239 of 260 
 

MR MLAMBO :    Ja . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Is i t  not  how i t  works?  Because you are 

al l  g iven the same amount of  t ime to comply.    

MR MLAMBO :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    From the t ime the invi tat ion is issued to or  

the request  for proposals or whatever,  f rom that  date to the 

closing date,  you al l  have the same amount of  t ime to 

comply.    

 Now I  compl ied.   I  make sure that  I  do my job,  my 

homework t imeously.   I  am able by four  o ’c lock to  put  in my 10 

bid that  compl ies wi th everything.    

 You do not  take this whole process ser iously.   You do 

other th ings when you are supposed to do your homework 

and put  your  bid together.   And then at  the last  minute,  you 

run around.   

 By four o’c lock,  there is st i l l  someth ing that  you have not  

put  in.   Therefore,  you put  in a bid that  does not  meet  al l  the 

requi rements.   You should be disqual i f ied and I  should go in.   

Is i t  not? 

MR MLAMBO :    Wel l ,  Nat ional  Treasury has actual ly 20 

incorporated th is into an instruct ion note that  i f  a company 

claims that  i t  is  in the process of  being ver i f ied for i ts 

BBBEE status,  i t  has to be g iven an opportuni ty.   I t  i f  i t  is in 

the process of  rect i fy ing i ts tax issues wi th SARS, i t  should 

be given an opportuni ty.    
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 By the t ime you actual ly do your evaluat ion,  i f  you have 

given them ample t ime which is reasonable and they have 

not  compl ied,  then you have got  the r ight  to disqual i fy them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So you are  say ing  Nat iona l  Treasury  has  

issued an ins t ruc t ion  tha t  says i f  by  c los ing  da te  they are  –  

a  company says  they are  in  the  process o f  ob ta in ing  

ver i f i ca t ion  fo r  BEE or  they a re  in  the  process o f  ob ta in ing  

a  tax  c lea rance  cer t i f i ca te  you  shou ld  g ive  them an 

oppor tun i ty  a f te r  the  c los ing  da te?  

MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  bu t  the  prov iso  is  tha t  you sha l l  no t ,  fo r  10 

ins tance,  cont rac t  a  company tha t  i s  no t  tax  compl ian t  bu t  

now wi l l  be  the  t ime when you in  the  p rocess o f  

cont rac t ing .   So i f  the  company does not  have or  has no t  

sor ted  ou t  i t s  tax  i ssues w i th  SARS then you  cannot  

ac tua l l y  cont rac t  tha t  company.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  unders tand tha t  par t .  

MR MLAMBO:    Bu t  w i th  BBBEE,  i f  you  have g iven them an 

oppor tun i ty  and they have not  ac tua l l y  p resented the i r  

BBBEE cer t i f i ca te  as  pe r  g iven t ime then you can g ive  

them a  zero .   There  is  …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  bu t  a re  you say ing  Nat iona l  Treasury  

has issued an ins t ruc t ion  tha t  says i f  the  company has 

fa i led  by  the  c los ing  da te  to  inc lude i t s  BEE cer t i f i ca te  or  

tax  c learance ce r t i f i ca te  and says to  you they are  in  the  

process o f  ge t t ing  tha t ,  you shou ld  a l low them t ime a f te r  



27 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 292 
 

Page 241 of 260 
 

the  c los ing  da te  to  b r ing  tha t  in?   I s  tha t  what  you are  

say ing .  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes bu t  tha t  does not  app ly  t o  o ther  

aspects  l i ke  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes on ly  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR MLAMBO:    …the techn ica l  requ i rements ,  those are  

nonnegot iab le .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  these  two there  is  room,  a  

per iod  o f  g race can be g iven to  them.  

MR MLAMBO:    Ja .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  tha t  i s  because o f  a  spec ia l  

ins t ruc t ion  f rom Nat iona l  Treasury,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MLAMBO:    Ja  because an oppor tun i ty  cou ld  ac tua l l y  

a r ise  a t  the  t ime  when you a re  in  the  m idd le  o f  a  BBBEE 

ver i f i ca t ion  p rocess and you shou ld  no t  be  pena l i sed 

because you a re  go ing  th rough tha t  p rocess.   I t  does not  

take  long to  ac tua l l y  ge t  your  BBBEE.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  Mr  Mlambo,  i f  i t  i s  o f f i c ia l ,  i t  i s  

par t  o f  po l i cy  o r  i t  i s  par t  o f  the  regu la t ions tha t  tha t  can  

be done,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  you know?  But  i f  you  ask  me,  there  20 

is  no th ing  wrong i f  you say we l l ,  you  have a  month  or  th ree  

months ,  a l l  o f  you,  to  b r ing  –  to  meet  the  requ i rements .   I f  

you  meet  the  requ i rements  you w i l l  be  in ,  i f  you  do not  

meet  the  requ i rements  you w i l l  be  ou t  bu t  next  t ime we  

issue another  one,  you might  be  ready and then you w i l l  be  
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in  bu t  fo r  now -   you are  in  i f  you  meet  the  requ i rements ,  

you are  ou t  i f  you  do not  meet  the  requ i rements  bu t  i f  there  

i s  a  spec ia l  s ta tu tory  o r  regu la to ry  p rov i s ion  or  po l i cy  tha t  

says in  regard  to  these spec i f i c  requ i rements  there  w i l l  be  

some per iod  o f  g race but  no t  o thers .   I  can  unders tand tha t  

because maybe the  idea is  tha t ,  you know,  they  do  not  

want  to  be  too  ha rsh  in  regard  to  those par t i cu la r  ones.  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR MLAMBO:    Thanks Cha i r,  may I  have some water  10 

p lease?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I f  we can re turn  to  

the  emai ls  tha t  we were  look ing  a t .   We have looked a t  the  

one  a t  787.   Then,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  the  emai l  on  page  

786 is  the  response to  you f rom Stephan Burger.  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes.   Ja ,  tha t  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then you  –  and I  am not  go ing  to  

go  th rough i t ,  he  ra ises  va r ious po in ts  and arguments  as  to  

why you shou ld  no t  be  concerned about  cer ta in  th ings and  20 

you rep ly  to  h im –  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you to  page 785.   

That  i s  you r  emai l  o f  the  4  September  and  tha t  i s  

addressed to  Stephan where  you were  a lso  copy ing  in  

Ce l ia  Malah le la ,  F ik i le  Mhlont lo .   Jus t  remind us  p lease 

who Mr  Mhlont lo  was?  
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MR MLAMBO:    He was the  Group CFO.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  

MR MLAMBO:    Jan  Wesse ls  was the  Group COO and 

Reenen Teubes was DLS’ COO and R iaz  Sa loo jee  was the  

Group CEO.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Now i f  you compare  tha t  l i s t  

tha t  you have jus t  read out  w i th  the  l i s t  o f  peop le  who were  

cop ied  in  ear l ie r  emai l  co r respondence f rom you between  

you and in i t ia l l y  Mr  Teubes and then i t  seems to  esca la te  

to  S tephen Burger.   Th is  seems to  be  the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  you  10 

were  cop ing  in  R iaz  Sa loo jee ,  the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive .   

Why d id  you copy  Mr  Sa loo jee  in  on  th is?  

MR MLAMBO:    I  rea l i sed tha t  the  issue was ac tua l l y  fa r  

f rom be ing  reso lved and i t  was se r ious enough to  war ran t  

h is  a t ten t ion  as  the  Group CEO.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Now i f  I  may re fer  you  to  the 

body o f  you r  emai l  addressed pr imar i l y  to  Mr  Burger,  you 

say:  

“We are  c lear l y  no t  a l igned in  te rms o f  the  ana lys i s  

o f  the  da ta  and in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  saw fo r  the  f i rs t  20 

t ime on Tuesday a t  the  meet ing  I  had w i th  Reenen  

and Ce l ia . ”  

Was tha t  the  same meet ing  you ment ioned ea r l ie r?  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    “ I  cer ta in ly  t h ink  we shou ld  no t  
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 exchange anymore  emai ls  on  the  issue in  quest ion  

as  the  reso lu t ion  may be eas ie r  to  f ind  around a  

tab le .   However,  the  fo l low ing issues have def in i te ly  

no t  been addressed by  your  response. ”  

And here  you ra ise  a  number  o f  i ssues in  parag raph 1 ,  you 

re fer  aga in  to  the  huge pr i ce  d i f fe ren t ia l  in  the  o f fe rs  made 

by  bo th  LMT and VR Laser.   Now you have re fer red  ear l ie r  

to  LMT be ing  a  100 mi l l ion  –  approx imate ly  a  R100  mi l l ion  

cheaper  than VR Laser  and then you re fe r  to  in fo rmat ion  

you had f rom Stephan Ne l  f rom LMT ta lk ing  about  the  fac t  10 

tha t  they had p roduced the  hu l l  ea r l ie r  and tha t  i s  why the i r  

lower  p r ices  were  re l iab le  and VR Laser ’s  quote ,  on  the 

o ther  hand,  was not  based on pas t  per fo rmance.    

 So d id  you fee l  tha t  the  pr i ce  d i f fe ren t ia l  tha t  you 

had re fer red  ear l ie r  in  an  ear l ie r  emai l  was not  p roper ly  

reso lved?  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes and i t  jus t  d id  no t  make sense why 

peop le  wou ld  be  so  anx ious to  pay R100 mi l l ion  more  

wh ich  wou ld  ac tua l l y  e rode the  bo t tom l ine  o f  DLS.   I t  jus t  

was preposte rous  to  me.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Then you dea l  in  the  second  

paragraph,  number  two,  w i th  the  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t .   Just  

exp la in  to  the  Cha i r  p lease what  was your  concern  about  

the  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  i ssue?  

MR MLAMBO:    I  was ac tua l l y  here  re fer r ing  to  the  
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submiss ion  in  te rms o f  the  ownersh ip  and the  ad jud ica t ion  

team tha t  had ac tua l l y  accepted the  fac t  tha t  VR Laser  was 

hundred pe rcent  b lack-owned company and ye t  they  d id  no t  

in te r rogate  the  fac t  tha t  the i r  ind iv idua ls  were  no t  

spec i f ied ,  bu t  i t  was jus t  compan ies  and the  document  tha t  

was a lso  submi t ted  tha t  was supposed ly  a  l i s t  o f  the  

d i rec tors ,  i t  was not  a  va l id  CIPC document .   In  my v iew i t  

was a  fake  document  and the  peop le  tha t  had  ac tua l l y  

submi t ted  the  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  dec la ra t ions were  no t  

rea l l y  the  en t i re  team o f  d i rec tors  o f  VR Laser,  i t  was the  10 

COO of  VR Laser  tha t  had submi t ted  and I  th ink  Mr  Aurora  

as  we l l  bu t  the  o ther  peop le  tha t  were  ac tua l l y  c r i t i ca l ,  

peop le  l i ke  Sa l im  Essa,  had not  submi t ted  any dec lara t ion  

o f  in te res t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A t  th is  s tage  tha t  you sent  th is  emai l  

were  you aware  tha t  Mr  Sa l im Essa in  fac t  had an in te res t?  

MR MLAMBO:    I  th ink  i t  was probab ly  shor t l y  a f te r  ge t t ing  

a  response f rom Mr  Auro ra  because I  fo l lowed tha t  up  to  

ver i f y  exact ly  who are  the  ind iv idua l  shareho lde rs  o f  VR 

Laser  because in  te rms o f  the  documenta t ion  tha t  I  had  20 

seen tha t  was eva lua ted by  the  eva lua t ion  team a t  DLS  

there  was not  a  s ing le  name,  i t  was jus t  E lgaso lve  and  

Cra ig  Shaw(?)  Investments  and I  had to  p rod or  push Mr  

Auro ra  to  d i sc lose  tha t  74 .9% shareho ld ing  o f  VR Laser  

was ac tua l l y  owned by  Sa l im Essa but  the  25 .1%,  I  cou ld  
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no t  ac tua l l y  ge t  any feedback on  who owned tha t  and ye t  

there  was th is  constant  re fe rence tha t  VR Laser  was  25.1% 

b lack  women owned.   On wha t  bas is?   Because the  

ev idence was not  there .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Then i f  we can look a t  pa ragraph 3 ,  

tha t  re fe rs  to  the  capab i l i t y  and how LMT was assessed to  

be  the  lowest  on  capab i l i t y  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  the  two  

o ther  compan ies ,  tha t  i s  DMD and  VR Laser,  i s  they were  

successfu l ,  wou ld  be  mak ing  th is  t ype o f  hu l l  fo r  the  f i rs t  

t ime.   I s  there  anyth ing  you want  to  add to  tha t?   I t  seems 10 

to  be  to  be  c lea r.  

MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  i t  ac tua l l y  de f ied  log ic  as  fa r  as  I  was  

concerned but  compan ies  tha t  had never  manufac tu red 

p la t fo rm hu l l  were  ac tua l l y  g iven  a  h igher  score  on  the  

techn ica l  eva lua t ion  and the  company tha t  was con t rac ted  

by  Pat r i a ,  the  OEM to  make a  p ro to type was ac tua l l y  g iven  

the  lower  score  and i t  la te r  tu rned out  tha t  they had  

ac tua l l y  a lso  re l i ed  on  unre la ted  aspects  to  ra te  these two 

compan ies .    DCD,  fo r  ins tance,  was ac tua l l y  eva lua ted on 

a  product  tha t  was to ta l l y  d i f fe ren t  f rom what  we have gone 20 

out  on  tender  fo r,  c losed tender  fo r.    

 And VR Laser  had never  manufac tured th is  hu l l  and  

i t  was ac tua l l y  g iven a  score  tha t  was h igher  than the  

max imum.   The max imum techn ica l  sco re  tha t  was  ac tua l l y  

supposed to  be  g iven to  b idders  was 45 po in ts  and I  
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remember  see ing  50 po in t  someth ing  po in ts  tha t  was g iven 

to  VR Laser  and I  sa id  to  myse l f  th is  i s  a  rea l  fa rce .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  remind me.   You were  now a t  th is  

s tage o f  th is  ema i l  a t  785 you were  dea l ing  w i th  th is  a f te r  

the  fac t  in  the  sense tha t  th is  i ssue had not  been brought  

to  you on t ime but  you got  invo l ved a f te r  i t  had bypassed 

your  o f f i ce .  

MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   In  fac t  i f  they  

had come to  me p r io r  to  tak ing  the  dec is ion  to  go  ou t  to  the 

market  I  wou ld  have sa id  no ,  you are  no t  go ing  to  do  tha t ,  10 

we invested  money in  LMT for  t he  very  reason tha t  we  

wanted to  do  we l l  f inanc ia l l y  and techn ica l l y  in  the  

execut ion  o f  the  Hoefys te r  cont rac t .   So i t  jus t  d id  no t  

make sense.    

 And what  has rea l l y  even got  me hot  beh ind  the  

co l la r  was the  fac t  tha t  the  leadersh ip  a t  DLS was prepared  

to  pay a lmost  R100 mi l l ion  more  than what  LMT was  

ac tua l l y  quot ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  maybe Mr  Kennedy was go ing  to  

dea l  w i th  th is  la te r  bu t  i t  m igh t  be  conven ien t .   Were  you 20 

ever  to ld  what   -  were  you ever  g iven an exp lanat ion  how 

th is  bypassed your  o f f i ce ,  how your  –  or  how i t  was not  

b rought  in  your  o f f i ce  or  why i t  was not  b rought  to  your  

o f f i ce  be fo re  be ing  sent  to  the  Group CEO and i t  be ing  

approved?  
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MR MLAMBO:    I  th ink  the  reason –  th is  i s  my specu la t ion ,  

the  reason i s  tha t  they knew tha t  I  wou ld  go  th rough th is  

because o f  the  va lue  o f  the  cont rac t  w i th  a  f ine  too thcomb 

and there  was a  very  s l im  chance or  no  chance a t  a l l  tha t  I  

wou ld  ac tua l l y  approve the  t ransac t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  d id  you not  ask  the  re levant  peop le  

how come you s igned w i thout  see ing  my s ignature  on  th is  

th ing  or  a  quest ion  a long those l ines?  Why was  i t  no t  

b rought  to  me? 

MR MLAMBO:    A t  th is  s tage in  f ac t  they had not  s igned 10 

the  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  they had no t  s igned a t  tha t  s tage? 

MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  th is  was September.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MR MLAMBO:    The cont rac t  was ac tua l l y  s igned the  

fo l low ing month .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.   

MR MLAMBO:    Bu t  I  had no c lue  tha t  the  cont rac t  was 

go ing  to  be  s igned or  had a l ready been s igned a t  tha t  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  20 

MR MLAMBO:    Because o f  the  exchanges tha t  I  d id  w i th  

the  respons ib le  –  in  fac t  the  person tha t  was supposed to  

u l t imate ly  s ign  th is ,  i f  i t  was be low 200 mi l l ion  was the  

group CEO Mr  R iaz  Sa loo jee .   Tha t  i s  why I  made sure  tha t  

he  was aware  o f  my concerns about  the  issues.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  now i f  i t  was not  b rought  to  you,  you  

were  be ing  bypassed,  how d id  you  become aware  and you 

s tar ted  send ing  emai ls?   How d id  tha t  happen? 

MR MLAMBO:    I t  was a f te r  the  meet ing  tha t  we had had  

the  n igh t  be fore .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You heard  a t  some meet ing  about  i t? 

MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  tha t  was the  meet ing  tha t  we had  

because the  i dea  was ac tua l l y  to  se l l  the  approva l  o f  th is  

t ransact ion  to  me  in  tha t  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  10 

MR MLAMBO:    That  was the  purpose o f  the  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  okay.   A l r igh t ,  Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cha i r,  may I  ask  fo r  the  Cha i r ’s  

d i rec t ion  p lease?   I  see i t  has  a l ready gone f i ve  o ’c lock  

and you have ind ica ted  to  me you have o ther  p ress ing  

mat te rs  to  a t tend to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  th ink  le t  us  go  up to  quar te r  past .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  i s  f ine ,  thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  w i l l  a lso  enab le  us  to  f in ish  th is  20 

l i t t le  sec t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Mlambo,  jus t  

to  p ick  up  the  las t  quest ion  ra ised by  the  Cha i r  about  no t  

go ing  th rough you.   You ra ise  a  prob lem in  tha t  regard ,  
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r igh t  a t  the  end o f  your  emai l ,  jus t  be fore  you end o f f  w i th  

regards,  do  you see there  is  an  unnumbered paragraph tha t  

s ta r ts :  My conten t ion?  Do you see  tha t?  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am go ing  to  go  back to  tha t  

sentence in  a  moment  bu t  the  second l ine  you say:  

“ I t  i s  a lso  wor th  ment ion ing  tha t  you f lou ted  the  

de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  by  no t  p resent ing  the  f i le  fo r  

rev iew to  me befo re  engag ing  F i k i le  and Jan. ”  

P resumably  tha t  Mr  Mhlont lo  and Mr  Wesse ls .  10 

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    “Any t ransact ion  above 20 mi l l ion   

must  go  th rough my o f f i ce  f i rs t .   I  am beg inn ing  to  

have doubts  tha t  th is  was an overs igh t . ”  

What  d id  you mean tha t  you are  hav ing  doubts  i t  was 

overs igh t .  

MR MLAMBO:    I  ac tua l l y  thought  tha t  was de l ibera te  

because they knew tha t  the  submiss ion  was not  go ing  to  be 

approved by  myse l f  o r  go  beyond  my o f f i ce  and they fe l t  

tha t  i t  wou ld  be  bet te r  ra the r  lobby the  Group CEO to  20 

approve i t  w i thou t  me be ing  invo l ved.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

MR MLAMBO:    There  seemed to  be  an e lement  o f  

despera t ion  o f  want ing  to  ge t  th is  f ina l i sed as  qu ick l y  as  

poss ib le  so  tha t  VR Laser  wou ld  ge t  the  bus iness.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now i f  we can go back jus t  to  

comple te  the  remain ing  por t ions  tha t  we have not  ye t  

touched on.   Pa ragraph 4  re fers  to  BBBEE cer t i f i ca tes  

aga in .   You say:  

“ I  rece ived ev idence tha t  tha t  the  two week grace  

per iod  fo r  the  submiss ion  o f  the  BBBEE cer t i f i ca te  

by  LMT was met  and ye t  you c la im tha t  they cou ld  

no t  be  cons ide red as  i t  was a f te r  the  dead l ine .  I t  is  

s tandard  prac t ice  tha t  a  supp l i e r  tha t  i s  be ing  

ver i f ied  fo r  BBBEE leve l  cannot  be  pena l ised fo r  10 

tha t  espec ia l l y  i f  the  cr i t i ca l  da ta  used in  the  

assessment  i s  read i l y  ava i lab le .    What  makes th is  

even more  unacceptab le  i s  the  fac t  tha t  we have 

unh indered access to  da ta  and in fo rmat ion  a t  LMT. ”  

The las t  sentence ,  i s  tha t  aga in  the  po in t  tha t  because LMT 

is  major i t y  owned  by  Dene l  you wou ld  have access?  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now I  jus t  want  you to  c la r i f y  the  

next  sentence be low paragraph 4 .   You say:  

“My content ion  i s  tha t  desp i te  be ing  conv inced o f  a  20 

fa i r  and ob jec t i ve  tha t  was fo l lowed by  the  

ad jud ica t ion  team,  le t  us  appo in t  an  independent   

assessor  to  cor robora te  your  c la im . ”  

Who are  you re fer r ing  to  as  the  person be ing  conv inced  

tha t  i t  was a  fa i r  and ob jec t i ve  process,  a re  you  ta lk ing  
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about  yourse l f  o r  o thers?  

MR MLAMBO:    Wel l ,  Mr  Teubes and Mr  Burger  were  

ac tua l l y  o f  the  v iew tha t  –  exp ressed tha t  a  number  o f  t ime 

tha t  the  process was robust  and fa i r  and I  jus t  cou ld  no t  

unders tand tha t  because the re  was no ev idence than  

look ing  a t  the  submiss ion  tha t  th is  was a  fa i r  p rocess.   

 There  a re  o ther  th ings tha t  I  d id  no t  inc lude here  

tha t  I  shou ld  have ment ioned.   The engagement  o f  one o f  

the  b idders ,  wh i ls t  the  process is  s t i l l  on  i s  an  abso lu te  no-

no in  supp ly  cha in .   I f  you  engage  any o f  the  b idders  you  10 

engage them s imul taneous ly  and i f  there  are  quest ions tha t  

a re  ra ised you g ive  those answers  to  a l l  o f  them,  even 

those tha t  had not  ra ised those  issues and before  the  

ac tua l  f ina l  approva l  o f  the  t ransact ion ,  they were  a l ready 

engag ing  w i th  VR Laser  on  the  pr ic ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  take  you now to  the  next  emai l  

wh ich  appears  a t  page 791?  Now th is  t ime i t  i s  no t  an 

emai l  to  Mr  Burger  who was copy ing  in  o ther  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  page,  700 and…? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    791,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    791,  okay.   Cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Th is  i s  an  emai l  da ted  the  9  

September  2014 so  i t  was a  few days a f te r  the  las t  emai l  

we saw a  moment  ago,  co r rec t?  

MR MLAMBO:    H ’m.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Jus t  say  yes i f  you agree.  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And th is  t ime the  emai l  i s  addressed 

not  to  Mr  Burger  o r  Mr  Teubes to  R iaz  Sa loo jee ,  Mr  

Mhlont lo  and Johan Wesse ls ,  whose t i t les  you have g iven  

us  a l ready and am I  r igh t  in  say ing  tha t  th is  –  you are  now 

esca la t ing  to  the  top  execut ive  o f  Dene l ,  the  Group CEO,  

CFO and the  COO? 

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you say:  10 

“ I  have managed to  rev iew DLS’ submiss ions  

per ta in ing  to  the  abovement ioned sub jec t ,  the  

sub jec t  above is  award ing  o f  hu l l  manufac tur ing  

cont rac t  to  VR Laser.   Fo l lowing issues pa in t  an  

unacceptab le  p ic tu re  f rom a  process fa i rness and  

ob jec t i ve  po in t  o f  v iew:  

The tender  documents  were  no t  sent  to  a l l  the  

b idders  s imu l taneous ly  as  per  normal  tender  

p rocess. ”  

Then second ly :  20 

“Pr io r  to  the  ad jud ica t ion  process there  was s t i l l  

engagements  o r  c la r i f i ca t ion  sess ions w i th  

ind iv idua l  b idders .   The p rocess requ i res  tha t  such  

engagements  be  he ld  w i th  a l l  b idders  a t  the  same 

t ime.   In fo rmat ion   tha t  i s  reques ted by  one o f  the  
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b idders  must  be  sent  to  o thers  even i f  they  d id  no t  

ask  fo r  i t . ”  

I s  th is  re la ted  a  po in t  you ment ioned a  moment  ago tha t  

they were  be ing  dea l t  w i th  separa te ly?  

MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Paragraph 3 :  

“Desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  LMT’s  BBBEE s ta tus  was  

d is regarded on grounds tha t  i t  was s t i l l  be ing  

ver i f ied  and the  dead l ine  was the  25  June 2015,  the  

VR Laser  cer t i f i ca te  was accepted  and ra ted  on the  10 

27 June two days  a f te r  the  c los ing  da te . ”  

In  you r  submiss ions you say:  

“ I t  i s  c la imed tha t  LMT’s  quote  i s  too  low and  

unrea l i s t i c .   The  d i f fe rence between LMT’s  quote  

and VR Laser  quote  i s  a lmost  R1 mi l l ion .   A f te r  

quest ion ing  S tephan Ne l l  on  the  accuracy o f  h is  

quote…”  

That  i s  LMT’s  quo te ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    “…he o f fe red  to  come and p resent   20 

the  fac ts ,  demonst ra ted  i t  was based on rea l i s t i c  

quotes .    He c la imed LMT had made the  hu l l  be fore  

under  Pat r ias  quo te . ”  

And then in  paragraph 5  you re fer  to  your  meet ing  w i th  

S tephan Burger  yesterday.   So  was there  a  meet ing  w i th  
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h im on the  8  September  wh ich  fo l lowed the  ea r l ie r  emai ls?  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You say:  

“He ind i ca ted  VR Laser  had o f fe red  to  reduce the  

quote  f rom around 262 mi l l ion  to  195 mi l l ion !   Does  

tha t  no t  te l l  a  d is tu rb ing  s to ry  about  the  in i t ia l  

o f fe r?   On the  bas is  o f  these f ind ings and o the r  

fac ts  i t  i s  my cons ide red op in ion  tha t  the  

submiss ion  f rom DLS be re jec ted .   S ince LMT has  

the  capab i l i t y  to  make the  hu l l ,  th is  i ssue shou ld  10 

have been d i scussed befo re  go ing  out  on  tender.   

Good n igh t . ”  

Now jus t  comment  i f  you  wou ld ,  p lease,  spec i f i ca l l y  on  

parag raph 5  how you found i t  d is tu rb ing  tha t  f i rs t l y  there  

was about  100 mi l l ion  d i f fe rence between the  in i t ia l  quotes  

or  o f fe rs ,  paragraph 4 .    

And then you were  d is tu rbed by  the  fact  tha t  Burger  

then te l l s  you he has found tha t  VR Laser  i s  o f fe r ing  to  

reduce the  quote  f rom 262 mi l l ion  to  195 mi l l ion .   What  was 

the  po in t s  o f  concern  tha t  you had  in  re la t ion  to  tha t?  20 

MR MLAMBO:    In  the  normal  bus iness wor ld  I  cannot  

imag ine  a  company tha t  i s  we l l - run  and i t  does  proper  

cost ing  jus t  s imp ly  lopp ing  o f f  67  m i l l ion  f rom a  262 mi l l ion  

quote  in  one fe l l  swoop.   I t  jus t  d id  no t  make sense i t  

means the  quote  was in f la ted  in  the  f i rs t  p lace  and tha t  
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suggested tha t  someth ing  anomalous was ac tua l l y  

happen ing  w i th  th is  t ransact ion .   I  can  unders tand i f  the 

quote  i s  reduced by  0 .5% or  1% but  th is  i s  fa r  too 

s ign i f i can t  to  reduce a  pr ice  on .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    In  your  v iew based on procurement  

law and po l i c ies ,  was i t  permiss ib le  to  a l low tenderers  such  

VR Laser  chang ing  the i r  b ids  in  th is  manner?  

MR MLAMBO:    No.   The on ly  t ime you accept  a  b id  tha t  

has been reduced is  when tha t  b idder  has a l ready been 

approved and awarded and once i t  has  been awarded then  10 

you can s tar t  the  negot ia t ions  bu t  in  th is  par t i cu la r  

ins tance the  announcement  had not  even been made and  

they were  a l ready  negot ia t ing .   

 And second ly,  peop le  ou ts ide  supp ly  cha in  are  no t  

supposed to  ge t  invo lved or  dabb le  w i th  p rocurement  

p rocesses.   Th is  i s  the  te r ra in  o f  the  supp ly  cha in  peop le  

because they unders tand the  process be t te r.   You cannot  

have everyone negot ia t ing  w i th  supp l ie rs .   I  mean ,  tha t  i s  

s imp ly  messes up  the  process.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i f  Mr  Burger  was to  have gone to  VR 20 

Laser  to  negot ia te  w i th  them to reduce the  pr ice ,  one,  

because he was outs ide  o f  supp ly  cha in  he  shou ld  no t  do  

tha t .   Two,  he  wou ld  have been ac t ing  in  b reach o f  po l i cy  

because the  po l i cy  a l lowed the  negot ia t ion  o f  p r ices  on ly  

under  cer ta in  c i r cumstances and by  ce r ta in  peop le .  
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MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  p rec ise ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MLAMBO:    Ja .   Th i s  p rocess had not  been f ina l i sed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MLAMBO:    And they were  a l ready negot ia t ing  wh ich  

begs the  quest ion ,  was the  ou tcome not  someth ing  tha t  

was ac tua l l y  p lanned?  The ac tua l  eva lua t ion  was s imp ly  to  

pu l l  woo l  over  ou r  eyes,  to  g ive  the  impress ion  tha t  i t  was  

a  fa i r  ob jec t i ve  and t ransparent  p rocess when i t  was not .  

 You w i l l  ac tua l l y  see la te r  in  some o f  the  emai ls  tha t  10 

were  exchanged,  Mr  Burger  h imse l f  say ing  tha t  he  was 

go ing  to  negot ia te  ou ts ide  the  normal  p rocess.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  we saw tha t .  

MR MLAMBO:    And tha t  he  was  go ing  to  f igh t  to  make  

sure  tha t  VR Laser  go t  the  bus iness.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  he  sa id  he  wou ld  de fend VR Laser.   

Ja ,  okay.  

MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  p rec ise ly.   So the  process los t  

c red ib i l i t y  r igh t  a t  the  ou tse t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cha i r,  may  I  ask  one f ina l  quest ion  20 

before  the  take  the  ad journment?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Do you –  can you reca l l  ever  

rece iv ing  any response f rom Mr  Sa loo jee ,  Mr  Mhlont lo  o r  

Mr  Wesse ls  to  th is  emai l  where  you ra ised these concerns?  
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MR MLAMBO:    I  never  rece ived any response f rom Mr  

Sa loo jee  on the  issue.   But  what  happened,  the  is  a  

pos i t ion  paper  tha t  i s  in  my f i le .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR MLAMBO:    That  we ac tua l l y  had a  meet ing ,  tha t  was  

Mr  Wesse ls ,  Mr  Mhlont lo  and myse l f  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry,  Mr  Mlambo,  so r ry  to  in te r rup t ,  

may I  suggest  sub jec t  to  the  gu idance o f  the  Cha i r  tha t  we  

leave tha t  un t i l  you  resume your  ev idence hopefu l l y  

tomorrow morn ing ,  i f  you  are  ava i lab le ,  to  dea l  w i th  tha t  10 

because tha t  i s  go ing  to  take  a  b i t  o f  t ime and we need  

some deta i l  f rom you on the  pos i t ion  paper.  

MR MLAMBO:    I  am okay w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  ava i lab le  to  cont inue tomorrow? 

MR MLAMBO:    I  w i l l  have to  cance l  my appo in tments .   I  

do  no t  want  to  be  screamed a t ,  bu t  behav ing  l i ke  a  good  

c i t i zen .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  we are  sor ry  tha t  we have messed  

up your  p lans bu t  we apprec ia te  i t  i f  you  can rea r range and  

be ab le  to  cont inue tomorrow.  20 

MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  I  w i l l  cer ta in l y  make myse l f  ava i lab le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Now,  Mr  Kennedy,  

you and I  spoke  I  th ink  yesterday and maybe las t  week 

about  the  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  some o f  the  days we cou ld  s ta r t  

a t  n ine .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And I  th ink  you ind ica ted  tha t  you wou ld  

apprec ia te  i t  i f  we cou ld  s ta r t  a t  n ine  tomorrow.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  was even before  th is  s i tua t ion  

arose wh ich  is  a  reason we have  taken – we took much  

longer  w i th  Ms Malah le la .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Ms Malah le la ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  suspect  tha t  I  m igh t  no t  be  ab le  to  

s ta r t  ear l ie r  than ten  tomor row.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i f  my s i tua t ion  changes I  w i l l  l e t  you  

know and then  maybe somebody can then adv ise  Mr  

Mlambo and then  i f  I  am ab le  then  we can s tar t  a t  n ine  bu t  

as  th ings presen t ly  s tand I  th ink  we might  no t  be  ab le  to  

s ta r t  ear l ie r  than ten .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  may or  may not  a f fec t  Thursday as  

we l l  bu t  le t  us  p lay  i t  by  ea r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    And we w i l l  see  how we manage the  

s i tua t ion  in  te rms  o f  the  r ipp le  e f fec t  on  o the r  w i tnesses.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   We are  go ing  to  ad journ  

then unt i l  tomorrow ten  o ’c lock .   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 28 OCTOBER 2020  


